
Hartford City Council Agenda 

Tuesday, November 19, 2019 – 7:00 p.m. 

Hartford City Hall 

Mayor: Jeremy Menning 

Ward 1: Mark Brenneman and Travis Kuehl 

Ward 2: Mark Monahan and Brittany Glanzer 

 Ward 3: Scott Nelson and Arden Jones 

 

 

Business Items 

• Roll Call of Mayor and City Council Members 

• Additions to the Agenda/Approve Agenda 

• Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting(s) 

*Regular Meeting Minutes – 11/05/2019 

• Approve Bills submitted for Payment  

Public Comments – Public Input on Non-Agenda Items 
*Action cannot be taken on items discussed unless specifically listed elsewhere on the agenda* 

 

Visitors 

• Don Sieverding – Discuss Improvement of 12th Street 

 

Applications, Hearings, Resolutions and Ordinances 

• 7:05 Hearing for Liquor License Renewals 

• 7:10 Hearing on Annexation Petition from the Hartford Township 

  *Review and Approve Agreement with Hartford Township 

  *Review and Approve Annexation Resolution 2019-17 

• Review and Approve Resolution 2019-15 - Amended General Assessment Policy 

• Review and Approve Resolution 2019-16 – Transfer of Contingency Funds 

• 1st Reading of Ordinance #680 – Amendment to Zoning Regulations to allow Artisan 

Distillery in Central Business and Community Commercial Zones 

• 1st Reading of Ordinance #681 – 2019 Supplemental Appropriation 

• 1st Reading of Ordinance #682 – Amend Ordinance 430 – Sidewalk widths 

Reports 

• Chamber & Economic Development Director Report – Jesse Fonkert 

  *Review of Housing Study 

• City Engineer Report – Stockwell Engineers 

  *Kelly Point Water Main Reimbursement Request for Phase 3  

• Public Works Superintendent Report – Craig Wagner 

• Finance Officer Report – Karen Wilber 

• City Administrator Report – Teresa Sidel 

 

Old Business 

• Approve Warranty Deed for Lot 6 of Railway Addition 

• Discuss Park Recreation Board 

 

New Business 

• Discuss Feedback on Joint Jurisdiction Public Meeting 

 

Correspondence 

  

 Executive Session (SDCL 1-25-2) 

  

Adjournment 

 

 

Next City Council Meeting: Tuesday – December 3, 2019 



City Council Meeting – Regular Meeting November 5, 2019 

 
Mayor Jeremy Menning called the meeting to order at 7:00pm at Hartford City Hall with the following city council 

members present:  Mark Monahan, Arden Jones, Mark Brenneman, Travis Kuehl, Brittany Glanzer and Scott Nelson.  Also 

present were City Administrator Teresa Sidel, City Finance Officer Karen Wilber, Public Works Superintendent Craig 

Wagner, Chamber & Economic Development Director Jesse Fonkert and City Engineer Mitch Mergen.  

 

BUSINESS ITEMS: 

• Approve Agenda:  A motion was made by Jones, second by Brenneman to approve the agenda as set - all voted 

yes, motion carried. 

• Approval of the Minutes:  A motion was made by Kuehl, second by Jones to approve the meeting minutes from 

October 15, 2019  – Nelson abstained with all others voting yes, motion carried. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None. 

 

APPLICATIONS, HEARINGS, RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

• Special Event Application – Hartford Hometown Christmas:  Lisa Hellvig, on behalf of Hartford Hometown 

Christmas, submitted a special event application for the Hartford Hometown Christmas event to be held Dec 1st.  

Activities will be similar to previous years.  The committee is requesting the following road closures: Main Ave - 

2nd St to Menth St starting at 11am; Main Ave - Hwy 38 to South St starting at 4pm; Oaks Ave – 2nd St to South St 

starting at 4pm; Railroad St – Main Ave to Western Ave starting at 4pm.  All road closures to re-open at the 

conclusion of the parade.  Also requesting use of the city shop for parade coordination along with approval to 

mark the streets for the 5k route and for the fireworks display along Railroad St.  A motion was made by 

Monahan, second by Nelson to approve the Hartford Hometown Christmas special event permit as applied for and 

to waive the $5 permit fee – Glanzer abstained with all others voting yes, motion carried. 

• 2nd Reading of Ordinance #679 – Key Lock Box System:  The Planning & Zoning board, at the request of Fire 

Chief Bryon Shumaker, is recommending approval of Ordinance #679, which would set minimum standards for a 

uniform key lock box system on controlled access buildings within the city.  Currently the fire department holds 

several different keys/codes to several buildings throughout town to allow them access if an emergency situation 

would arise.  Adopting a key lock box system would require the department to have just one key that would access 

all lock boxes in town.  The lock boxes would then have the keys/codes for each building.  The ordinance states 

that the following buildings would be required to have a key lock box: 1.) commercial, industrial and non-

residential structures that are protected by automatic alarm systems or have restricted access; 2.) multi-family 

structures that have restricted access through locked doors or have a common corridor for access to the living 

units; and 3.) all properties with security gates at the vehicular entrance.  All new structures would be required to 

follow the ordinance and any existing buildings would have a year to comply.  There would be a monitoring 

system in place at the fire department level to know who/when/where the master key is being accessed.  The 

property owner would be responsible for the cost of their box while the fire department would incur the cost of the 

monitoring system.  A motion was made by Jones, second by Brenneman to approve 2nd reading of Ordinance 

#679 – Key Lock Box System – all voted yes, motion carried. 

• Resolution 2019-14 Transfer Escrow Funds from General Fund to Mickelson Road Fund:  In 2006 the City 

entered into an agreement with the developers of Kelly Point Addition to escrow street assessment funds for the 

improvement of Mickelson Road from Patrick Ave and to the east.  Now that the Mickelson Road project is 

complete these escrowed funds, which were deposited into a separate account with the City, need to be transferred 

to the Mickelson Road project fund to be applied to the project costs.  Resolution 2019-14 authorizes the transfer 

of these funds.  A motion was made by Kuehl, second by Brenneman to approve Resolution 2019-14 Transfer 

Escrow Funds from General Fund to Mickelson Road Fund – Jones abstained with all others voting yes, motion 

carried. 

• Review Draft of Resolution 2019-15 Amended General Assessment Policy:  A draft of Resolution 2019-15 was 

reviewed by the council.  This resolution updates the City’s general assessment policy by clarifying the assessment 

rate for different improvements and adding a section that states the payment due date to the City before an 

assessment would be sent on to the County.  It was the consensus of the council to move forward with these 

updates as presented and have this resolution on the next agenda. 

 

REPORTS: 

• Sheriff’s Department Report:  Deputy Phil Ryan was present to give an update on recent activities within the 

city.  For the month of October there were 275 calls for service.  An update was provided on a recent issue at the 

school.  The speed limits at certain areas of town was discussed.  



• Chamber & Economic Development Director Report:  Director Jesse Fonkert was present to provide the 

council an overview of the HADF’s Envision 2024 Campaign, of which a draft was provided to the council for 

their review.  Fonkert extended an invitation to the council to the annual meetings of the Minnehaha County 

Economic Development Assoc on Nov 7th and the Hartford Area Development Assoc on Nov 13th.  The City of 

Hartford is a finalist for the Community Innovation Award, which will be awarded at the MCEDA annual meeting.  

On behalf of the group working on the dog park project, Fonkert asked the council their thoughts on the group 

having a booth at Hometown Christmas to gather public comment/input in regard to Hartford creating a dog park.  

The council felt this was a good idea.       

• Engineer Report:  Mitch Mergen was present to provide engineer updates.  Mickelson Road Improvements –  

The contractor continues to work on punch list items.  Pay application #15 for work completed to date was 

presented to the council.  A motion was made by Jones, second by Monahan to approve pay application #15 to 

Soukup Construction, Inc. in the amount of $69,415.73 – all votes yes, motion carried. Vandemark Roadway 

Improvements – The project is substantially complete and punch list items are being addressed.  Pay application 

#6, which was tabled at the last meeting until items were addressed by the contractor, and #7 for work completed 

to date was presented to the council.  A motion was made by Brenneman, second by Kuehl to approve pay 

application #6 to Soukup Construction, Inc. in the amount of $179,923.35 – all votes yes, motion carried.  A 

motion was made by Brenneman, second by Nelson to approve pay application #7 to Soukup Construction, Inc. in 

the amount of $62,567.93 – all votes yes, motion carried.  Industrial Park Sanitary Sewer Extension – With one 

easement left to obtain, engineers are hoping to bid the project in Jan/Feb 2020.  9th Street Improvements – 

Construction documents are being reviewed and updated for bidding.  Discussion on the best time to bid the 

project was held.  A motion was made by Brenneman, second by Kuehl to bid the project in Jan 2020 – Monahan 

voted no with all others voting yes, motion carried.      

• Public Works Report:  Public Works Superintendent Craig Wagner’s report was provided to the council. 

Highlights include:   

Streets –  Wagner will be compiling the information for next year’s slurry seal project, which is due to the City of 

Sioux Falls by Dec 20th.  Staff continues to work on prepping the  the ’14 Ford replacement truck for service.  

Once complete, they will work on replacing the service box on the Dodge truck.  Blading and sweeping are being 

done as needed.  The sidewalk repairs along Mickelson Road for this year is complete.     

Water – The contractor has finished the water main in Knapps Landing.  Samples have been taken and passed. 

Sewer – Staff will be rebuilding a pump at the main lift station next week.  The 4G updated dialer has been 

installed and activated.  At the lagoons, water is being moved from pond #2 to #3.  Hoping to discharge one more 

time this fall. 

Parks –  Restroom have been closed and winterized for the season.  Work continues on picking up leaves. 

Downtown – The new light poles have arrived.  Staff is planning on installing them in the coming weeks.   

• Finance Officer Report: City Finance Officer Wilber’s report was provided to the council.  Items included a 

summary of revenues received in October along with an overview of the city’s cash balances, revenues and 

expenses through September.  The November calendar of events was provided. 

• City Administrator Report:  City Administrator Sidel’s report was provided to the council. Sidel provided an 

update on items that need to be completed yet in regard to both the Mickelson Rd and Vandemark Ave street 

projects.  Staff met with engineers to review the City’s CIP.  Updates will be made and then presented to the 

council.  The City is part of the Sioux Falls Metropolitan Organization.  Every 5 year there is a review/update of 

their long-range transportation plan.  Sidel has been asked to sit on an advisory committee for this plan.  It will 

require her to attend a few meetings.  Sidel thanked the council for being part of the Joint Jurisdiction meeting that 

was held on Oct 29th.  The P&Z Board will be deciding on a date in January to hold a second meeting.  At their 

Nov 12th meeting the P&Z Board will reviewing an annexation petition on a parcel owned by Hartford Township.  

The title insurance on the City owned lot at 1st St & Menth St has been received and is being reviewed by the City 

Attorney.  Once approved, we will move forward with the warranty deed that will transfer the lot to the HADF.  

The Softball Assoc has ordered the new scoreboard for the park.  The City continue to advertise for snow removal 

help.  An update was provided on ICAP and the management of the transit bus.  ICAP will no longer be managing 

the program.  It will now be under ROCS.    

   

OLD BUSINESS:   

• Discuss Park Recreation Department:  Mayor Menning address the council about possibly implementing a park 

board.  The thought was that this board would work with the community, Hartford Area Sports & Rec and other 

sporting associations/groups to come up with ideas/plans that would expand and grow the sports & rec programs in 

Hartford.  This board would be the link between these groups/individuals and the city council, bringing ideas 

forward for consideration.  If it was determined that a Director position would be needed, the thought is that this 

position would be a City employee who would report and/or work closely with this board.  Information was 



provided on some other area towns that have park boards.  It was the consensus of the council to research this idea 

further.  Sidel will gather more information to be presented at the next meeting.    

• Discuss Community Engagement Meeting:  At the Oct 1st meeting the council gave support for the City to host a 

community engagement meeting.  A date of Jan 16th at 7pm was set.  Items such as location, meeting format, 

topics, etc. have yet to be decided. 

 

NEW BUSINESS:   

• Review/Approve Surplus List:  Wagner is requesting to surplus the 1979 Boom Truck and to sell at auction.  The 

City no longer uses this truck and no long wants to invest the money for needed repairs.  A motion was made by 

Jones, second by Nelson the approve the surplus of the 1979 Boom Truck and authorize City staff to sell via 

auction or whatever means they see fit – all voted yes, motion carried. 

 

CORRESPONDENCE:  None.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION:  A motion was made Nelson, second by Jones to enter executive session pursuant to SDCL 1-

25-2 (1) for personnel at 8:47pm – all voted yes, motion carried.   

 

Minutes recorded by Finance Officer Karen Wilber. 

  

I, the undersigned, Karen Wilber, Finance Officer in and for the City of Hartford, South Dakota, do hereby certify that the 

above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of the minutes which is on file at the Municipal Finance Office. 

 

 

____________________________________                             

Karen Wilber, Finance Officer 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION:  A motion was made by Brenneman, second by Kuehl to exit executive session at 9:44pm – all 

voted yes, motion carried.  

 

ADJOURNMENT:  A motion was made by Brenneman, second by Kuehl to adjourn at 9:45pm – all voted yes, motion 

carried. 
 

Minutes recorded by City Administrator Teresa Sidel. 

  

I, the undersigned, Teresa Sidel, City Administrator in and for the City of Hartford, South Dakota, do hereby certify that the 

above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of the minutes which is on file at the Municipal Finance Office. 

 

 

____________________________________                             

Teresa Sidel, City Administrator 

 

 

 

 

 



1Checking

1Checking Fund: GENERAL FUND101

131.04OCT 2019 - USAGE CHARGE101 4142 424

281.57NOV 2019 RENTAL - COPIER &
6 PRINTERS

101 4142 434

11/04/2019 412.61ABBUSINESS A&B BUSINESS, INC. IN670327

412.61Vendor Total:

113.00PORTABLE TOILET RENT -
DUMPSITE

101 4521 424

10/18/2019 113.00A1 A-1 PORTABLE TOILETS 48486

84.75PORTABLE TOILET RENT -
DUMPSITE FINAL

101 4521 424

11/15/2019 84.75A1 A-1 PORTABLE TOILETS 48853

197.75Vendor Total:

47.769/24 P&Z MINUTES101 4652 423

79.7010/8 P&Z MINUTES101 4652 423

9.80PUB NOT - JT JURISDICTION
INPUT MTG

101 4652 423

9.80PUB NOT - ANNEXATION OF
TOWNSHIP PARCEL

101 4652 423

7.77PUB NOT - JT JURISDICTION
INPUT MTG

101 4652 423

10.48PUB NOT - YARD WASTE SITE101 4521 423

90.00500 WINDOW ENVELOPES101 4142 426

120.001000 SHEETS LETTERHEAD101 4142 426

64.00EMPLOYMENT ADS - SNOW
REMOVAL HELP

101 4142 423

132.9410/1 CC MINUTES101 4142 423

140.8510/15 CC MINUTES101 4142 423

29.07RES 2019-10101 4142 423

28.05RES 2019-11101 4142 423

29.07RES 2019-12101 4142 423

28.73RES 2019-13101 4142 423

96.00EMPLOYMENT ADS - SNOW
REMOVAL HELP

101 4142 423

24.34SEPT PAYROLL REPORT101 4142 423

5.75PUB NOT - SNOW ALERT101 4311 423

10/31/2019 954.11ANDERSONP ANDERSON PUBLICATIONS, INC. 86816

954.11Vendor Total:

28.12NOT OF JT JURIS PUBLIC
INPUT MEET 10/29

101 4652 423

10/31/2019 28.12ARGUSLEAD ARGUS LEADER 2906792

28.12Vendor Total:

55.00REGISTRATION OF DOMAIN NAME101 4142 434 1

10/04/2019 55.00AVENET AVENET, LLC INV9103

55.00Vendor Total:

City of Hartford Page: 1

11/15/2019 12:09 PM

CITY COUNCIL BILL REPORT-MONTHLY

User ID: WILBER

Account Number

InvoiceInvoice
Date

Amount

Description Amount

Vendor NameVendor ID

10/17/2019 3,340.00BEAVER BEAVERBUILT, INC. 5314



420.003 SKID LOADER BUCKET PLATES101 4311 426

1,840.004 LONG SKID SET FOR SNOW
PUSHER

101 4311 426

480.003 SKID SETS FOR SKID LOADER
SNOW BLOWER

101 4311 426

600.0012 LONG PLATES FOR
MAINTAINER

101 4311 426

162.50FABRICATE/INSTALL BUMPER
FOR '14 FORD

101 4311 434

11/06/2019 162.50BEAVER BEAVERBUILT, INC. 5332

3,502.50Vendor Total:

1,086.12MALIBU AIRBAG REPAIRS101 4311 425

11/14/2019 1,086.12BILLION BILLION MOTORS, INC. 344617

1,086.12Vendor Total:

32.79W/S-OLD SHOP101 4192 428

74.72W/S-NEW MAINT SHOP101 4192 428

42.97W/S-CITY HALL101 4192 428

35.32W/S-TURTLE CREEK RR101 4521 428

39.14W/S-PARK HANDICAP RR101 4521 428

20.57W/S-SPORTS COMPLEX101 4521 428

10/28/2019 245.51CTYHART CITY OF HARTFORD 10282019
STMT

245.51Vendor Total:

83.58OCT 2019 MILEAGE101 4652 427

10/31/2019 83.58CLARPAUL CLARKE, PAUL OCTOBER 2019

83.58Vendor Total:

64.27FUEL - PARKS101 4521 426

404.00FUEL - STREETS101 4311 426

11/01/2019 468.27COFFEECUP COFFEE CUP FUEL STOPS - AUTO PMTS 110119 STMT

468.27Vendor Total:

348.00CONCRETE MICKELSON RD
SIDEWALK REPAIRS

101 4311 425 2

10/08/2019 348.00COLTONREDI COLTON REDI-MIX, INC. 33196

348.00Vendor Total:

181.26ASPHALT FOR STREEET PATCH101 4311 4251

10/31/2019 181.26CONCRE CONCRETE MATERIALS 99164

181.26Vendor Total:

1,500.00SERVICE BOX FOR '14 FORD
PICKUP

101 4311 434

09/27/2019 1,500.00CUSTTRUC CUSTOM TRUCK EQUIPMENT, INC. EP7210

1,500.00Vendor Total:

1,615.00EARLY CODE VIOLATION101 4652 429

08/14/2019 1,615.00EASTGA EASTGATE TOWING & STORAGE 145270

City of Hartford Page: 2

11/15/2019 12:09 PM

CITY COUNCIL BILL REPORT-MONTHLY

User ID: WILBER

Account Number

InvoiceInvoice
Date

Amount

Description Amount

Vendor NameVendor ID

09/16/2019 807.50EASTGA EASTGATE TOWING & STORAGE 145271



807.50MATTHIES CODE VIOLATION101 4652 429

2,422.50Vendor Total:

675.00DIESEL FUEL101 4311 426

10/26/2019 675.00FARMMERC FARMERS & MERCHANTS CO-OP OIL CO. 18964

675.00Vendor Total:

53.25IT SERVICE - BOX101 4142 422 2

10/28/2019 53.25FIRSBANK FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA 102819 STATE

49.50MICROSOFT - OFFICE 365
SUBSCRIPTIONS

101 4142 422 2

24.00MICROSOFT - EMAIL ACCOUNTS101 4142 422 2

25.991 CASE TO HOLD DISC GOLF
SCORECARDS

101 4521 426

53.833 CASES TO HOLD BIKE REC
BROCHURES

101 4521 426

10/28/2019 153.32FIRSBANK FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA 102819 STMT

206.57Vendor Total:

46.00REIMB MEALS - MACE BOARD
RETREAT

101 4142 427

94.08REIMB ROOM - MACE BOARD
RETREAT

101 4142 427

11/07/2019 140.08FONKJES FONKERT, JESSE REIMB TRAVEL

140.08Vendor Total:

930.00SEPT - PHONE
CALLS/EMAILS/MISC WORK

101 4142 422

713.10SEPT - ATTEND
MEETINGS/EXP/MILEAGE

101 4142 422

10/14/2019 1,643.10FRIEBE FRIEBERG, NELSON & ASK, LLP 64714

195.00OCT - EARLEY ABATEMENT CASE101 4142 422

30.00OCT -  REVIEW AGENDA101 4142 422

11/12/2019 225.00FRIEBE FRIEBERG, NELSON & ASK, LLP 64944

1,868.10Vendor Total:

45.05PHONE-OFFICE FAX LINE101 4192 428

54.25PHONE-OFFICE LINE 2101 4192 428

62.43PHONE-CHAMBER/EDD101 4192 428

155.73PHONE-OFFICE LINE
1/INTERNET

101 4192 428

49.03PHONE-OFFICE LINE 3101 4192 428

116.25PHONE-CITY SHOP/INTERNET101 4192 428

11/01/2019 482.74GOLDENWEST GOLDEN WEST TELECOMMUNICATIONS
COOPERATIVE, INC.

11012019
STATE

482.74Vendor Total:

142.08GRAVEL FOR STREETS101 4311 4261

10/21/2019 142.08GREABEAR GREAT BEAR SAND AND GRAVEL, LLC 13763

142.08Vendor Total:

City of Hartford Page: 3

11/15/2019 12:09 PM

CITY COUNCIL BILL REPORT-MONTHLY

User ID: WILBER

Account Number

InvoiceInvoice
Date

Amount

Description Amount

Vendor NameVendor ID

11/08/2019 138.00GROCINK GROCOTT INK & THREAD 11268



138.006 TEES - HANISCH101 4311 426

138.00Vendor Total:

2.00PARKS - FASTENERS101 4521 426

49.98PARKS - 2 BAGS MOUSE KILLER101 4521 426

216.98STREETS - SUBMERSIBLE
PUMP/DISCHARGE KIT

101 4311 426

25.12STREETS - FASTENERS101 4311 426

21.05STREETS - FASTENERS/LUMBER101 4311 426

8.58STREETS - DUCT TAPE101 4311 426

14.98STREETS - GAS CYLINDER/GALV
STRAP

101 4311 426

33.58SHOP - 2 PAIR GLOVES101 4192 426

14.99SHOP - TAPE MEASURE101 4192 426

3.98PUB BLDG - 2 KEYS FOR
SWENSON PARK SHED

101 4192 426

139.80REBAR - MICKELSON RD
SIDEWALK REPAIR

101 4311 425 2

964.62REBAR - MICKELSON RD
SIDEWALK REPAIR

101 4311 425 2

180.00REBAR - MICKELSON RD
SIDEWALK REPAIR

101 4311 425 2

69.90REBAR - MICKELSON RD
SIDEWALK REPAIR

101 4311 425 2

69.90REBAR - MICKELSON RD
SIDEWALK REPAIR

101 4311 425 2

10/31/2019 1,815.46HARTF9 HARTFORD BUILDING CENTER, INC. 10312019
STMT

1,815.46Vendor Total:

506.15SEAL/PAINT BOX FOR '14 FORD
PICKUP

101 4311 434

10/25/2019 506.15HARTF1 HARTFORD'S BEST PAINT AND BODY 7812

506.15Vendor Total:

1,044.5436 VARIOUS STREET SIGNS101 4311 426 2

11/05/2019 1,044.54LYLESI LYLE SIGNS, INC. 1467460

1,044.54Vendor Total:

77.19SHOP WELDING SUPPLIES101 4192 426

10/31/2019 77.19MATHLINW MATHESON TRI-GAS INC 51535102

77.19Vendor Total:

710.002 POOL LIFT COVERS101 4511 426

11/13/2019 710.00MCRPOO MC&R POOLS, INC. 1192540-IN

710.00Vendor Total:

32.94PARKS - 6 ROLLS ELECTRICAL
TAPE

101 4521 426

10/28/2019 32.94MENARDW MENARDS - SIOUX FALLS WEST 17481

32.94Vendor Total:

City of Hartford Page: 4

11/15/2019 12:09 PM

CITY COUNCIL BILL REPORT-MONTHLY

User ID: WILBER

Account Number

InvoiceInvoice
Date

Amount

Description Amount

Vendor NameVendor ID

10/24/2019 98.98MIDAME MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY 10242019
STATE



8.00GAS-POOL101 4511 428

50.00GAS-POOL101 4511 428

8.74GAS-NEW SHOP101 4192 428

10.22GAS-OLD SHOP101 4192 428

22.02GAS-CITY HALL101 4192 428

98.98Vendor Total:

45,136.004TH QRT CONTRACT101 4211 422

10/18/2019 45,136.00MINNE4 MINNEHAHA COUNTY SHERIFF 101819 STMT

45,136.00Vendor Total:

86.04BACKUP LIGHTS & WIRING -
'14 FORD

101 4311 426

10/22/2019 86.04NAPA NAPA AUTO PARTS OF HARTFORD 125416

55.94BACKUP LIGHTS - '14 FORD101 4311 426

10/22/2019 55.94NAPA NAPA AUTO PARTS OF HARTFORD 125447

33.29NEW LED LICENSE KIT - '14
FORD PICKUP

101 4311 426

161.37LIGHT REPAIR PARTS ON
STREET EQUIPMENT

101 4311 425

10/25/2019 194.66NAPA NAPA AUTO PARTS OF HARTFORD 125619

363.63REPLACE BATTERIES -
STERLING DUMP TRUCK

101 4311 425

10/29/2019 363.63NAPA NAPA AUTO PARTS OF HARTFORD 125791

272.58TOOLS TO STOCK NEW '14 FORD
TRUCK

101 4311 426

10/30/2019 272.58NAPA NAPA AUTO PARTS OF HARTFORD 125821

35.68STREET DEPT - SOCKET/U-
JOINT

101 4311 426

10/30/2019 35.68NAPA NAPA AUTO PARTS OF HARTFORD 125832

4.29STREET DEPT - FUNNEL101 4311 426

34.19REFLECTOR/ADAPTER WIRE -
NEW '14 TRUCK

101 4311 426

10/31/2019 38.48NAPA NAPA AUTO PARTS OF HARTFORD 125897

5.56ELECTRICAL FOR LIGHTS - '14
FORD

101 4311 426

11/05/2019 5.56NAPA NAPA AUTO PARTS OF HARTFORD 126210

47.24WIPER BLADES - '11 FORD
TRUCK

101 4311 426

11/06/2019 47.24NAPA NAPA AUTO PARTS OF HARTFORD 126267

333.12HOSE/FITTINGS/FLUID - DUMP
TRUCK REPAIRS

101 4311 425

11/06/2019 333.12NAPA NAPA AUTO PARTS OF HARTFORD 126311

242.78SEAT COVERS FOR '14 FOD
PICKUP

101 4311 426

11/08/2019 242.78NAPA NAPA AUTO PARTS OF HARTFORD 126403

68.70OIL FOR SKID LOADER OIL
CHANGES

101 4311 425

11/12/2019 68.70NAPA NAPA AUTO PARTS OF HARTFORD 126620

99.28HYDROLIC FLUID FOR
EQUIPMENT

101 4311 426

11/12/2019 99.28NAPA NAPA AUTO PARTS OF HARTFORD 126629

City of Hartford Page: 5

11/15/2019 12:09 PM

CITY COUNCIL BILL REPORT-MONTHLY

User ID: WILBER

Account Number

InvoiceInvoice
Date

Amount

Description Amount

Vendor NameVendor ID



25.10PARTS FOR MALIBU REPAIRS101 4311 425

11/14/2019 25.10NAPA NAPA AUTO PARTS OF HARTFORD 126772

1,868.79Vendor Total:

748.44PARK FOR STERLING DUMP
TRUCK

101 4311 425

11/12/2019 748.44NORTH2 NORTHERN TRUCK EQUIPMENT
CORPORATION

INV031488

748.44Vendor Total:

22.45MONEY ORDER - TITLE WORK
'14 FORD TRUCK

101 4142 426

11/14/2019 22.45PETTY PETTY CASH 11142019
VOUCHER

22.45Vendor Total:

24.50PARTS FOR BACKHOE REPAIRS101 4311 425

10/11/2019 24.50POWERPLAN POWERPLAN P15606

24.50Vendor Total:

10.99COFFEE FOR SHOP101 4192 426

185.33OFFICE SUPPLIES101 4142 426

10.99COFFEE FOR OFFICE101 4142 426

10/23/2019 207.31QUILL QUILL CORPORATION 2134185

33.99DIAL HAND SOAP101 4142 426

10/24/2019 33.99QUILL QUILL CORPORATION 2152839

42.99OFFICE SUPPLIES101 4142 426

10/24/2019 42.99QUILL QUILL CORPORATION 2152840

284.29Vendor Total:

121.89WAGNER ROOM - ANNUAL CONF101 4311 427

10/10/2019 121.89RAMKABER RAMKOTA HOTEL 264735

121.89MENNNG ROOM - ANNUAL CONF101 4121 427

10/10/2019 121.89RAMKABER RAMKOTA HOTEL 264736

243.78Vendor Total:

507.70YARD WASTE DUMPSTERS101 4521 428

10/10/2019 507.70RBS RBS SANITATION, INC. 101019 STMT

465.90YARD WASTE DUMPSTERS101 4521 428

10/25/2019 465.90RBS RBS SANITATION, INC. 102519 STMT

927.20YARD WASTE DUMPSTERS101 4521 428

10/31/2019 927.20RBS RBS SANITATION, INC. 103119 STMT

885.20YARD WASTE DUMPSTERS101 4521 428

11/05/2019 885.20RBS RBS SANITATION, INC. 110519 STMT

2,786.00Vendor Total:

70.00RANDOM - VOTH101 4142 415

10/31/2019 70.00SANFORD SANFORD HEALTH OCCUPATIONAL
MEDICINE CLINIC

509434

70.00Vendor Total:

City of Hartford Page: 6

11/15/2019 12:09 PM

CITY COUNCIL BILL REPORT-MONTHLY

User ID: WILBER

Account Number

InvoiceInvoice
Date

Amount

Description Amount

Vendor NameVendor ID



45.33SALES TAX DUE - OCTOBER101 4142 4540

10/31/2019 45.33SDDEP2 SD DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE - AUTO
PMTS

10/2019
SALES

45.33Vendor Total:

592.002020 W/C RENEWAL - PUB BLDG101 4192 421

774.002020 W/C RENEWAL - OFFICE101 4142 421

3,430.002020 W/C RENEWAL - STREETS101 4311 421

324.002020 W/C RENEWAL - PARK101 4521 421

1,050.002020 W/C RENEWAL - PARK P/T101 4521 421

491.002020 W/C RENEWAL - POOL101 4511 421

907.002020 W/C RENEWAL - POOL P/T101 4511 421

427.002020 W/C RENEWAL - PARK REC101 4512 421

249.002020 W/C RENEWAL - BLDG
INSP

101 4652 421

10/15/2019 8,244.00SDMLWORK SDML WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUND 18264

8,244.00Vendor Total:

218.70ANIMAL CONTROL - SEPT101 4412 422

10/03/2019 218.70SFHUMA SF AREA HUMANE SOCIETY 4022

15.40ANIMAL CONTROL - OCT101 4412 422

11/08/2019 15.40SFHUMA SF AREA HUMANE SOCIETY 4046

234.10Vendor Total:

470.00AERATE BALL FIELDS101 4521 425

10/21/2019 470.00SHAMPROP SHAMROCK PROPERTY MANAGEMENT, LLC 1467

470.00Vendor Total:

60.00OCTOBER CELL PHONE
REIMBURSEMENT

101 4142 428

49.14MILEAGE - BROOKINGS
PLANNERS CONF

101 4142 427

10/31/2019 109.14SIDETERE SIDEL, TERESA 10312019
VOUCHER

109.14Vendor Total:

5,050.0010 LIGHTPOLES/BASES FOR
DOWNTOWN

101 4311 439

10/23/2019 5,050.00SIGNSTREET SIGNATURE STREETSCAPES 11987

5,050.00Vendor Total:

134.55IT MAINT SERVICE - NOV 2019101 4142 422 2

11/01/2019 134.55SFNETWORKS SIOUX FALLS NETWORKS 10458

134.55Vendor Total:

58.98ELEC-TAMMEN WEATHER SIREN101 4192 428

156.59ELEC-NEW CITY SHOP101 4192 428

100.44ELEC-OLD CITY SHOP101 4192 428

168.04ELEC-CITY HALL101 4192 428

76.45ELEC-STORAGE BLD BY MEM
PARK

101 4192 428

City of Hartford Page: 7

11/15/2019 12:09 PM

CITY COUNCIL BILL REPORT-MONTHLY

User ID: WILBER

Account Number

InvoiceInvoice
Date

Amount

Description Amount

Vendor NameVendor ID

10/29/2019 6,119.55SIOUXV SIOUX VALLEY ENERGY 10292019
STATE



66.04ELEC-TURTLE CREEK RR101 4521 428

162.88ELEC-PARK SHELTERS101 4521 428

109.10ELEC-SPORTS COMPLEX101 4521 428

64.33ELEC-DAVID ROE FIELDS -
NORTH LIGHTS

101 4521 428

69.10ELEC-DAVID ROE FIELDS -
EAST LIGHTS

101 4521 428

83.43ELEC-DAVID ROE FIELDS -
WEST LIGHTS

101 4521 428

72.73ELEC-POOL101 4511 428

50.48ELEC-CROSSING LTS S OF HS101 4311 428

215.31ELEC-BILLBOARDS101 4311 428

4,371.52ELEC-STREET LIGHTS101 4311 428

50.48ELEC-CROSSING LTS N OF HS101 4311 428

64.33ELEC-WELCOME SIGN-HWY
38/WESTERN

101 4311 428

78.36ELEC-WELCOME SIGN HWY 38101 4311 428

50.96ELEC-NEW CROSSWALK SERVICE101 4311 428

50.00ELEC-WELCOME SIGN
WESTERN/DIAMOND TRL

101 4311 428

6,119.55Vendor Total:

509.25SEALER FOR NEW MICKELSON RD
SIDEWALKS

101 4311 425 2

10/28/2019 509.25STANHO STAN HOUSTON EQUIPMENT COMPANY,
INC.

01 825340

509.25Vendor Total:

5,116.67MATTHIES CODE VIOLATION101 4652 429

11/06/2019 5,116.67STERCLEA STERI-CLEAN 9845

5,116.67Vendor Total:

258.60BUSS ACCTG SITE PLAN REVIEW101 4652 422

258.60HAINES ADN (COUNTY) PLAT
REVIEW

101 4652 422

1,647.60KNAPPS LAND
INSPECTIONS/TESTING

101 4652 422

86.20COFFEE CUP SITE PLAN REVIEW101 4652 422

172.40SCHWARTZLE APARTMENT
DRAINAGE

101 4652 422

1,034.40WESTERN MEADOWS PLAN REVIEW101 4652 422

991.52MEETINGS/REPORTS/MILEAGE101 4652 422

144.20TURTLE CREEK HIGHLANDS SITE
INSPECTION

101 4652 422

11/08/2019 4,593.52STOCKW STOCKWELL ENGINEERS 10083

836.70MEETINGS/REPORTS/MILEAGE101 4652 422

760.00DOG PARK PLANNING101 4652 422

(760.00)DOG PARK PLANNING - DONATED101 4652 422

1,372.20TURTLE CREEK HIGHLANDS PLAT
REVEIW/TEST

101 4652 422

517.20COFFEE CUP SITE PLAN REVIEW101 4652 422

86.20SCHWARTZLE APARTMENT
DRAINAGE

101 4652 422

City of Hartford Page: 8

11/15/2019 12:09 PM

CITY COUNCIL BILL REPORT-MONTHLY

User ID: WILBER

Account Number

InvoiceInvoice
Date

Amount

Description Amount

Vendor NameVendor ID

10/11/2019 3,243.30STOCKW STOCKWELL ENGINEERS 9980



86.20SCHWARTZLE APARTMENT
DRAINAGE

101 4652 422

431.00S MAIN ADDN -
INSPECTION/PLAT REVIEW

101 4652 422

7,836.82Vendor Total:

26.94COOKIES FOR JT JURISDICTION
INPUT MTG

101 4652 426

73.32SHOP - P
TOWELS/BATTERIES/LAUNDRY
SOAP

101 4192 426

14.88OFFICE - POP/GLASS CLEANER101 4142 426

11/01/2019 115.14SUNSHINE SUNSHINE FOODS 110119 STMT

115.14Vendor Total:

22.60LAWN MOWER TIRE REPAIR101 4521 425

10/12/2019 22.60TAMMENAUTO TAMMEN AUTO & TIRE, INC. 159808

22.60Vendor Total:

40.01CELL SERV-LANDFILL CAMERA101 4521 428

53.46CELLS-BP & CODE ENF101 4652 428

44.61CELL-CHAMBER/EDD101 4142 428

162.87CELLS-PUBLIC WORKS101 4192 428

26.73CELL-MINN SHERIFF101 4211 428

44.61CELL-REC DIRECTOR101 4512 428

10/22/2019 372.29VERIZO VERIZON WIRELESS 9840654780

372.29Vendor Total:

26.88OCT MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT101 4652 427

10/31/2019 26.88VOTHBRYA VOTH, BRYAN 10312019
VOUCHER

26.88Vendor Total:

105,013.73Fund Total:

1Checking Fund: MICKELSON ROAD PROJECT505

30.00DELAYED STREET ASSESS-
MICKELSON RD PROJ

505 5501 429

30.00DELAYED SEWER ASSESS-
MICKELSON RD PROJ

505 5501 429

30.00DELAYED WATER ASSESS-
MICKELSON RD PROJ

505 5501 429

11/01/2019 90.00MINNDEEDS MINNEHAHA COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS 11012019
STMT

90.00Vendor Total:

4,350.40MICKELSON RD - CONSTRUCTION505 5501 422

11/08/2019 4,350.40STOCKW STOCKWELL ENGINEERS 10025

6,173.20MICKELSON RD - CONSTRUCTION505 5501 422

10/11/2019 6,173.20STOCKW STOCKWELL ENGINEERS 9908

10,523.60Vendor Total:

10,613.60Fund Total:

1Checking Fund: VANDEMARK STREET PROJECT506

City of Hartford Page: 9

11/15/2019 12:09 PM

CITY COUNCIL BILL REPORT-MONTHLY

User ID: WILBER

Account Number

InvoiceInvoice
Date

Amount

Description Amount

Vendor NameVendor ID

11/01/2019 5,025.00MEIERH MEIERHENRY SARGENT LLP 41606



5,025.00BOND COUNSEL FEE -
VANDEMARK AVE PROJ

506 5501 429

5,025.00Vendor Total:

30.00OTOOLE EASEMENT-VANDEMARK
AVE PROJ

506 5501 429

11/01/2019 30.00MINNDEEDS MINNEHAHA COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS 11012019
STMT

30.00Vendor Total:

2,919.00VANDEMARK AVE IMPROVEMENT -
CONSTRUCTION

506 5501 422

11/08/2019 2,919.00STOCKW STOCKWELL ENGINEERS 10031

14,966.76VANDEMARK AVE IMPROVEMENT -
CONSTRUCTION

506 5501 422

10/11/2019 14,966.76STOCKW STOCKWELL ENGINEERS 9911

17,885.76Vendor Total:

22,940.76Fund Total:

1Checking Fund: WATER FUND602

26.70OCT 2019 - FEE TO READ 60
METERS

602 4335 422

10/30/2019 26.70BADMET BADGER METER 80039553

26.70Vendor Total:

162.50FABRICATE/INSTALL BUMPER
FOR '14 FORD

602 4335 434

11/06/2019 162.50BEAVER BEAVERBUILT, INC. 5332

162.50Vendor Total:

174.00CITY WATER TESTS (OCT)602 4335 422

11/07/2019 174.00CTYSOOFALL CITY OF SIOUX FALLS 16213

174.00Vendor Total:

1,500.00SERVICE BOX FOR '14 FORD
PICKUP

602 4335 434

09/27/2019 1,500.00CUSTTRUC CUSTOM TRUCK EQUIPMENT, INC. EP7210

1,500.00Vendor Total:

677.48WATER DEPT SUPPLIES602 4334 426

10/18/2019 677.48DAKOTA DAKOTA SUPPLY GROUP, INC. F103945

931.29WATER DEPT SUPPLIES602 4334 426

10/18/2019 931.29DAKOTA DAKOTA SUPPLY GROUP, INC. F104022

1,608.77Vendor Total:

3.99UPS - SHIPPING FOR WATER
DEPT SAMPLES

602 4335 4261

10/28/2019 3.99FIRSBANK FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA 102819 STMT

3.99Vendor Total:

506.15SEAL/PAINT BOX FOR '14 FORD
PICKUP

602 4335 434

10/25/2019 506.15HARTF1 HARTFORD'S BEST PAINT AND BODY 7812

City of Hartford Page: 10

11/15/2019 12:09 PM

CITY COUNCIL BILL REPORT-MONTHLY

User ID: WILBER

Account Number

InvoiceInvoice
Date

Amount

Description Amount

Vendor NameVendor ID



506.15Vendor Total:

10,770.21BULK WATER PURCHASE602 4334 4261

11/01/2019 10,770.21MINNEH MINNEHAHA COMMUNITY WATER
CORPORATION

11012019
STATE

10,770.21Vendor Total:

150.36POSTAGE-OCTOBER W/S BILLS602 4335 4261

9.43POSTAGE-W/S DELINQUENT
LETTERS

602 4335 4261

11/14/2019 159.79PETTY PETTY CASH 11142019
VOUCHER

159.79Vendor Total:

181.00WATER SAMPLES602 4335 422

10/15/2019 181.00SDPUBHEA SD PUBLIC HEALTH LABORATORY 10590404

181.00Vendor Total:

1,465.002020 W/C RENEWAL - WATER602 4335 421

10/15/2019 1,465.00SDMLWORK SDML WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUND 18264

1,465.00Vendor Total:

254.47ELEC-N WATER TOWER/SIREN602 4332 428

10/29/2019 254.47SIOUXV SIOUX VALLEY ENERGY 10292019
STATE

254.47Vendor Total:

101.92W/S LOCATES (JUL-SEPT)602 4335 428

09/30/2019 101.92SDONECALL SOUTH DAKOTA ONE CALL SD19-2589

101.92Vendor Total:

16,914.50Fund Total:

1Checking Fund: SEWER FUND604

81.00WATER ANALYSIS604 6040 422

10/24/2019 81.00AMERENGI AMERICAN ENGINEERING TESTING, INC. 401696

81.00Vendor Total:

500.00REPAIR GLASS DOOR AT SEWER
PLANT

604 6040 425

11/11/2019 500.00AUTOGLAS AUTO GLASS EXPRESS, LLC M025635

500.00Vendor Total:

26.70OCT 2019 - FEE TO READ 60
METERS

604 6040 422

10/30/2019 26.70BADMET BADGER METER 80039553

26.70Vendor Total:

36.76W/S-SEWER PLANT604 6040 428

10/28/2019 36.76CTYHART CITY OF HARTFORD 10282019
STMT

36.76Vendor Total:

City of Hartford Page: 11

11/15/2019 12:09 PM

CITY COUNCIL BILL REPORT-MONTHLY

User ID: WILBER

Account Number

InvoiceInvoice
Date

Amount

Description Amount

Vendor NameVendor ID

10/31/2019 226.78HARTF9 HARTFORD BUILDING CENTER, INC. 10312019
STMT



226.78SEWER - SUBMERSIBLE
PUMP/HOSE

604 6040 426

226.78Vendor Total:

13.17GAS-SEWER PLANT604 6040 428

10/24/2019 13.17MIDAME MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY 10242019
STATE

13.17Vendor Total:

150.36POSTAGE-OCTOBER W/S BILLS604 6040 4261

9.42POSTAGE-W/S DELINQUENT
LETTERS

604 6040 4261

11/14/2019 159.78PETTY PETTY CASH 11142019
VOUCHER

159.78Vendor Total:

1,403.002020 W/C RENEWAL - SEWER604 6040 421

10/15/2019 1,403.00SDMLWORK SDML WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUND 18264

1,403.00Vendor Total:

1,129.04ELEC-MAIN LIFT STATION604 6040 428

1,820.46ELEC-WASTE WATER LAGOONS604 6040 428

77.22ELEC-SAGEHORN LIFT STATION604 6040 428

92.39ELEC-MICKELSON/HWY 38 LIFT
STATION

604 6040 428

10/29/2019 3,119.11SIOUXV SIOUX VALLEY ENERGY 10292019
STATE

3,119.11Vendor Total:

101.92W/S LOCATES (JUL-SEPT)604 6040 428

09/30/2019 101.92SDONECALL SOUTH DAKOTA ONE CALL SD19-2589

101.92Vendor Total:

5,668.22Fund Total:

161,150.81Checking Account Total:

City of Hartford Page: 12

11/15/2019 12:09 PM

CITY COUNCIL BILL REPORT-MONTHLY

User ID: WILBER

Account Number

InvoiceInvoice
Date

Amount

Description Amount

Vendor NameVendor ID



1Vendor CheckCheck Type:Payee Type:

Entity IDVoid DateCheck Number Void Check AmountEntity NameCheck Date Cleared

Checking Account ID:

10/16/2019 25,983.07SOUKUPX SOUKUP CONSTRUCTION, INC.43123

10/29/2019 200.00120MAINEVE 120 MAIN EVENTS, LLC43129

11/06/2019 179,923.35SOUKUP SOUKUP CONSTRUCTION, INC.43136

11/06/2019 62,567.93SOUKUP SOUKUP CONSTRUCTION, INC.43137

11/06/2019 69,415.73SOUKUP SOUKUP CONSTRUCTION, INC.43138

338,090.081 0.00 Total without Voids:Void Total:Checking Account ID:

338,090.08Check 0.00 Total without Voids:Void Total:Check Type Total:

338,090.08Vendor 0.00Void Total: Total without Voids:Payee Type Total:

338,090.080.00 Total without Voids:Void Total:Grand Total:

City of Hartford Page: 1

11/15/2019 12:14 PM

Check Register by Type

AP Prepaid Checks User ID: WILBER





NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Hartford City Council will hold a public hearing on 

November 19, 2019 at 7:05 p.m. in the City Council Room, located at 125 N. Main Avenue, to 

consider applications for the renewal of liquor/wine licenses for year 2020 to operate within the 

City of Hartford, South Dakota.  Applications have been received by the governing body and are 

filed in the Finance Office. 

 

Heart T Stop, Inc., (Heart T Stop), 201 E Highway 38.  Legal:  Tract 1 (EX H-1), Sunnyside 

Estates Addition.  Package Off Sale Liquor License 

Heart T Stop, Inc., (Heart T Stop), 201 E Highway 38.  Legal:  Tract 1 (EX H-1), Sunnyside 

Estates Addition.  Retail On-Off Sale Wine License  

120 Main Events, LLC, (120 Main Events), 120 N Main Avenue.  Legal:  Lots 10 and 11, 

Block 9, Hartford City Proper.  Retail On Sale Liquor License  

Dolgen Midwest, LLC, (Dollar General), 302 E Highway 38.  Legal:  Lot R-5 of Lots 10, 11 

and 12 of Smith and Grover’s Addition.   Retail On-Off Sale Wine License  

Kjellsen Enterprises, LLC, (South Bar), 107 S Main Avenue.  Legal:  Lots 6, 7, 8, and 9, Block 

3, Hartford City Proper.  Package Off Sale Liquor License 

Kjellsen Enterprises, LLC, (South Bar), 107 S Main Avenue.  Legal:  Lots 6, 7, 8, and 9, Block 

3, Hartford City Proper.  Retail On Sale Liquor License 

GL Management, LLC, (Central Valley Golf Course), 700 E Highway 38.  Legal:  Ranney's 

Tract 3 (EX Lot 1, EX H-1, and EX Central Valley Place Addition), NE¼ 22.102.51. Hartford 

City Unplatted.  Retail On Sale Liquor License 

Empire Productions, LLC, (Blue 42 Sports Grill), 1021 Diamond Circle.  Legal:  Lot 5A, 

Block, Interstate Inns Third Addition.  Retail On Sale Liquor License 

T&D Foods, Inc., (Hartford Steak Company), 709 N Mundt Avenue.  Legal:  Lot 1 (EX H-1), 

Block 2, Ginsbach Addition.  Retail On Sale Liquor License 

The Goat, LLC, (The Goat Bar and Grill), 116 W Highway 38.  Legal:  Lot 1A, Block, North 

Community Addition.  Full-Service Restaurant On Sale Liquor License 

Hartford Inns, LLC, (AmericInn Hotel),1031 Diamond Circle.  Legal:  Lot 1 of Lots 6A, 

Interstate Inns Third Addition.  Retail On-Off Sale Wine License  

Hartford Supermarket, Inc., (Sunshine Foods), 118 W Highway 38.  Legal:  Lot 2A (EX TR 

1), Block, North Community Addition.  Package Off Sale Liquor License  

CC&F Retail, Inc., (Coffee Cup Hartford), 1001 S Western Avenue.  Legal:  Ruud Tract 1, 

NE1/4, 28.102.51.  Package Off Sale Liquor License  

Buffalo Ridge Brewing Project, LLC, (Buffalo Ridge Brewery), 102 N Main Avenue.  Legal:  

Lot 1, 2 & 3, Block 9, Hartford City Proper.  Retail On-Off Sale Wine Liquor License 

 

Any persons and their attorneys may appear at said scheduled hearing and present objections to 

any or all the above applications. 

 

Dated this 7th of November 2019. 

Karen Wilber, Finance Officer 

























Prepared by: 

Teresa Sidel 

PO Box 727, Hartford, SD  57033 

605-528-6187 

 
 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION OF ANNEXATION #2019-17 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Hartford, South Dakota: 

 

WHEREAS, the Hartford Township, owner of the real property described as: 

 

South Four Hundred feet (S400’) of the West Three Hundred Fifty Feet (W350’) of the 

Southwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter (SW1/4NW1/4) of Section 15, Township 

102 North, Range 51 West of the 5th P.M. Minnehaha County, South Dakota. (Parcel 

#70966) 

 

AND WHEREAS, the Hartford Township having petitioned the Common Council of the 

City of Hartford for annexation of said area into the City, and said petition appearing in 

good form and in compliance with the requirements and provisions of SDCL 9-4-1, as 

amended, now, therefore, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Hartford, South Dakota, that 

the real property described above is hereby annexed into and incorporated within the 

municipal limits of the City of Hartford, South Dakota. 

 

DATED this 19th day of November, 2019 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Mayor Jeremy Menning 

 

 

 

 

(Seal) 

 

 

 

ATTEST:   

 

_______________________________________ 

Karen Wilber, City Finance Officer  



 

State of South Dakota, County of Minnehaha. 

On this the _____ day of November 2019, before me, Teresa Sidel, the undersigned 

officer, personally appeared Jeremy Menning, Mayor of Hartford City and Karen Wilber, 

Finance Officer, known to me or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is 

subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged that they executed the same for 

the purposes therein contained.  In witness where of I hereunto set my hand and official 

seal. 

 

 

_________________________________________         __________________________ 

Notary Public  (Teresa Sidel)                                            My commission expires:                                       

 

 

(seal) 

 

  



General Assessment Policy 1  

 

Resolution 2019-15 

CITY OF HARTFORD, SOUTH DAKOTA 

 

GENERAL ASSESSMENT POLICY 

(For Streets & Sidewalks, Water Mains, Sanitary Sewer) 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Hartford has established a General Assessment Policy; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Hartford desires to amend the General Assessment Policy; and 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to set the policy to provide fair adjustments to property owners, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED that: 

 

A. SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - GENERAL 

 

The special assessment rate for any street and sidewalk improvement shall be the actual 

cost of the improvement but is not to exceed $100.00 per lineal foot as computed per the 

City’s General Assessment Policy as described within. Sidewalks shall be considered as 

part of a street project for assessment purposes and the total assessment cost of both the 

street and sidewalk improvement shall not exceed $100.00 per lineal foot. 

 

The special assessment rates for any sanitary sewer improvements or water main 

improvements shall be the actual cost of the improvement per lineal foot as computed per 

the City’s General Assessment Policy as described within. If a sanitary sewer district is 

established and the cost is calculated on a per acre basis, then the actual cost of the 

sanitary sewer improvements will be divided upon a per acre basis. 

 

The cost of installing the improvement in front of, past or to any particular parcel of 

property is not the basis for assessment. 

 

All property within the assessment project, whether public or private property is assessed 

in the same manner. 

 

All footages are computed and recorded to the nearest tenth of a foot. Areas are 

computed and recorded to the nearest square foot. 

 

In general, the front footage is computed along property lines fronting and/or abutting on 

public street or right-of-way. Footage is not generally computed for utilities located 

within an easement unless the utility is located in the easement to specifically serve that 

property or the utility serves the property and the utility does not front on the property in 

public street or right-of-way. 



General Assessment Policy 2  

 

 

 

 

B. ASSESSSMENT DATES 
 

Once a project is substantially completed, the property owner will have until October 1st 

of the following year for payment to the City before an assessment roll will be passed and 

filed with the county assessor’s office. 

 
 

C. BASIC ASSESSMENT DATA REQUIRED FOR EACH PARCEL 

 

1. Adjusted Front Footage (Used to calculate the lineal footage for all frontage 

abutting streets and sidewalks, sanitary sewer, and water main improvements.) 

Adjusted front footage method involves adjustment of odd-shaped lots to an 

average frontage that would be equivalent to the frontage of a rectangular shaped 

lot of the same area and depth. 

 
 

D. DETAILS OF COMPUTING ADJUSTED FRONT FOOTAGE (See Exhibit A) 

 

1. Odd-Shaped Lots (A) 

 

For odd-shaped lots, such as exist on cul-de-sacs or triangular intersections, etc., 

the adjusted front footage is computed by dividing the area of the lot, up to a 

maximum distance of 150 feet from the street where the improvement is to be 

installed, by 150 (or by the average depth, if less than 150 feet). 

 

See Example 1(A), Exhibit A. 
 

2. Approximately Rectangular Lots (B) 

 

For a lot which is approximately rectangular, the adjusted front footage is 

computed by averaging the front and back sides of the lot. If the lot is deeper than 

150 feet, the width at the 150 foot depth is used for the back lot line. This method 

is used only where the divergence between front and rear lot lines is five feet or 

less. 

 

See Example 2 (B), Exhibit A. 
 

3. Rectangular Lots (C) 

 

For the normal rectangular lot, the adjusted front footage is the actual front 

footage of the lot. 



General Assessment Policy 3  

 

 
 

4. Shallow Lots (D) 

 

For rectangular lots less than 120 feet in depth, or irregular lots averaging less 

than 120 feet in depth, the adjusted front footage is determined by actual lot area 

divided by 120 feet. 

 

See Example 3(D), Exhibit A. 
 

5. Corner Lots or Multiple Frontage Lots (E) 

 

Corner lots with frontage on two or more streets are assessed for the sum of the 

actual or adjusted front footage on each street less a credit equal to the lesser of 

the smaller front footage or 25 feet. The 25' credit shall apply to the adjusted 

front footage of each individual side as included. Providing for a break to corner 

or multi frontage lots that have been assessed for 100% of their frontage for curb, 

gutter and asphalt on the first side for projects assessed since January 1997. The 

adjustment will provide up to a 50 foot break on the second side if they did not 

receive a break on the first side or a subsequent adjustment. 

 

See Example 4 (E), Exhibit A. 

 

6. Double Frontage Lots (F) 

 

Assessable front footage for double frontage lots is computed in like manner to 

corner lots. The adjusted front footage shall be the sum of the actual or adjusted 

front footage on each street less a credit equal to the lesser of the smaller front 

footage or 25 feet. The 25' credit shall apply to the adjusted front footage of each 

individual side as included. 

 

See Example 5 (F), Exhibit A. 

 

7. Neck Lots (G) 

 

Lots which have a small frontage on a street, with a narrow strip running back to a 

larger lot area, an adjusted frontage is calculated using method A, B, C or D on 

the portion of the lot being provided service through the narrow strip. 

 

See Example 6 (G), Exhibit A. 

 

8. Areas Partially Served by Utilities (H) 

 

For any tract or parcel which is only partially served, only that part so served will 



General Assessment Policy 4  

 

be assessed and computed as adjusted front footage for the particular project for 

which the assessment is figured. 

 

See Examples 7 (H) and 8 (H), Exhibit A. 

 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution is hereby adopted and effective from 

November 19, 2019 
 

 

 

 
Jeremy Menning, Mayor 

 

(seal) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 

Karen Wilber, Finance Officer 

 

 



 

RESOLUTION # 2019-16 

Transfer of Contingency Funds 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Hartford prepares and approves a budget each September for the 

following calendar year; and 

WHEREAS, the budget for 2019 contains a contingency fund of $50,000.00 that can be 

transferred to any general fund account by resolution of the City Council. 

THEREFORE, LET IT BE RESOLVED, that the following amounts be transferred from Contingency 

account #101-4115-429 to: 

          

    Finance Office                                   101-4142-411           Salaries – City Adm                 12,000.00 

                                                                 101-4142-411-14     Salaries-Chamber/Econ Dir    6,500.00 

                                                                 101-4142-4112        Salaries – Finance Off              5,500.00 

                                                                 101-4142-412          OASI (Taxes)                               1,800.00 

                                                                 101-4142-413          Retirement                                 1,440.00 

                101-4142-422          Prof. Services-Attorney         5,000.00 

                                                                 101-4142-422-2      Prof. Services-IT          1,000.00 

                                                                 101-4142-423          Publishing                                      500.00 

 

    Police Administration                     101-4211-422           Sheriff-Contract Hrs                  1,806.00  

                                                                101-4211-422202    Salaries-Daytime Cop                     16.00 

                                                                101-4211-428           Sheriff-cell phone               71.00 

      

 

    Streets                                               101-4311-411           Salaries-Streets                          8,000.00 

                                                                101-4311-412          OASI (Taxes)             620.00 

                                                                101-4311-413          Retirement                                      480.00 

                                                        

                                                                               Total              $44,733.00 

  

Dated this 19th day of November, 2019 

        
                                 ______________________________ 
        Jeremy Menning 
                     Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________                                                 (Seal) 
Karen Wilber 
Finance Officer                  



 

2019 Contingency Transfer - Explanation: 

(Resolution 2019-16) 

 
The city has $50,000.00 in our 2019 contingency account in the General Fund.  This amount can be used to 

cover unanticipated expenses or shortfalls in the general fund.   

 

This money can only be used for general fund expenses so any budget shortfalls in other funds (i.e.-water, 

sewer, 3rd penny, etc) need to be addressed with a supplemental appropriation, along with any major 

expenses in the general fund or items that were added by the city council over this past year after the 

budget was sent to the county.   

    

 In order to ensure enough budget funds until the end of the 2019 calendar year, I would like the council to 

approve the transfer of $44,733.00 from the contingency account to the follow general fund accounts (this 

still leaves a balance of $5,267.00 in the contingency account if something arises before the end of the 

year)…. 

 

 

Finance Office     

    Salaries – City Administrator                                                                                             12,000.00 

          *Shortfall in wages budgeted 

    Salaries – Chamber/Econ Dir                                                                                               6,500.00 

          *Shortfall in budget and increase in wage once moved to salary 

    Salaries – Finance officer                                                                                                     5,500.00 

          *Shortfall in wages budgeted 

    OASI (Payroll Taxes)                                                                                                           1,800.00 

          *Increase in payroll taxes needed due to increase in payroll amounts 

    Retirement                                                                                                                            1,440.00 

          *Increase in retirement amount needed due to increase in payroll amounts 

    Professional Services-Attorney         5,000.00 

          *Increase in services (2 code enforcement cases)     

   IT Services                                                                                                                            1,000.00 

          *Shortfall in budget due to unanticipated computer issues 

  Publishing             500.00 

          *Shortfall in budget 

    

        

Police Administration 

     Contract Hours                                                                                                                  1,806.00 

           *Shortfall in amount budgeted  

     Daytime Officer Hours            16.00 

           *Shortfall in amount budgeted 

      Sheriff-Cell Phone             71.00 

           *Shortfall in amount budgeted 

 

 

Streeets 

     Salaries                                                                                                                             8,000.00 

           *Shortfall in amount budgeted 

      OASI (Payroll Taxes)          620.00 

            *Increase in payroll taxes needed due to increase in payroll amounts 

      Retirement          480.00 

            *Increase in retirement amount needed due to increase in payroll amounts 

 

   

 

 

                                                                                      Total Transfer Amount            $44,733.00 



ORDINANCE NO. 680 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARTFORD, SD, AMENDING THE 2016 REVISED 

HARTFORD ZONING REGULATIONS BY AMENDING CHAPTER 7.02, COMMUNITY 

COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, CONDITIONAL USES; CHAPTER 9.02, CENTRAL BUSINESS 

DISTRICT, CONDITIONAL USES; AND CHAPTER 20.02, DEFINITIONS, DEFINITIONS. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF HARTFORD, SD: 

 

Section 1. That Chapter 7.02 of the 2016 Revised Hartford Zoning Regulations is hereby 

amended to include the following:    

 

Artisan Distillery 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.11, 19.01 

 

Section 2. That Chapter 9.02 of the 2016 Revised Hartford Zoning Regulations is hereby 

amended to include the following:    

 

Artisan Distillery 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.11, 19.01 

 

Section 3. That Chapter 20.02 of the 2016 Revised Hartford Zoning Regulations is hereby 

amended to include the following: 

 

ARTISAN DISTILLERY – A manufacturer which produces, rectifies, or blends distilled spirits, 

as defined in SDCL 35-1-1, in a total quantity not in excess of fifty thousand (50,000) gallons 

within a calendar year, where at least thirty percent (30%) of the raw materials, other than water, 

used in the finished product are grown or produced in South Dakota. (SDCL 35-13-13) 

 

 

Adopted this _________ day of ____________, 2019. 

 

____________________________ 

Jeremy Menning 

Mayor, City of Hartford  

 

ATTEST: 

     

______________________________ 

Karen Wilber 

Finance Officer, City of Hartford 

 

 

Seal 

 

 



First Reading: November 19, 2019 

Second Reading & Adoption: December 3, 2019 

Publication: December 12, 2019 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 



 

ORDINANCE #681 - SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARTFORD, SOUTH DAKOTA, PROVIDING FOR A 2019 

SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATION. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF HARTFORD, SOUTH DAKOTA THAT 

THE FOLLOWING SUM IS SUPPLEMENTALLY APPROPRIATED TO MEET THE OBLIGATIONS OF THE 

MUNICIPALITY: 

 

Pursuant to SDCL 9-21-7, a supplemental appropriation in the amount of 

$146,225.00 is hereby authorized.  Means of finance is the unassigned fund 

balance in the amount of $146,225.00 from the general fund reserve account to 

the annual budget of general fund.   

 

Fund 101 – General Fund 

 

  Expenditures            

   Finance Office-Professional Services                          $5,000.00  

   Finance Office-Supplies            $5,000.00 

   Finance Office-Other                                                $1,000.00 

   Fire Department-Equipment Replacement              $40,000.00 

   Streets-Surfacing            $21,250.00 

   Streets-Supplies          $856.00 

   Streets-Equipment             $5,000.00                       

   Parks-Repairs & Maintenance          $30,587.00 

   Parks-Capital Improvements           $34,032.00 

   Downtown Hartford-Capital Improvements          $3,500.00 

  Total Appropriation           $146,225.00 

   

  Means of Finance   

   Reserves-General Fund (101)                                       $146,225.00 

    

 

 

Pursuant to SDCL 9-21-7, a supplemental appropriation in the amount of 

$1,125,000.00 is hereby authorized.  Means of finance is the transfer in of 

unassigned fund balance in the amount of $653,000.00 from the general fund 

reserve account, the transfer in of unassigned fund balance in the amount of 

$232,000.00 from the water fund reserve account and the transfer in of 

unassigned fund balance in the amount of $240,000.00 from the sewer fund reserve 

account to the annual budget of the Mickelson Road Capital Project fund.   

 

Fund 505 – Mickelson Road Project 

 

  Expenditures  

    Mickelson Road-Streets                                           $653,000.00 

    Mickelson Road-Water          $232,000.00 

    Mickelson Road-Sewer                                             $240,000.00 

  Total Appropriations         $1,125,000.00 

     

   Means of Finance  

    Reserves–Transfer from General Fund (101)                        $653,000.00 

    Reserves–Transfer from Water Fund (602)                          $232,000.00 

    Reserves-Transfer from Sewer Fund (604)         $240,000.00 

                                                                   $1,125,000.00 

 



 

 

Pursuant to SDCL 9-21-7, a supplemental appropriation in the amount of 

$1,572,728.00 is hereby authorized.  Means of finance is sales tax bonds in the 

amount of $1,507,876.00 and the transfer in of unassigned fund balance in the 

amount of $64,852.00 from the general fund reserve account to the annual budget 

of the Vandemark Street Capital Project Fund.   

 

Fund 506 – Vandemark Street Project 

 

  Expenditures  

    Vandemark Street-Streets                            $1,032,728.00 

    Vandemark Street-Water          $190,000.00 

    Vandemark Street-Professional Services                 $250,000.00 

    Vandemark Street-Sewer                                           $100,000.00 

  Total Appropriations          $1,572,728.00 

     

 

  

  Means of Finance  

    Sales Tax Bond           $1,507,876.00 

    Reserves-Transfer from General fund(101)        $64,852.00 

            $1,572,728.00 

     

 

Pursuant to SDCL 9-21-7, a supplemental appropriation in the amount of $2,256.00 

is hereby authorized.  Means of finance is the unassigned fund balance in the 

amount of $2,256.00 from the water fund reserve account to the annual budget of 

water fund.   

 

Fund 602 – Water Fund 

 

  Expenditures   

   Administration-Supplies                                         $856.00 

   Water Deposit Refunds                                               $1,400.00   

  Total Appropriations             $2,256.00                           

     

  Means of Finance   

   Reserves–Water Fund (602)                                           $2,256.00 

 

 

 

Pursuant to SDCL 9-21-7, a supplemental appropriation in the amount of 

$77,846.23 is hereby authorized.  Means of finance is the unassigned fund 

balance in the amount of $77,846.23 from the sewer fund reserve account to the 

annual budget of sewer fund.   

 

Fund 604 – Sewer Fund 

 

  Expenditures            

   Debt Service-Principal                                  $94.40  

   Sewer-Salaries                $1,500.00 

   Sewer-Supplies                                                        $856.00 

   Sewer-Land                   $4,548.33 

   Sewer-Equipment             $1,147.50 

   Sewer-Capital Projects            $69,700.00 

  Total Appropriations                      $77,846.23 



            

  Means of Finance   

   Reserves-Sewer Fund (604)                                         $77,846.23 

    

 

 

 

The Finance Officer is hereby directed to transfer the said amount and to show 

such action on the proper records of the City. 

 

Adopted this 3rd Day of December 2019. 

 

 

_________________________ 

Jeremy Menning, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    (seal) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST:__________________________ 

Karen Wilber 

Finance Officer 

 

 

 

First Reading: November 19, 2019 

Second Reading & Adoption: December 3, 2019 

Publication: December 12, 2019 

Effective Date: January 1, 2020 

 



 

2019 Supplemental Appropriation - Explanation: 

(Ordinance 681) 
 

 A supplemental appropriation ordinance is in this packet (Ordinance #681).  A supplemental appropriation 

allows the City to use money from the city’s reserve accounts (our saving accounts) for unplanned 

expenses, expenses that were not known when we completed the 2019 budget back in September of 2018, 

or items that were added by the city council throughout the year.  It also allows the city to add to the budget 

any additional expenses that are close to going over budget for all funds – contingency money in the budget 

can only be used for the General Fund so if additional money is needed in other funds, a supplemental 

appropriation must be passed.  Please let me know if you have any questions or need further explanation. 

 

 

THE FOLLOWING AMOUNTS WILL BE TRANSFERRED FROM THE CITY’S RESERVE 

ACCOUNTS TO THE APPROPRIATE EXPENSE ACCOUNT TO COVER UNFORESEEN 

EXPENSES, EXPENSES THAT ARE GOING OVER THEIR ORIGINAL BUDGET AMOUNT, 

OR EXPENSES THAT HAVE BEEN ADDED BY THE COUNCIL THROUGHOUT THE YEAR.   

 

 

 

GENERAL FUND (101) - $146,225.00 

The following expense in the general fund will be paid from the general fund reserve (savings) account.     

 

• Finance Office – Professional Services - $5,000.00:  This is for incorporation fees that were 

approved by the city council for the Hometown Christmas Committee – Approved by CC on 

5/7/19 and the Downtown Committee – Approved by CC on 4/16/19. 

• Finance Office – Supplies - $5,000.00:  This is for supplies for the Recreation Director that were 

approved by CC on 12/18/18. 

• Finance Office – Other - $1,000.00:  This is for the compensation study that was approved by the 

CC on 5/21/19. 

• Fire Department -Equipment Replacement - $40,000.00: The Hartford Fire Department asked 

the city council to release $30,000 on 5/21/19 for a new tender truck and then asked the council to 

release another $35,000 on 8/20/19 for a new EMS truck – both were approved by the council.  

Although this is a total of $65,000, $25,000 was already in the budget this year so we only need to 

supplement the remaining $40,0000. 

• Streets -Surfacing - $21,250.00:  Craig asked the council to increase the slurry seal budget 

another $15,000 – this was approved by CC on 11/20/18.  We also decided to do a mastic repair 

on Western Avenue since the county was doing their portion – this resulted in another increase 

needed for $6,250, which was approved by CC on 5/6/19. 

• Streets -Supplies - $856.00:  This is for 1/3 of the jersey barriers that were purchased after CC 

approval on 7/2/19. 

• Streets – Equipment - $5,000.00:  Craig asked the council to increase the budget for a new 

pickup from $20,000 to $25,000 since we were having a hard time locating a decent truck for the 

$20,000.  This additional $5,000 was approved by CC on 1/15/19.   

• Parks – Repairs/Maint - $30, 587.00:  After an ice storm this last year, quotes were received to 

repair the fencing at the sports complex.  This expense was not in our original budget.  The cost of 

the repairs was approved by the council on 11/7/2018.   

• Parks -Capital Improvements - $34,032.00:  This amount is for grading at the sports complex 

that were budgeted in 2018 but not paid until 2019.  We need to add this expense to our 2019 

budget. 

• Libraries – Capital Improvements - $3,500.00:  This was the cost of the mural that was placed 

on the Library outside wall.  This expense was approved by the CC on 3/19/19.   

 

 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND – MICKELSON ROAD (505)- $1,125,000.00 

The following expenses in the capital projects fund 505-Mickelson Road fund will be paid from the general 

fund reserve (savings) account, the water fund reserve (savings) account and the sewer fund reserve 

(savings) account.  Only $1,000,000 was placed in the 2019 budget for the Mickelson Road project since 

we thought we might pay some of the culvert expense out of our 2018 budget.  Since that did not happen, 



more expenses were paid out of the 2019 budget than anticipated and we need to transfer funds to cover 

these expenses.  (The need to transfer extra money from our general, water and sewer fund was known at 

budget time and figured into our ending cash balance – this will just correct our budget and not change our 

cash)        

 

• Mickelson Road – Streets - $653,000.00:  This should cover expenses for this year.   

• Mickelson Road – Water - $232,000.00:  This should cover expenses for this year. 

• Mickelson Road – Sewer - $240,000.00:  This should cover expenses for this year. 

 

 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND – VANDEMARK AVENUE (506)- $1,572,728.00 

Nothing was budgeted in 2019 for Vandemark Avenue since the petition for improvements was not 

received until December of 2018 – after the budget was set.  The sales tax bond we received for this project 

will pay the majority of these expenses and then we will transfer $64,852 from the general fund to pay for 

the rebuild of 9th Street from Vandemark to Par Tee Drive that was approved by the City Council on 9/3/19.  

We need to add the following dollar amounts into the budget for the Vandemark Avenue Project. 

 

• Vandemark Ave – Streets - $1,032,728.00:  This should cover expenses for this year.   

• Vandemark Ave – Water - $190,000.00:  This should cover expenses for this year. 

• Vandemark Ave – Professional Services - $250,000.00:  This should cover expenses for this 

year. 

• Vandemark Ave – Sewer - $100,000.00:  This should cover expenses for this year. 

 

 

WATER FUND (602)- $2,256.00 

The following expenses in the water fund will be paid from the water fund reserve (savings) account.  

 

• Adm & General – Supplies - $856.00:  This is for 1/3 of the jersey barriers that were purchased 

after CC approval on 7/2/19. 

• Water Deposits – Payments to City - $1,400.00:  When people move and a water account is 

closed, the city uses any deposit money we have to pay the final water bill on that account.  

Budget funds placed in this account are estimates from previous years but the money we pay out is 

solely based on the number of people moving – which we cannot predict.  I believe we will need 

an additional $1,400 in budget to cover water deposits that are paid out to the city for final bills.   

 

 

SEWER FUND (604)- $77,846.23 

The following expenses in the sewer fund will be paid from the sewer fund reserve (savings) account.  

 

• Debt Service – Principal on Mickelson Rd Loan - $94.40:  Amounts placed into our 2019 

budget for this loan payment were based on the amortization schedule that was given to the city.  

The first year payment on this schedule was off so this will correct our budget to reflect the correct 

payment amount.   

• Sewer – Salaries - $1,500.00:  This is to cover salary expense till the end of the year. 

• Sewer – Supplies - 856.00:  This is for 1/3 of the jersey barriers that were purchased after CC 

approval on 7/2/19. 

• Sewer - Land - $4,548.33:  This is to cover the land we purchased from Richard Brower along 

Highway 38, which was approved by the CC on 7/16/19.     

• Sewer – Equipment - $1,147.50:  This is for an upgrade to the city’s billing software for the new 

meter reading system.  This was an unknown expense at budget time. 

• Sewer - Capital Improvements - $69,700.00:  $40,200 of this is for engineering fees for the 

Western Sewer Project to develop plans and to help with grant submittals.  This was not in our 

budget because it was not approved by the CC until 1/15/19.  $13,500 of this is for engineering 

fees for the wastewater treatment facility that were not placed in budget.  $16,000 of this is for 

final payments on the Vandemark Sewer project that was budgeted in 2018 but not paid until 

2019. 

 



 

 

ORDINANCE #682 

 

Sidewalks 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARTFORD, SOUTH DAKOTA, AMENDING 

ORDINANCE 430, TITLE 6 - STREETS, SIDEWALKS AND PUBLIC PLACES, 

CHAPTER 6.02 – STREETS, SIDEWALKS, CURB AND GUTTER , SECTION 6.0207 

- SIDEWALKS; 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF HARTFORD, 

SOUTH DAKOTA: 

 

THAT TITLE 6, CHAPTER 6.02, SECTION 6.0207 BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
6.0207 - SIDEWALKS 

 

Unless otherwise determined by the City Council, the property line shall be twelve (12) inches 

inside of the sidewalk. Sidewalk construction shall include base material of three (3) inches in 

thickness, of approved materials. Sidewalks shall be no less than three and one-half (3½) inches 

in thickness, of Portland Cement Construction, and not less than five (5) feet wide in residential 

areas, with slope toward street of one-fourth (1/4) inch per foot. When considered necessary and 

advisable for the peace, welfare, and safety of the people, the City Council may direct that new 

sidewalk be constructed and assessed to any abutting property owner. (SDCL 9-46-1, 9-45-14)  

 

When existing sidewalk is removed for any reason it shall be replaced, according to the 

provisions of this section. 

 

Adopted this 3rd day of December, 2019.    

 

_________________________________ 

Mayor Jeremy Menning 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Karen Wilber, Finance Officer 

 

 

 

(seal) 

 

 
 

First Reading:  November 19, 2019     

Second Reading and Adoption:  December 3, 2019 

Publication:   December 12, 2019 

Effective:  January 1, 2020  

 



               

Chamber and Economic Development Director’s Report 

October 2019 

Hartford Area Chamber of Commerce 
- Two new members joined in October: Hartford Spinal Care and Mellow Daze 

Boutique 
- Hartford Dental Clinic hosted a membership mixer. 
- Work continues on #DiscoverHartford videos and stories. 
- Chamber Board organized a special meeting to discuss membership benefits for 

2020. Benefits have been updated and a guide is in the works. 
- Organized ribbon cutting for Balloon Squad USA. 
- Wrote, organized, and completed the fall 2019 newsletter. Work is underway on 

the winter newsletter. 
- Participated in Events, Executive, Nominating, and Ambassador Committee 

meetings. 
- Hosted SBA District Director Jaime Wood at the October Board meeting.  
- Assisted with the Haunted Hartford Halloween Event held on Oct 31st. Special 

thanks to Lynnae Redenius (Tammen Auto) and Sherri Goebel (Sunshine Foods) 
for all their work in organizing the event. 
 

Hartford Area Development Foundation   
- Ongoing communication with the following projects: Coronet, Champion, 

Biltmore, Daycare, Apollo, Lemonade Stand, Galaxy, Caboose, Jack, Washington, 
Spirit, Proxima, and Adams. 

- Continued work on the capital campaign and hired NCDS to move forward with a 
feasibility analysis. 

- Visited area manufacturers from Sept 30 – Oct 4th to highlight their businesses 
for South Dakota Manufacturing week. 

- Wrapped up the last of the West Central School District Strategic Planning 
updates. 

- Met with Jay Buchholz (Sioux Valley Energy) to discuss grant opportunities for 
the City of Hartford and Downtown. 

- Met with area property owners to discuss possible redevelopment in the future. 
- Met with downtown property owner to discuss redevelopment opportunities. 
- Reviewed and finalized the 2019 Hartford Housing Study update. 
- Hosted USD Discovery District Interim Director Ryan Oines. 
- Hosted Argus Leader reporter to discuss housing and business growth in 

Hartford. 
- Assisted with the Downtown Hartford community engagement meeting. 

 
Other 

- Attended the SESD Tourism Conference. Buffalo Ridge Brewing and the HADF 
were honored with the inaugural SESD Innovation in Tourism Award. 

- Attended the South Dakota Chamber of Commerce Economic Outlook Seminar. 
- Attended FOCUS – an event hosted by First Bank & Trust in Sioux Falls. 
- Attended the Dakota Business Finance annual meeting.  



               
- Attended Sioux Falls Chamber of Commerce Issues Management Council. IMC 

hosted an official from Iowa to discuss growth opportunities created under the 
2014 and 2018 Farm bills. 

- Attended October MCEDA Board meeting. 
- Worked with City Staff to help plan for the October Joint Jurisdiction meeting. 
- Along with City staff, met with Stockwell Engineers to discuss 2020 CIP. 

 
 
On the Horizon 

- Nov 18-22 – NCDS Feasibility Analysis 

- Nov 20 – MCEDA Board Meeting 

- Nov 21 – CTE Academy Tour 

- Nov 21 – SFDF Annual Meeting 

- Nov 21 – Nov Mixer at Buffalo Ridge Brewing 

- December 4 – 13 – Out of the Office 

 
Facebook Data –Oct 18 – Nov 14 

- Hartford Area Development Foundation 
o Likes: 644 
o New Page Likes: 9 
o Post Reach: 4,913 
o Engagements: 2,294 

- Hartford Area Chamber of Commerce 
o Likes: 1,208 
o New Page Likes: 22 
o Post Reach: 7,422 
o Engagements: 2,609 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



               
 
 
 
 
Dog Park Recommendations from Stockwell Engineers – David Locke, P.L.A. 
 
“Based on our conversation and site visits, below is our understanding/recommendation 

moving forward.  We feel that the two locations in Turtle Creek Park (near the east 

trailhead and west restroom shelter) are the best locations for a future dog park.  Let us 

know if you have any questions and we would be more than happy to help lay something 

out for you guys when the time comes or now if you would like.  Let us know.  Thanks 

and have a great weekend! 

 

1. At Turtle Creek Park, at the end of Van DeMark Ave., in spring 2020 we 
recommend putting up temporary fencing for a temporary dog park under the 
tree and essentially taking up the triangle space between the trail, parking lot, 
and ROW.  This will allow you guys to gauge how popular it is and if a permanent 
location is needed.  We would recommend putting it on Facebook, promoting it 
and noting that if this is successful the City would potentially look at a permanent 
location east of the wastewater treatment plant.  This should give you a good 
understanding of how badly people want this or would support it in the 
community.  This also gives you time to figure out funding and how to adjust the 
disc golf course. 

2. If there is support for a permanent dog park east of the wastewater treatment 
plant, then we could help do a conceptual plan and cost estimate showing fencing 
layout, minimal concrete to get the park started and what the costs would be to 
run water to the site.  The elements of irrigation, dog watering station, shade 
structures, dog agility equipment, etc. can all come at a later date.  The minimum 
needed is fencing, signage, and a concrete pad at the entrance where the “dog 
corrals” are for people and their dogs coming in and out.” 

 
 
 



City of Hartford
HOUSING STUDY UPDATE

November 2019

An updated analysis of the overall housing needs
of the City of Hartford, SD

Community Partners Research, Inc.

Faribault, MN 55021



List of Sections   �

List of Sections

Introduction

Demographic and Projection Data

Existing Housing Data

Rental Housing Inventory

Regional Housing Data

Employment and Local Economic Trends Analysis

Findings and Recommendations

Agencies and Resources

Page

2

4

28

36

49

57

63

111

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 1



Introduction   �

Introduction

Overview

Local elected and public officials are often held responsible for conditions and
circumstances over which they have limited control.  This is particularly true of
housing.  Most of the housing units in Hartford are privately owned and were
constructed with private funds.  On an increasing scale, however, the public is
demanding that public officials control what happens in this largely private
housing market by eliminating blight, protecting individual investments, and
generating new housing growth to meet economic development needs.

Community Partners Research, Inc., was initially hired by the Hartford Area
Development Foundation (HADF) in 2013 to conduct a study of the housing
needs and conditions in the City.  In 2016, Community Partners Research, Inc.
was hired to update to the 2013 document.  In 2019, Community Partners
Research, Inc. was hired to update to th2 2016 document. 

Goals

The multiple goals of the study include:
< Provide updated demographic data from the 2016 Study
< Provide an analysis of the current housing stock and inventory
< Determine gaps or unmet housing needs
< Examine future housing trends that the area can expect to address in the

coming years
< Provide a market analysis for housing development
< Provide housing recommendations and findings

Methodology

A variety of resources were utilized to obtain information for the Housing Study. 
Community Partners Research, Inc., collected and analyzed data from July to
October, 2019.  Data sources included:

- U.S. Census Bureau
- American Community Survey
- Applied Geographic Solutions, Inc., a private data reporting service
- Esri, Inc., a private data reporting service
- Records and data from the City
- Records and data maintained by Minnehaha County
- South Dakota State Data Center

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 2



Introduction   �

- Interviews with City officials and staff
- Area and State housing agencies
- Interviews with developers and housing stakeholders
- Rental property surveys
- Housing condition survey

Limitations

This Housing Study represents an analysis performed with the data available at
the time of the Study.  The findings and recommendations are based upon
current solutions and the best available information on future trends and
projections.  Significant changes in the area’s economy, employment growth,
federal or State tax policy or other related factors could change the conclusions
and recommendations contained in this Housing Study.

This study was prepared by:

Community Partners Research, Inc.
Faribault, MN

(507) 838-5992
cpartners@charter.net

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 3



Demographic and Projection Data   �

Section Table of Contents
  Page

Demographic Data Overview

Population Data and Trends

Population by Age Trends: 2010 to 2019

Population Projections

Household Data and Trends

Household by Age Trends: 2010 to 2019

Average Household Size

Household Projections

Household Projections by Age

Housing Tenure

Tenure by Age

2017 Income Data

Household Income Distribution

Hartford Income Distribution by Tenure

2017 Estimated Income and Housing Costs - Renters

2017 Estimated Income and Housing Costs - Owners

5

6

8

10

11

12

14

16

17

19

20

21

23

24

26

27

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 4



Demographic and Projection Data   �

Demographic Data Overview

Sources of Data

The following pages contain demographic data obtained from a variety of local,
state and national sources for the City of Hartford and Minnehaha County.  A
primary data source is the U.S. Census Bureau, through the decennial census,
the annual American Community Survey, and the annual population estimates
program. 

To supplement the decennial Census, the Census Bureau has created the
American Community Survey, an annual sampling of households.  This provides
detailed demographic characteristics, replacing information once collected by
the decennial Census.  However, because the American Survey is based on
sampling data, there is a margin of error that exists for each estimate.  Some
of the following tables incorporate the 2017 American Community Survey data,
when viewed as reliable. 

The Governor’s Office of Economic Development provides demographic profile
information for cities and counties supplied by Applied Geographic Solutions
(AGS), a private company.  Prior to using AGS, the State had utilized a similar
provider, Esri, Inc., for demographic data.  The analysts have examined both of
these sources in some of the tables that follow for current-year (2019)
estimates and future projections. 

In addition to providing demographic information for Hartford, comparative
information has often been provided for all of Minnehaha County.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 5



Demographic and Projection Data   �

Population Data and Trends

Table 1 Population Trends  - 1990 to 2019

1990
Census

2000
Census

% Change
1990-2000

2010
Census

% Change
2000-2010

2019 AGS
Estimate

Hartford 1,262 1,844 46.1% 2,534 37.4% 3,306

Minnehaha Co. 123,809 148,281 19.8% 169,468 14.3% 192,038

Source: U.S. Census; Applied Geographic Solutions

< Two estimates exist for population levels in 2019.  According to Applied
Geographic Solutions, the City’s population was at 3,306 people, which is
an increase of 772 people from 2010 to 2019.  According to Esri, Hartford
had 3,468 people in 2019, which is a gain of 934 people from 2010 to
2019.  These estimates show the City’s population increasing by more
than 30% since 2010. 

< An estimate for 2018 is available from the Census Bureau’s annual
population estimates program.  According to this source, there were
3,364 people living in Hartford.  The Census Bureau’s estimate is between
the AGS and Esri estimates.

< Despite some differences that exist in the recent estimates for Hartford,
all three of the sources do show strong recent growth in City’s population,
continuing a long-term pattern.  From 2000 to 2010, Hartford’s
population increased by nearly 700 people, for a population gain of
37.4%.

< The recent estimates also show continued growth for all of Minnehaha
County.  According to Applied Geographic Solutions, the County’s
population was 192,038 people in 2019.  Esri estimated that there were    
198,150 people living in the County in 2019, a higher level than AGS.

< Census Bureau estimates exist at the county-level for 2018.  For all of
Minnehaha County, the Census Bureau showed 192,876 people in 2018, a
slightly higher estimate than AGS but lower than the Esri estimate.

< The 2019 estimates also continue the long-term pattern of population
growth Countywide.  Minnehaha County’s population was 169,468 in
2010.  This was a 21,187-person increase from 2000, which was a gain of
14.3%.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 6



Demographic and Projection Data   �

Population Characteristics

< The most reliable information about racial and ethnic groups in Hartford
exists in the 2010 Census.  At that time, Hartford’s population was
primarily White and non-Hispanic/Latino.  According to the 2010 Census,
96.5% of the City’s residents identified their race as White, with the
Native American population representing 1.2% of the City total, and the
Asian population representing 0.2% of the City’s total population.  Also,
1.5% of the City’s residents were listed as Other Race or Two or More
Races.  

< Fewer than 1% of Hartford’s residents were identified as Hispanic/Latino.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 7



Demographic and Projection Data   �

Population by Age Trends: 2010 to 2019

The 2019 population estimates from Esri include information on the age
distribution of residents in Hartford and Minnehaha County.  The following table
compares population by age in 2010 and 2019, along with the numeric
changes.  

Table 2 Population by Age - 2010 to 2019

Age
Hartford Minnehaha County

2010 2019 Change 2010 2019 Change

0-14 713 837 124 35,727 40,356 4,629

15-19 180 258 78 11,425 12,595 1,170

20-24 93 213 120 12,443 13,489 1,046

25-34 382 417 35 26,300 28,994 2,694

35-44 384 482 98 21,810 26,623 4,813

45-54 340 465 125 24,535 23,582 -953

55-64 231 407 176 18,385 24,068 5,683

65-74 120 263 143 9,540 16,476 6,936

75-84 57 95 38 6,337 8,023 1,686

85+ 34 33 -1 2,966 3,944 978

Total 2,534 3,470 936 169,468 198,150 28,682

Source: U.S. Census, Esri

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 8



Demographic and Projection Data   �

For many years, demographic analysts have been talking about the impact that
is occurring as the large “baby boom” generation moves through the aging
cycle.  This trend has been evident in Hartford and Minnehaha County.

Between 2010 and 2019, Hartford had a gain of 319 people and Minnehaha
County had a gain of 12,619 people in the age ranges between 55 and 74 years
old.  In 2019, nearly all of the baby boomers were within these age ranges.  

The City of Hartford also had an increase of 580 people in the 54 and younger
age ranges and a gain of 38 people in the 75 to 84 age range.  Hartford had a
loss of one person in the 85 and older age range.

In addition to the population increase in the 55 to 74 age ranges from 2010 to
2019, Minnehaha County had an increase of 14,352 people in the 44 and
younger age ranges and an increase of 2,664 people in the 75 and older age
ranges.

Minnehaha County had a loss of 953 people in the 45 to 54 age range.

The aging trends present in 2019 can be traced back over the decade to see the
movement of the baby boom generation in Hartford.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 9



Demographic and Projection Data   �

Population Projections

The following table presents population projections to the year 2024. 
Projections for Hartford and Minnehaha County exist from both Applied
Geographic Solutions and Esri, and span the five-year period from 2019 to
2024.   

Table 3 Population Projections Through 2024

Applied Geographic Solutions Esri

2019
Estimate

2024
Projection

Change
2019-2024

2019
Estimate

2024
Projection

Change
2019-2024

Hartford 3,306 3,456 150 3,468 3,922 454

Minnehaha Co. 192,038 204,730 12,692 198,150 214,098 15,948

Source: Applied Geographic Solutions; Esri 

< The Applied Geographic Solutions projection expects the City to add 150
people by 2024, or an annual average of 30 people per year.  This
average annual numeric growth would be well below the level of the
recent past, as the available estimates show the City adding between 85
and 100 people per year after 2010. 

< The Esri projection for Hartford is forecasting that 454 residents will be
added by 2024, or an annual average of 91 people per year.

< The differences between the projection sources also exist at the County
level.  Applied Geographic Solutions expects the County, including
Hartford, to add nearly 12,700 people over the five-year time period, or
an annual average of approximately 2,540 people per year.

< Esri is once again more optimistic and is forecasting that Minnehaha
County will add 15,948 residents by 2024, or an annual average of 3,190 
people per year.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 10



Demographic and Projection Data   �

Household Data and Trends

Table 4 Household Trends  - 1990 to 2019

1990
Census

2000
Census

% Change
1990-2000

2010
Census

% Change
2000-2010

2019 AGS
Estimate

Hartford 450 661 46.9% 913 38.1% 1,264

Minnehaha Co. 46,805 57,996 23.9% 67,028 15.6% 80,401

Source: U.S. Census; AGS

< Household estimates for 2019 exist from both Applied Geographic
Solutions and Esri.  The Census Bureau does not issue annual household
estimates.

< The AGS estimate showed 1,264 resident households in Hartford, up by
351 households, or 38.4%, from the level reported in the 2010 Census.

< Esri’s estimate showed 1,251 households in Hartford, up by 338
households, or 37.0% from the level reported in the 2010 Census.

< If reduced to an annual average, AGS shows the City adding 39
households per year during the current decade, while Esri shows an
almost identical average of approximately 38 households per year.

< For all of Minnehaha County, AGS showed an increase of 13,373
households since 2010, or a gain of nearly 20%.  Esri showed 78,419
total households in 2019, for an increase of 11,391 households from
2010, for an increase of 17%. 

< Although some difference exists between these sources, both show strong
growth since 2010, continuing a long-term pattern of household growth in
Hartford and Minnehaha County.  

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 11



Demographic and Projection Data   �

Household by Age Trends: 2010 to 2019

The demographic data profile that is available from AGS does not provide
information on households by age.  However, age-based estimates are available
from Esri.  The following table compares households by age in 2010 and 2019,
along with the numeric changes.  It is important to note that Esri’s total
household count for Hartford in 2019 was slightly lower than the estimate from
AGS. 

Table 5 Households by Age - 2010 to 2019

Age
Hartford Sioux Falls MSA

2010 2019 Change 2010 2019 Change

15-24 37 56 19 4,310 4,258 -52

25-34 199 209 10 13,252 14,300 1,048

35-44 204 253 49 11,928 14,403 2,475

45-54 197 260 63 14,134 13,279 -855

55-64 127 213 86 11,092 14,094 3,002

65-74 76 165 89 6,012 10,102 4,090

75+ 73 95 22 6,300 7,983 1,683

Total 913 1,251 338 67,028 78,419 11,391

Source: U.S. Census; Esri

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 12



Demographic and Projection Data   �

Consistent with the population by age data presented earlier, the household
patterns show much of the change occurring in the baby boomer age groups. 
For all of Minnehaha County there was an increase of 7,092 households in the
55 to 74 year age ranges, and in Hartford there was a gain of 175 households
in the 55 to 74 year old age ranges.

Hartford also had an increase of 141 households in the 54 and younger age
ranges and an increase of 22 households in the 75 and older age range.  All of
Hartford’s age ranges gained households from 2010 to 2019.  In addition to the
55 to 74 age ranges, Minnehaha County had a gain of 3,523 households in the
25 to 44 age ranges and a gain of 1,683 households in the 75 and older age
range.  From 2010 to 2019, Minnehaha County had a loss of 52 households in
the 15 to 24 age range and a loss of 855 households in the 45 to 54 age range.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 13



Demographic and Projection Data   �

Average Household Size

The following table provides decennial Census information on average
household size, along with the 2019 estimate from Esri.

Table 6 Average Number of Persons Per Household: 1990 to 2019

1990 Census 2000 Census 2010 Census 2019 Esri

Hartford 2.80 2.77 2.78 2.68

Minnehaha Co. 2.50 2.46 2.43 2.45

Source: U.S. Census; Esri

Household formation has been occurring at a different rate than population
change in recent decades due to a steady decrease in average household size. 
This has been caused by household composition changes, such as more single
person and single parent families, fewer children per family, and more senior
households due to longer life spans.

The average household size in Hartford decreased from 1990 to 2019. 
Hartford’s average household size was 2.80 persons in 1990 and has decreased
to 2.68 persons in 2019, according to Esri.

Minnehaha County’s average household size decreased slightly from 2.50 in
1990 to 2.45 in 2019. 

Although Hartford’s average household size has decreased over time, the City’s
average household size in 2019 is large in comparison to most similarly sized
cities.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 14



Demographic and Projection Data   �

Although the Applied Geographic Solutions reports do not include an estimate
on the group quarters population in the area, it would appear that this source
shows a smaller average household size than Esri.  Assuming no group quarters
residents in Hartford, AGS would show an average household size of 2.62
persons in Hartford in 2019.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 15



Demographic and Projection Data   �

Household Projections

Household projections for the five-year time period spanning the years 2019
through 2024 are available from both AGS and Esri.  Household projections
directly impact the demand for housing. 

Table 7 Household Projections Through 2024

AGS Esri

2019
Estimate

2024
Projection

Change 2019
Estimate

2024
Projection

Change

Hartford 1,264 1,350 86 1,251 1,415 164

Minnehaha Co. 80,401 87,749 7,348 78,419 84,789 6,370

Source: AGS, Esri  

< AGS is expecting growth of only 86 households over the five-year
projection period from 2019 to 2024 while Esri is forecasting that 164    
households will be added.  If viewed as an annual average, a range of
between 17 and 33 households per year is projected.

< For all of Minnehaha County, AGS is projecting a gain of 7,348
households, while Esri is showing that 6,370 households will be added. If
viewed as an annual average, a range of between 1,274 and 1,470        
households per year is projected.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 16



Demographic and Projection Data   �

Household by Age Projections: 2019 to 2024

In addition to overall household forecasts, Esri has also generated age-based
projections for households to the year 2024.  These projections can be
compared to the data contained in the 2019 Esri estimate to examine the
change projected over the next few years.  Age-based forecasts are provided
for both Hartford and for all of Minnehaha County.

Table 8 Households by Age - 2019 to 2024

Age
Hartford Minnehaha County

2019 2024 Change 2019 2024 Change

15-24 56 60 4 4,258 4,724 466

25-34 209 281 72 14,300 15,007 707

35-44 253 256 3 14,403 15,863 1,460

45-54 260 251 -9 13,279 13,603 324

55-64 213 236 23 14,094 13,892 -202

65-74 165 202 37 10,102 11,858 1,756

75+ 95 129 34 7,983 9,842 1,859

Total 1,251 1,415 164 78,419 84,789 6,370

Source:  Esri

From 2019 to 2024, Hartford is projected to gain 79 households in the 44 and
younger age ranges and 94 households in the 55 and older age ranges. 
Hartford is projected to lose nine households in the 45 to 54 age range.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 17



Demographic and Projection Data   �

Somewhat similar patterns are also projected for all of Minnehaha County. 
According to Esri, from 2019 to 2024, Minnehaha County will gain 2,957
households in the 54 and younger age ranges and will gain 3,615 households in
the 65 and older age ranges.  Minnehaha County is projected to lose 202
households in the 55 to 64 age range.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 18



Demographic and Projection Data   �

Housing Tenure

The 2017 American Community Survey has provided data on housing tenure
patterns.  The following table examines overall 2017 tenure rates for the City of
Hartford, Minnehaha County and the State of South Dakota.  

Table 9 Household Tenure - 2017

Number of
Owners

Percent of all
Households

Number of
Renters

Percent of all
Households

Hartford 759 72.4% 289 27.6%

Minnehaha Co. 46,899 63.6% 26,863 36.4%

State 230,657 67.9% 108,801 32.1%

Source: U.S. Census, ACS

According to the 2017 American Community Survey, the ownership tenure rate
in Hartford was 72.4% and Minnehaha County’s ownership rate was 63.6%.  In
2010, the City of Hartford’s ownership rate was 77.5%.  Hartford’s rental rate
was 27.6% in 2017, which was below the Statewide rental rate of 32.1%. 

Based on 2019 ESRI and AGS data, the American Community Survey has
underestimated the number of households in Hartford and Minnehaha County. 
However, it is still a good indicator of housing tenure in the jurisdictions.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 19



Demographic and Projection Data   �

Tenure by Age of Householder

The 2017 American Community Survey provided information on the tenure
distribution of households by age range.  This table examines the number and
percentage of renters and owners in each age group in Hartford. 

Table 10 Hartford Tenure by Age of Householder - 2017

Age
Owners Renters

Number Percent within age Number Percent within age

15-24 8 23.5% 26 76.5%

25-34 192 65.1% 103 34.9%

35-44 162 69.5% 71 30.5%

45-54 173 85.2% 30 14.8%

55-64 96 73.3% 35 26.7%

65-74 74 92.5% 6 7.5%

75-84 43 87.8% 6 12.2%

85+ 11 47.8% 12 52.2%

Total 759 72.4% 289 27.6%

Source: American Community Survey

Within the defined age ranges, households in youngest and oldest age range
showed a greater preference for rental housing, while all of the other
households were primarily home owners.  Approximately 77% of the
households in the 15 to 24 age range and 52% of the households in the 85 and
older age range rented their unit.  Ownership rates for each of the 10-year age
cohorts between 25 and 84 were above 65%.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 20



Demographic and Projection Data   �

2017 Income Data

Median income estimates are available for cities and counties through the
American Community Survey.  The 2016 Study had presented estimates for the
year 2014.  In the following table, the 2017 estimates have been compared to
the 2014 data to examine the changes over the past few years. 

Household income represents all independent households, including people
living alone and unrelated individuals together in a housing unit.  Families are
two or more related individuals living in a household. Family incomes tend to be
higher than the overall household median, as families have at least two
household members, and potentially more income-earners. 

Table 11 Median Income - 2014 to 2017

2014 Median 2017 Median % Change

Households

Hartford $65,766 $69,337 5.4%

Minnehaha County $53,391 $57,322 7.4%

South Dakota $50,338 $54,126 7.5%

Families

Hartford $81,719 $72,426 -11.4%

Minnehaha County $68,663 $74,413 8.4%

South Dakota $64,636 $69,425 10.3%

Source: American Community Survey 

Information contained in the American Community Survey shows Hartford has
had some increase in the median household income level in recent years, but
that the median family income level has decreased.  With the margin of error
that can exist in the American Community Survey estimates, it is possible that
the family estimate from 2014 was too high, and that the median in the City
has not actually been decreasing.

In 2017, the median household income level for Hartford, at $69,337, was well
above the comparable County or Statewide levels.  The City’s median family
income of $72,426 was below the median for Minnehaha County but above the
Statewide level.

For all of Minnehaha County, household and family incomes have been
increasing from 2014 to 2017.  The County’s median income levels are higher
than the remainder of the State.   

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 21



Demographic and Projection Data   �

Using the commonly accepted standard that up to 30% of gross income can be
applied to housing expenses without experiencing a cost burden, a median
income household in Hartford could afford approximately $1,735 per month for
ownership or rental housing in 2017.  A median income family could afford
approximately $1,810 per month for housing.  However, as will be detailed later
in this section, renter households tend to be below the overall median, while
owner households tend to be above the overall median income level.  

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 22



Demographic and Projection Data   �

Hartford Household Income Distribution

The 2017 American Community Survey household income estimates for the City
of Hartford can be compared to the same distribution information from 2014 to
examine changes that have occurred over the previous few years.

Table 12 Hartford Household Income Distribution - 2014 to 2017

Household Income Number of
Households 2014

Number of
Households in 2017

Change
2014 to 2017

$0 - $14,999 32 43 11

$15,000 - $24,999 72 27 -45

$25,000 - $34,999 99 146 47

$35,000 - $49,999 145 124 -21

$50,000 - $74,999 220 244 24

$75,000 - $99,999 133 153 20

$100,000+ 257 311 54

Total 958 1,048 90

Source:  ACS

According to income estimates contained in the 2017 American Community
Survey, household incomes have improved in Hartford.  When compared to the
City’s 2014 annual income, the number of households with an income of
$50,000, or more, increased by 98 households.  Conversely, there was a net
decrease of 8 households with incomes less than $50,000.  However, there are
still 70 households in Hartford that have an annual income below $25,000,
which is approximately 7% of the households in Hartford.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 23



Demographic and Projection Data   �

Hartford Income Distribution by Housing Tenure

The 2017 American Community Survey provides an income estimate by owner
and renter status.  The following table examines income distribution within the
City of Hartford.  The American Community Survey is an estimate, based on
limited sampling data, and it appears that the American Community Survey has
underestimated the number of owner and renter households that were present
in Hartford in 2017.  However, this still represents the best data source on
income by housing tenure.

Table 13 Income Distribution by Tenure - 2017

Household Income Number of Owner
Households

Number of Renter
Households

Total Households

$0 - $14,999 6/14.0% 37/86.0% 43

$15,000 - $24,999 9/33.3% 18/66.7% 27

$25,000 - $34,999 44/30.1% 102/69.9% 146

$35,000 - $49,999 79/63.7% 45/36.3% 124

$50,000 - $74,999 226/92.6% 18/7.4% 244

$75,000 - $99,999 113/73.9% 40/26.1% 153

$100,000+ 282/90.7% 29/9.3% 311

Total 759/72.4% 289/27.6% 1,048

Source:  American Community Survey

Income and housing tenure are linked for most households, with home owners
generally having higher annual income levels, and renters having lower
incomes.  

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 24



Demographic and Projection Data   �

In 2017, approximately 54% of all renter households in Hartford had an annual
income below $35,000.  At 30% of income, these households would have $875,
or less, that could be applied to monthly housing costs. 

Conversely, a majority of the owner households had a substantially higher
income level.  Approximately 82% of all owner households had an annual
income of $50,000 or more.  At 30% of income, these owners could afford
$1,250 or more per month for housing costs.

The American Community Survey also included an estimate of the median
income level by housing tenure.  For renter households in Hartford in 2017, the
estimated median household income was $31,442.  For home owners in
Hartford, the estimated median was $78,203.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 25



Demographic and Projection Data   �

2017 Estimated Income and Housing Costs - Renters

The American Community Survey also collected information on housing costs.  
The following table provides data on the number of renter households that are
paying different percentages of their gross household income for housing in the
City of Hartford. 

Table 14 Gross Rent as a Percentage of Household Income - 2017 

Percent of Income for
Housing

Households Age 64
and Younger 

Households Age 65
and Older 

Total

Less than 20% 110 / 43.1% 0 / 0% 110 / 40.2%

20% to 29.9% 63 / 24.7% 5 / 26.3% 68 / 24.8%

30% to 34.9% 37 / 14.5% 0 / 0% 37 / 13.5%

35% or more 45 / 17.7% 14 / 73.7% 59 / 21.5%

Not Computed 0 / 0% 0 / 0% 0 / 0%

Total 255 /100% 19 /100% 274 /100%
Source: American Community Survey

According to the 2017 American Community Survey, approximately 35% of all
renters in the City were paying 30% or more of their income for rent.  A
majority of these households were actually paying 35% or more of their income
for housing.  Federal standards for rent subsidy programs generally identify
30% of household income as the maximum household contribution.  When
more than 30% of income is required, this is often called a “rent burden”. 
When more than 35% is required, this can be considered a “severe rent
burden”.  

Although a housing cost burden could be caused by either high housing costs or
low household income, in Hartford it was primarily due to low income levels for
renters.  A majority of the renter households with a housing cost burden had an
annual household income below $35,000.  To avoid a cost burden, these lower
income households would have needed a unit with a gross monthly rent of $875
or less.

The American Community Survey only reported on 19 senior citizen renters
(age 65 and older), which may have been an undercount in these age ranges. 
As a result, most of the households with a rental cost burden were age 64 or
younger.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 26



Demographic and Projection Data   �

2017 Estimated Income and Housing Costs - Owners

The American Community Survey also provided housing cost estimates for
owner-occupants.  The following table provides estimates of the number of 
households in the City of Hartford that are paying different percentages of their
gross household income for housing costs. 

Table 15 Ownership Costs as a Percentage of Income - Hartford

Percentage of Household
Income for Housing Costs

Number of Owner
Households 2017

Percent of All Owner
Households 2017

0% to 19.9% 481 63.4%

20% to 29.9% 206 27.1%

30% to 34.9% 38 5.0%

35% or more 34 4.5%

Not Computed 0 0%

Total 759 100%

Source: American Community Survey

Based on the 2017 American Community Survey, most owner-occupants, which
would include households with or without a mortgage, reported paying less
than 30% of their income for housing.  However, approximately 9.5% of all
home owners reported that they paid more than 30% of their income for
housing.  

As would be expected, the majority of the cost-burdened home owners had a
mortgage on their home.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 27



Existing Housing Data   �

Building Permit Trends

Hartford has had a significant amount of new housing construction activity in
recent years.  The following table identifies the units that have been issued a
building permit since the year 2000.  

Table 16 Hartford Housing Unit Construction Activity: 2000 to 2019*

Year Single Family
Detached

Single Family
Attached

3 and 4 Unit
Structures

5+ Unit
Structures

Total Units

2019* 12 4 0 0 16

2018 15 6 0 0 21

2017 17 8 28 0 53

2016 21 4 4 32 61

2015 21 4 8 21 54

2014 16 0 4 6 26

2013 17 2 8 0 27

2012 14 2 0 16 32

2011 5 4 0 12 21

2010 8 6 3 32 49

2009 10 2 0 0 12

2008 16 8 0 0 24

2007 22 0 3 40 65

2006 17 4 0 16 37

2005 25 4 0 0 29

2004 28 0 0 0 28

2003 14 0 1 0 15

2002 19 2 0 4 25

2001 19 2 1 0 22

2000 17 0 0 0 17

TOTAL 333 62 60 179 634

Source: City of Hartford; Community Partners Research, Inc. 
*2019 is through September

� Hartford Housing Study Update  - 2019 28



Existing Housing Data   �

Over the past 20 years, 634 new housing units have been constructed in
Hartford, based on building permit issuance.  There were 395 units identified as
single family homes or twin homes, and 239 units have been added in
multifamily development projects that created rental housing.

The City has averaged approximately 32 new housing units annually over the
past 20 years.  Over the past four years, since the 2016 Hartford Housing
Study from 2016 to 2019 (partial-year) the City has averaged nearly 38 new
housing units annually.

Unlike most smaller communities in South Dakota, Hartford has had ongoing
production of multifamily rental units.  From 2011 through July 2019,
approximately 139 multi-family rental units have been constructed in Hartford.

� Hartford Housing Study Update  - 2019 29



Existing Housing Data   �

Existing Home Sales

This section examines houses that were sold in Hartford from 2016 through
2018, the last full year of data.  The sales records were obtained from the SD
Department of Revenue website, presenting information supplied by the
Minnehaha County Equalization Office.  

The County Board of Equalization collects and utilizes information from
residential sales for its annual  sales ratio study.   The County compares the
actual sale price to the estimated taxable value for each property.  As a result,
the County information for sales primarily reflects existing homes that have an
established tax value.  New construction sales activity would generally not be
recorded in the data that was used for this analysis, unless the house had been
constructed some time ago and did have an established tax value from the prior
year.

The County also attempts to sort the residential sales into different groupings,
primarily based on whether or not the house was actively listed for sale in the
open market.  As a result, some transactions in the County’s sample may have
been sales that could be considered distressed, such as houses that were
previously bank-owned, but were sold by the bank back into private ownership. 
While it can be argued that sales of bank-owned properties acquired through
foreclosure are not fair market transactions, they may be included in the
County data if the bank openly placed them for sale in the public market.

The County and State reject sales that show significant variation from the
assessed value.  Known as the “150% rule” these sales may be open market
transactions but are not useful in the County’s sales ratio analysis. 

The County’s sales ratio year differs slightly from the calendar year.  It begins
on November 1st and ends the following October 31st. 

� Hartford Housing Study Update  - 2019 30



Existing Housing Data   �

Table 17 Hartford Residential Sales Activity - 2016 to 2018

Sales Year Number of Sales Median Sale Price Highest Sale Lowest Sale

2018 61 $189,900 $420,500 $42,444

2017 61 $179,000 $439,659 $40,000

2016 54 $177,000 $395,000 $31,000

Source: SD Dept. of Revenue; Community Partners Research, Inc.

In 2018, the last full year of data, there were 61 good sales in the City.  The
median sales price was $189,900, up by more than $10,000 from 2017.   

In each of the years reviewed, at least one house has been sold for $395,000
or more each year.  There has also been at least one home sold for less than
$43,000.

An alternate estimate of home values exists in the American Community
Survey.  The most recent estimate is for 2017, and places the midpoint values
for owner-occupied houses at $174,400, similar to the median sales prices from
2016 and 2017.

� Hartford Housing Study Update  - 2019 31



Existing Housing Data   �

Home Sales by Price Range

The following table looks at single family houses that sold within defined price
ranges in the 2018 sales period.  There were 61 good “arms length” sales over
this period.  
  

Table 18 Hartford Home Sales by Price Range: 2018

 Sale Price Number of Sales Percent of Sales

Less than $50,000 1 1.6%

$50,000 - $99,999 5 8.3%

$100,000 - $124,999 3 4.9%

$125,000 - $149,999 4 6.6%

$150,000 - $174,999 7 11.5%

$175,000 - $199,999 15 24.6%

$200,000 - $224,999 3 4.9%

$225,000 - $249,999 10 16.4%

$250,000 - $299,999 2 3.3%

$300,000+ 11 18.0%

Total 61 100%

Source: SD Dept. of Revenue; Community Partners Research, Inc.

Recent home sales in Hartford have been distributed in different price ranges. 
In 2018, more than 57% of the sales were in a range between $150,000 and
$249,999. 

Overall, fewer than 10% of the sales were for less than $100,000.  More than
21% sold for $250,000 or more, including 11 houses that sold for $300,000 or
more.

� Hartford Housing Study Update  - 2019 32



Existing Housing Data   �

Hartford Housing Condition

As part of the 2019 Update, Community Partners Research, Inc.,
representatives conducted a visual ‘windshield’ survey of 219 single
family/duplex houses in two Hartford neighborhoods.  The survey of the two
neighborhoods was also conducted in 2013, but was not updated as part of the
2016 research.   

The boundaries of the two neighborhoods are:

Neighborhood No. 1: East - Vandemark Ave., North - 2nd St., 
                                  South - 1st St. & Railroad St.,  West - Western Ave.

Neighborhood No. 2: South - 2nd St., North - 5th St., 
                                  East - Vandemark Ave., West - Western Ave.

Houses that appeared to contain three or more residential units were excluded
from the survey. Houses were categorized in one of four levels of physical
condition, Sound, Minor Repair, Major Repair, and Dilapidated as defined below. 
The visual survey analyzed only the physical condition of the visible exterior of
each structure. Exterior condition is assumed to be a reasonable indicator of the
structure’s interior quality.

Dilapidated was the lowest rating used. Dilapidated houses need major
renovation to become decent, safe and sanitary housing. Some Dilapidated
properties may be abandoned and may be candidates for demolition and
clearance.

Major Rehabilitation is defined as a house needing multiple major
improvements such as roof, windows, sidings, structural/foundation, etc.
Houses in this condition category may or may not be economically feasible to
rehabilitate.

Minor Repair houses are judged to be generally in good condition and require
less extensive repair, such as one major improvement. Houses in this condition
category will generally be good candidates for rehabilitation programs because
they are in a salable price range and are economically feasible to repair.

Sound houses are judged to be in good, ‘move-in’ condition. Sound houses may
contain minor code violations and still be considered Sound.

� Hartford Housing Study Update  - 2019 33



Existing Housing Data   �

Table 19 Windshield Survey Condition Estimate - 2019

Sound Minor Repair Major Repair Dilapidated Total

Neighborhood #1 11/19.3% 28/49.1% 14/24.6% 4/7.0% 57

Neighborhood #2 64/39.5% 75/46.3% 22/13.6% 1/0.6% 162

Total 75/34.3% 103/47.0% 36/16.4% 5/2.3% 219

Source: Community Partners Research, Inc.

 
< Based on the visual housing condition completed as part of the 2019

Study, the existing housing stock in Hartford’s two oldest neighborhoods
was in good condition.  Approximately 47% of the houses in the two
neighborhoods needed minor repair and 16% needed major repair at that
time.  Approximately 34% were sound, with no required improvements.

< Approximately five houses in the two neighborhoods are dilapidated in
2019 and possibly beyond repair. 

� Hartford Housing Study Update  - 2019 34



Existing Housing Data   �

Hartford Mobile Home Housing Condition

Community Partners Research, Inc. representatives conducted a visual
‘windshield’ survey of 34 mobile homes located in the Mobile Home Park in the
City of Hartford.  The survey was conducted in September 2019. 

Mobile homes were categorized in one of four levels of physical condition,
Sound, Minor Repair, Major Repair, and Dilapidated as defined below.  The
visual survey analyzed only the physical condition of the visible exterior of each
structure.  Exterior condition is assumed to be a reasonable indicator of the
structure’s interior quality.

Dilapidated was the lowest rating used.  Dilapidated mobile homes need major
renovation to become decent, safe and sanitary housing.  Some Dilapidated
properties may be abandoned and candidates for demolition and clearance.  

Major Rehabilitation is defined as a mobile home needing multiple major
improvements such as roof, windows, sidings, structural/foundation, etc. 
Houses and mobile homes in this condition category may or may not be
economically feasible to rehabilitate.

Minor Repair mobile homes are judged to be generally in good condition and
require less extensive repair, such as one major improvement.  Mobile homes
in this condition category may be good candidates for rehabilitation programs
because they are in a sellable price range and are economically feasible to
repair.  

Sound mobile homes are judged to be in good, ‘move-in’ condition.  Mobile
homes may contain minor code violations and still be considered Sound.

Table 20 Windshield Survey Condition Estimate - 2019

Sound Minor Repair Major Repair Dilapidated Total

Mobile Homes 6/17.6% 14/41.2% 8/23.6% 6/17.6% 34

Source: Community Partners Research, Inc.

< The mobile homes in Hartford are in fair condition.  Approximately 41% of
the mobile homes need minor repair and 24% need major repair. 
Approximately 18% are sound, with no required improvements.

< Six mobile homes were dilapidated and possibly beyond repair.

� Hartford Housing Study Update  - 2019 35



Rental Housing Inventory   �

Rental Housing Data

Census Bureau Rental Inventory - Hartford

According to the 2010 U.S. Census, there were 205 occupied rental units, and
at least 12 unoccupied rental units in Hartford, for a total estimated rental
inventory of approximately 217 units.  The City’s rental tenure rate was 22.5%,
based on renter-occupancy households, well below the Statewide rate in 2010
of 31.9% rental.

At the time of the 2000 Census, Hartford had 128 occupied rental units, and at
least four unoccupied rental units, for a total estimated rental inventory of
approximately 132 units.  The rental tenure rate in 2000 was 19.4%.

Estimated Rental Inventory in Hartford in 2019

As reported in the 2013 Hartford Housing Study, from 2010 to April 2013,
Hartford continued to add rental housing units through new construction. 
Approximately 60 rental units were added in the Deer Hollow Phase II,
Pinecrest and Fifth Street Apartment projects. 

From April 2013 through December 2015, an additional 25 rental units were
constructed.  All 25 units are conventional market rate.  The new units included
four additional units at Pinecrest Estates, Vista Crossing (20 units), and one
unit at 300 E. 2nd St. 

From 2016 to 2019, the following 84 rental units have been constructed:

< Kellenberger Properties - four three-bedroom twin home units
< Howling Plains - 24 units in two 12-plexes
< Freedom Place Apartments - 12 three-bedroom units in three 4-plexes
< Hendrickson Western Meadows Apartments - eight two-bedroom town

home units
< Barker Properties - 24 three-bedroom units in six 4-plexes
< Bernadine Place - 12 two-bedroom units in six twin homes

With the units constructed after the 2010 Census, the estimated rental unit
inventory has increased to approximately 386 units in 2019. 

Pending Rental Projects

We are not aware of any new projects in the planning phase in 2019 in
Hartford.  However, several local developers and rental property owners have
stated that they may construct additional rental units in the future.

� Hartford Housing Study Update  - 2019 36



Rental Housing Inventory   �

Rental Housing Survey

As part of this housing study, a telephone survey was conducted of multifamily
projects in the City of Hartford, including the rental projects that are currently
under construction.  The survey was conducted during the months of August
and September, 2019.

Emphasis was placed on contacting properties that have four or more units. 
For the purpose of planning additional projects in the future, multifamily
properties represent the best comparison of market potential.

Multiple attempts were made to contact each building.  Information was tallied
separately for different types of rental housing, including conventional market
rate units, tax credit/moderate rent units, subsidized housing, and senior
housing.  All of the tax credit/moderate rent, subsidized and senior with
services projects were surveyed.  Also, we attempted to survey all of the
market rate rental projects and information was obtained on a high percentage
of these projects.

There were 316 rental units of all types that were contacted in the survey.  This
total would represent approximately 81% of the estimated total inventory of
rental housing units in 2019.  The units that were successfully contacted
include:

< 211 conventional, market rate units
< 68 tax credit/moderate rent units
< 16 subsidized units for general occupancy 
< 21 specialized senior living units including 10 for assisted living

The findings of the survey by unit type are provided below. 

� Hartford Housing Study Update  - 2019 37



Rental Housing Inventory   �

Market Rate Summary

Usable information was obtained from 15 different market rate rental projects. 
Combined, these projects have 211 conventional rental units.  All of the units in
the survey were multifamily buildings, with the exception of one unit in a
duplex.
 
Unit Mix

We obtained unit size information on the 211 units from property
owners/managers.  The bedroom mix breakdown of the 211 units is as follows:

< Efficiency/Studio - 4 units (1.9%)
< One-bedroom - 27 units (12.8%)
< Two-bedroom - 99 units (46.9%)
< Three-bedroom - 81 units (38.4%)

No units with four or more bedrooms were surveyed, however, some single
family houses in the community that provide rental housing, may have four or
more bedrooms which would accommodate large families.

Occupancy / Vacancy

Within the market rate multifamily segment there were 12 vacant units in the
211 market rate rental units that were surveyed.  This represents an overall
vacancy rate of 5.7%.  The property owners/managers generally reported good 
occupancy rates, however, there are occasional vacancies.  At the time of the
2016 Hartford Housing Study, the vacancy rate for market rate units was 1.5%.

Rental Rates

Rental units may include the primary utility payments within the contract rent,
or the tenant may be required to pay some utilities separately, in addition to
the contract rent.  In most of the newest units in Hartford, tenants pay both
gas and electric, which would include heat, general electrical, and hot water in
addition to the monthly contract rent.

In the following summary, Community Partners Research, Inc., has attempted
to estimate the gross rents being charged, inclusive of an estimate for tenant-
paid utilities.

� Hartford Housing Study Update  - 2019 38



Rental Housing Inventory   �

The lowest and highest gross rents have been identified, as reported in the
telephone survey. 

Lowest/Highest 
Unit Type   Gross Rents    

Efficiency/Studio       $525     
One-bedroom   $625-$1,040      
Two-bedroom   $770-$1,425      
Three-bedroom         $1,300-$1,450     

The efficiency/studio rent is based on only one project.

� Hartford Housing Study Update  - 2019 39



Rental Housing Inventory   �

Tax Credit/Moderate Rent Summary

There are three rental projects in Hartford with a total 68 units that have either
received an allocation of low income housing tax credits or federal HOME
Program funding and provide options for more affordable rental housing.

In South Dakota, tax credits are awarded annually on a competitive basis.  Two
rental projects have received a tax credit award.  Deer Hollow used tax credits
for the construction of 24 town house-style units in 2008.  A second phase of
Deer Hollow opened in 2011, with 32 additional units.  All units in Deer Hollow I
and II serve households at or below 60% of the median income level, with
some units set-aside for households at 40% or 50% of the median income
level.

Another rental project, Whispering Pines, used federal HOME Program funds. 
Ten of the 12 units in Whispering Pines are income-restricted, at either 50% or
80% of the median income level.  The remaining two units do not have income
restrictions. 

Unit Mix

The following unit breakdown of the 68 units is based on the specific
information obtained from property owners/managers:

< Two-bedroom - 40 units (58.8%)
< Three-bedroom - 28 units (41.2%)

Tax credit housing is often oriented to working-age families, and most units
tend to have two or more bedrooms.

Occupancy / Vacancy

At the time of the survey, there were no vacant units in the 68 tax
credit/moderate rent units.  The property managers reported high occupancy
rates on an ongoing basis and high demand for the units.  The 2016 Housing
Study reported one vacant unit.

Rental Rates

The tax credit and HOME programs have maximum rent limits that are set as
part of the financial assistance package.  The rents in Deer Hollow are $531 to
$677 for a two-bedroom unit and $620 to $804 for a three-bedroom unit.  The
two-bedroom rents in Whispering Pines are $408 to $610.

� Hartford Housing Study Update  - 2019 40



Rental Housing Inventory   �

Subsidized Summary

The research completed for this Study identified only one subsidized project in
Hartford that provides rental opportunities for lower income households. Royal
Apartments is a 16-unit general occupancy subsidized USDA Rural Development
project.  The 16 units include two one-bedroom units and 14 two-bedroom
units.

The units in Royal Apartments have access to project-based rent assistance. 
Tenants pay 30% of their household income for rent up to the unit’s market
rent.  The manager reported no vacancies at the time of the survey.  The units
were also fully occupied at the time of the Housing Study.

Subsidized Housing Gains/Losses

Federal subsidy sources for low income rental housing have been very limited
for the past few decades.  Most subsidized projects were constructed in the
1960s, 1970s or early 1980s.  Some of these older projects may have
completed their compliance requirements and have the opportunity to leave
their subsidy program and convert to conventional rental housing.  In
communities with low vacancy rates, private property owners may have an
incentive to convert subsidized units to conventional housing.  The research for
this Study identified one project that has left its subsidy program in recent
years.  In 2011 the compliance contract for Hartford Manor expired, and the 12
units in this project converted to conventional market rate housing.

Tenant-Based Housing Choice Vouchers

There are also tenant-based rent assistance Housing Choice Vouchers available
for Hartford tenants.  The Voucher Program is administered by the Sioux Falls
Housing and Redevelopment Commission.  Housing Choice Voucher assistance
is issued to income-eligible households for use in suitable, private market rental
housing units.  With the assistance, a household pays approximately 30% to
40% their income for their rent, with the program subsidy paying any additional
rent amounts.  

In September 2019, there were several renter households receiving Voucher
assistance in Hartford.  Since this rent assistance is tenant-based, and moves
with the household, the actual number of participating households within the
City can vary from month to month.  

The waiting list for the Housing Choice Voucher is approximately 2 ½ years.

� Hartford Housing Study Update  - 2019 41



Rental Housing Inventory   �

Senior Housing with Services Summary

There is one project in Hartford that provides senior housing with services. 
Leisure Living II has 21 rooms available.  These rooms can range from sleeping
rooms with a private bathroom to two-room suites.  There are no kitchens in
these units.  All meals are provided in a common dining area.

Ten of the rooms are licensed with the State as an Assisted Living Center, and
residents receive a higher level of care and assistance with daily living tasks. 
The remaining units are registered with the State as a Residential Living
Center.  These residents receive meals, and light services such as weekly
housekeeping and laundry, and they may contract for additional services, if
needed.

This project will accept up to five residents with Medicaid Waivers assistance in
the assisted living units.  Due to the reimbursement rate, many assisted living
facilities are private-pay only, or they limit the number of Medicaid residents. 
The willingness to accept Medicaid does attract some residents to Hartford.

At the time of the rental survey, there were four vacancies in the residential
lighter services rooms.  However, housing for older seniors can have a high rate
of turnover and the number of vacancies flucuates.

The rent and fees are based on the type of room and the level of services
provided.

� Hartford Housing Study Update  - 2019 42



Multifamily Rental Housing   �

Table 21 Hartford Multifamily Rental Housing Inventory

Name Number of Units
 /Bedroom Mix

Rent Vacancy/
Wait List

Tenant Mix Comments

Market Rate

Fifth Street
Apartments

 &
Townhomes

3 - 2 Bedroom
15 - 3 Bedroom

18 Total Units

$895
$945-$1095 No vacancies

General
occupancy

Fifth Street Apartments and Townhomes includes two two-

level apartment buildings with four units in one building
and eight units in one building that opened for occupancy

in 2012. All of the apartment units have three bedrooms.
There are also three two-bedroom townhomes and three

three-bedroom townhomes. The apartments rent is $995 to
$1,050. Rent includes water, sewer and garbage, with

tenants paying other utilities. Amenities include in-unit
laundry, dishwasher, garage parking, and patio/deck. Units

have 1,206 sq. ft. and two bathrooms. The rent on the
two-bedroom townhomes is $895 and the three-bedroom

rents are $1,095. Tenants also pay utilities. Manager
reports no vacancies.

Hartford

Manor

4 - Efficiencies

8 - 1 Bedroom
12 Total Units

$525

$625

Two

vacancies

General

occupancy

Hartford Manor includes two rental buildings constructed in
1970 and originally HUD-subsidized, but the contract

expired in 2011 and the units converted to conventional
housing. Rent includes utilities. The owner reported no

vacancies at the time of the survey.

Heather
Gardens

Apartments

4 - 2 Bedroom

4 Total Units

$580

+heat,
electric

No vacancies General

occupancy

Hartford Gardens Apartment is a four-plex constructed in

1978. Tenants pay gas and electric in addition to rent.
Amenities include coin laundry and garage. The owner

reported no vacancies at the time of the survey. The owner
also reports that most tenants are 

long-term with limited turnover. 

Pinecrest

Estates

20 - 3 Bedroom
20 Total Units

$1050-$1100
+heat,

electric

Two
vacancies

General
occupancy

Pinecrest Estates includes five 4-plexes that were

constructed in 2012 and 2013. Tenants pay gas and
electric in addition to rent. Amenities include attached

garage and in-unit laundry. The units have 1,240 sq. ft.
and two bathrooms. The manager reported no vacancies at

the time of the survey.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 43



Multifamily Rental Housing   �

Table 21 Hartford Multifamily Rental Housing Inventory

Name Number of Units
 /Bedroom Mix

Rent Vacancy/
Wait List

Tenant Mix Comments

Market Rate

300 E 2nd St 1 - 2 Bedroom
1 Total Unit

$850
+utilities

No vacancies General
occupancy

The unit is a duplex. The other unit is owner occupied. Rent

is $850 plus utilities. The duplex is approximately three
years old. The unit was occupied at the time of the survey.

 Thompson

Apartments

2 - 1 Bedroom

14 - 2 Bedroom
16 Total Units

$610

$710
+electric

1 vacancy General

occupancy

Thompson Apartments includes two eight-unit apartment

buildings constructed in 1971 and 1973.  Rent includes
water and sewer. Tenants pay electric. Amenities include

off-street parking and coin laundry. The owner reported no
vacancies at time of survey, however, one unit is not being

rented at this time due to renovation.

West Oaks
Estates

4 - 1 Bedroom

26 - 2 Bedroom
2 - 3 Bedroom

32 Total Units

$750

$875
$1100

+heat,
electric

2 vacancies General
occupancy

West Oaks Estates includes two two-level apartment

buildings constructed in 2006 and 2007. Rent includes
water, sewer and garbage, with tenants paying heat and

electricity. Garages available for extra fee.  Amenities
include in-unit laundry, patio/deck and community room.

One-bedrooms have 925 sq ft and one bathroom, two-
bedrooms have 1,080 sq. ft. and two bathrooms and three-

bedrooms have 1,200 sq. ft. and two bathrooms. The
manager reported two vacancies at the time of the survey.

Vista Crossing
8 - 1 Bedroom
12 - 2 Bedroom

20 Total Units

$825-$840
$995 No vacancies General

occupancy

Vista Crossing is a 20-unit market rate rental project
constructed in 2015. The project also includes commercial

space. The 20 units include eight one-bedroom and 12
two-bedroom units. The one bedroom units have one bath

and the two-bedroom units have two baths. Rent includes
water, sewer, garbage and one garage stall. The project

and the units have ‘state of the art’ amenities. The owner
reported no vacancies at the time of the survey.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 44



Multifamily Rental Housing   �

Table 21 Hartford Multifamily Rental Housing Inventory

Name Number of Units
 /Bedroom Mix

Rent Vacancy/
Wait List

Tenant Mix Comments

Market Rate

Hendrickson
Apartments

4 - 2 Bedroom
4 Total Units

$675-$825 No vacancies General
occupancy

Hendrickson Apartments includes four market rate rental

units. The project was constructed in 2003. All four units
are two-bedroom. The owner reported no vacancies at the

time of the survey.

Kellenberger
Properties

4 - 3 Bedroom
4 Total Units

$1150
+ utilities 1 vacancy

General
occupancy

Kellenberger Properties is a four-unit general occupancy

market rate rental project constructed in 2014. All four
units have three bedrooms and high quality amenities.

Rent is $1,100 plus utilities. The owner reported one
vacancy at the time of the survey.

Howling
Plains

4 - 1 Bedroom

16 - 2 Bedroom
4 - 3 Bedroom

24 Total Units

$650

$795
$1,150

2 vacancies General
occupancy

Howling Plains includes two 12-unit buildings. One building
has four one-bedroom, four two-bedroom and four three-

bedroom units. The second building has all two bedroom
units. Tenants will also pay heat and electricity. Each unit

will has a one-car garage. The manager reported two two-
bedroom vacancies at the time of the survey.

Freedom

Place
Apartments

12 - 3 Bedroom

12 Total Units

$1150

+ plus gas &
electricity 

No vacancies General
occupancy

Freedom Place Apartments is a 12-unit market rate general
occupancy project. The 12 units are in three 4-plexes. The

units were constructed in 2016 and 2017. The units have
two baths and double garages. Rent is $1,150 plus gas and

electricity. There were no vacancies at the time of the
survey.

Hendrickson
Western

Meadows
Apartments

8 - 2 Bedroom

8 Total Units

$785-$935

+ utilities

No vacancies General

occupancy

Hendrickson Western Meadows Apartments includes eight
two-bedroom units. The units were constructed in 2016.

Rents range from $785 to $935 plus utilities. The owner
reported no vacancies at the time of the survey.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 45



Multifamily Rental Housing   �

Table 21 Hartford Multifamily Rental Housing Inventory

Name Number of Units
 /Bedroom Mix

Rent Vacancy/
Wait List

Tenant Mix Comments

Market Rate

Bernadine

Place

12 - 2 Bedroom

12 Total Units

$1200

+ utilities

No vacancies General

occupancy

Bernadine Place includes 12 two-bedroom units in six

twinhomes. Five twinhomes have been recently
constructed and one twinhome is currently under

construction. Rent is $1,200 plus utilities. The units have
attached garages. The owner reported no vacancies at the

time of the survey.

Barker

Properties

24 - 3 Bedroom

24 Total Units

$1000

+ heat,
electric

Two

vacancies

General

occupancy

Barker Properties includes 24 three-bedroom units in six 4-

plexes. The units were constructed in 2017. Rents are
$1,100 plus heat and electricity. The units are $1,200 sg.

ft. with attached double garages, attached 2.5 stall
garages, and in-unit laundry. The manager reported two

vacancies at the time of the survey.

Tax Credit/Moderate Rent

Deer Hollow

Apartments

12 - 2 Bedroom

12 - 3 Bedroom
24 Total Units

$531-$677

$620-$804
+ heat,

electric

No vacancies

All units
serve

households
below 40%,

50% or 60%
of median

income

Deer Hollow is a tax credit rental project constructed in two
phases with phase 1 opening in 2008. There are three

buildings with eight town house-style units per building.
Rent includes water, sewer and garbage, with tenants

paying other utilities. Amenities include garage, in-unit
laundry, play ground and community room. Two-bedroom

units have 1,026 to 1,058 sq. ft. with either one or two
bathrooms and three-bedroom units have 1,344 to 1,497

sq. ft. with two bathrooms. The manager reported no
vacancies at the time of the survey.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 46



Multifamily Rental Housing   �

Table 21 Hartford Multifamily Rental Housing Inventory

Name Number of Units
 /Bedroom Mix

Rent Vacancy/
Wait List

Tenant Mix Comments

Tax Credit/Moderate Rent

Deer Hollow

II
Apartments

16 - 2 Bedroom

16 - 3 Bedroom
32 Total Units

$531-$677

$620-$804
+ heat,

electric

No vacancies

All units

serve
households

below 40%,
50% or 60%

of median
income

Deer Hollow II is a tax credit rental project constructed in
two phases with phase 2 opening in 2011. There are four

buildings with eight town house-style units per building.
Rent includes water, sewer and garbage, with tenants

paying other utilities. Amenities include garage, in-unit
laundry, playground and community room. Two-bedroom

units have 1,026 to 1,058 sq. ft. with either one or two
bathrooms and three-bedroom units have 1,344 to 1,497

sq. ft. with two bathrooms. The manager reported no
vacancies at the time of the survey.  

Whispering
Pines

Apartments 

2 - 2 Bdrm 50%

8 - 2 Bdrm 80%
2 - 2 Bdrm market

12 Total Units

$408

$522
$610

+ heat,
electric

No vacancies

2 units @
50% of

median, 8
units @ 80%

of median
and 2 units

market rate

Whispering Pines is a mixed-income rental project
constructed with HOME funds. Two units serve households

at or below 50% of median, and eight units at 80% of
median, with two units having no income limits. The

manager reported no vacancies at the time of the survey.

Subsidized

Royal
Apartments

507 N Oaks
Ave

2 - 1 Bedroom
14 - 2 Bedroom

16 Total Units

$505
$565

30% of
income

No vacancies
General

occupancy

Royal Apartments two two-level apartment buildings with
eight units each that are subsidized through USDA Rural

Development and were constructed in mid-1970s. The
project offers general occupancy housing and tenants have

access to project-based rent assistance that allows rent
based on 30% of income, up to market rents listed. No

vacancies were reported at the time of the survey. 

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 47



Multifamily Rental Housing   �

Table 21 Hartford Multifamily Rental Housing Inventory

Name Number of Units
 /Bedroom Mix

Rent Vacancy/
Wait List

Tenant Mix Comments

Senior Housing with Services

Leisure Living

II

21 beds in 21

units, 10 licensed
assisted living and

11 are registered
as residential

living

Varies based
on level of

services

 

4 vacant
residential

units

Senior

Assisted
Living

Center/
Residential

Living Center 

Leisure Living II is a senior housing project with 21 rooms

that are registered as a Residential Living Center, but 10 of
the rooms are also licensed as an Assisted Living Center.

The project approximately 19 years old. All tenants receive
a basic services package that includes three meals,

housekeeping and laundry, and then more intensive
services are available to assisted living residents.  Rooms

have private bathrooms. The administrator reported that
the facility has four vacant residential units. The facility

accepts Medicaid for up to five assisted living residents.

Source: Community Partners Research, Inc.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 48



Regional Housing Data   �

Net Household Growth in the Sioux Falls MSA

Over the last few decades, the entire Sioux Falls MSA has grown at a rapid rate. 
Between the 2010 Census and the 2019 estimate from Applied Geographic
Solutions, a substantial number of households were added in Sioux Falls and in
many of the smaller cities in Minnehaha and Lincoln Counties.  The following
table examines growth in numeric and percentage terms.  The listed cities have
been ordered by the numeric household growth that occurred over the 9-year
period.  

Table 22 Household Growth by Jurisdiction: 2010 to 2019

City 2010 Census 2019 AGS
Estimate

Numeric Growth Percentage Growth

Sioux Falls 61,707 75,664 13,957 22.6%

Brandon 3,118 3,804 686 22.0%

Tea 1,254 1,936 682 54.4%

Harrisburg 1,423 2,049 626 44.0%

Hartford 913 1,264 351 38.4%

Dell Rapids 1,388 1,439 50 3.6%

Crooks 431 472 41 9.5%

Worthing 325 353 28 8.6%

MSA 83,677 107,207 23,530 28.1%

Source: US Census; Applied Geographic Solutions

Between the Census in 2010 and 2019, Brandon captured the largest numeric
share of household growth for any single jurisdiction outside of Sioux Falls, and
added 686 households according to Applied Geographic Solutions.  Tea and
Harrisburg, both located in Lincoln County, had a similar level of numeric
growth, adding 682 and 626 households, respectively.  Hartford’s addition of
351 households was the next highest gain.

In percentage terms, Tea has had the largest increase in households so far this
decade, with growth of more than 54%.  Harrisburg at 44% and Hartford at
more than 38% also grew at a faster rate than the entire MSA.  Although
Brandon had the largest numeric household growth of the smaller cities around
Sioux Falls, the percentage increase of 22% trailed the rate for the entire MSA.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 49



Regional Housing Data   �

MSA Housing Unit Construction Activity: 2004 to 2018

The U.S. Census Bureau collects building permit issuance information from
individual cities, towns and townships.  Annual housing construction summary
information is available for the combined jurisdictions that form the Sioux Falls
MSA.  This represents a four-county area of Minnehaha, Lincoln, McCook and
Turner Counties.

It is important to note that the Census Bureau’s annual totals may differ from
other information provided within this section, which was collected directly from
individual cities.  However, the Census Bureau reports do provide some
perspective on housing construction within the larger MSA.  Census Bureau
annual totals for the City of Hartford are also provided for comparison. 

Housing construction activity in Hartford has represented a relatively small
share of all activity in the Sioux Falls MSA in recent years.  However, from 2010
through 2018, unit construction in Hartford represented 1.8% of all MSA
activity. 

From 2010 to 2018, multifamily projects with three or more units in Hartford
accounted for approximately 2.0% of the new multifamily unit construction in
the MSA.  For one and two family housing units, Hartford represented nearly
1.6% of all construction in the MSA. 

Although multifamily unit construction could represent different types of
housing, including condominiums or cooperatively owned housing, it is assumed
that the large majority of multifamily units are intended for renter-occupancy. 
Conversely, it is assumed that most of the single family and two-unit
construction would represent owner-occupancy housing.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 50



Regional Housing Data   �

Table 23 Hartford and MSA Housing Unit Construction Activity - 2004 to 2018

Year

City of Hartford Sioux Falls MSA

Single

Family

Two

Family

3 to 4

Family

Multifamily Total Single

Family

Two

Family

3 to 4

Family

Multifamily Total

2018 15 6 0 0 21 1,306 12 46 938 2,302

2017 17 8 28 0 53 1,533 22 67 1,292 2,914

2016 21 4 4 32 61 1,431 6 58 1,589 3,084

2015 21 4 8 21 54 1,069 120 67 670 1,926

2014 16 0 4 6 26 1,134 8 131 1,057 2,330

2013 17 2 8 0 27 1,330 6 52 1,021 2,409

2012 14 2 0 16 32 1,104 12 36 435 1,587

2011 5 4 0 12 21 716 16 19 378 1,129

2010 8 6 3 32 49 755 8 111 207 1,081

2009 10 2 0 0 12 962 24 99 492 1,577

2008 16 8 0 0 24 940 84 143 699 1,866

2007 22 0 3 40 65 1,517 96 148 621 2,382

2006 17 4 0 16 37 1,646 38 175 464 2,323

2005 25 4 0 0 29 1,869 22 95 309 2,295

2004 28 0 0 0 28 1,909 20 52 467 2,448

Total 252 54 58 175 539 19,221 494 1,299 10,639 31,653

Source: City of Hartford; U.S. Census Bureau; Community Partners Research, Inc.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 51



Regional Housing Data   �

According to Census Bureau reports, the year 2016 represented the highest
year for new housing unit production in the MSA over the nine-year period
reviewed.  The total production in 2017, was only slightly lower, as both years
had more than 2,900 total units that were permitted in the entire MSA.  

The total unit production identified in 2018 was lower than in the previous two
years.  However, the Census Bureau totals were still considered to be
preliminary for that year, and it is possible that the unit count may still be
revised.  

As the primary jurisdiction in the MSA, the City of Sioux Falls accounts for a
large majority of the units constructed annually. Over the time period reviewed,
Sioux Falls has represented between 70% and 86% of the annual MSA
construction activity, and in most recent years, the City’s share has been 80%
or higher, according to the Census Bureau.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 52



Regional Housing Data   �

Regional Rental Vacancy Rates

The South Dakota Multi-Housing Association has tracked rental housing vacancy
information for the Sioux Falls area for many years through a semiannual
survey.  This information provides an excellent source of information that not
only provides a current picture of rental housing occupancy, but also a
perspective on longer-term trends.  The following chart presents the Multi-
Housing Association vacancy calculations dating back to the year 2009 to
provide a 10-year history. 
 
The most recently completed vacancy survey was from January 2019.  This
survey found a 9.8% vacancy rate in conventional market rate housing.  The
survey included more than 14,100 conventional units and found 1,388
vacancies.  Although this was an area-wide survey, including communities that
are within a 20-mile radius of Sioux Falls, more than 92% of the reporting units

were located within the City of Sioux Falls.
The last three rental surveys have all recorded vacancy rates that are well
above-average within the conventional housing segment.  The January 2019
survey found a vacancy rate of 9.8%%.  While this was lower than the rate of
11.5% in January 2018, it was up from the 9.2% in July 2018.

A general standard for rental housing vacancy is that a rate up to 5% is
considered acceptable.  A modest level of vacancy is desirable to allow tenant
movement in the market by providing choices for prospective renters.  It also
allows a community the chance to grow, as new households moving into the
area can locate a living unit.  In Sioux Falls, a vacancy rate above 5% would
not be surprising for individual surveys, as large-scale unit construction can
occur which can temporarily cause an oversupply of units.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 53



Regional Housing Data   �

However, since 2016 the conventional vacancy rate has been sustained at 6%
or higher.  In the January 2018 survey, the vacancy rate had reached a recent
peak of 11.5%, the third highest level in the past 10 years.

People interviewed in past studies in the area have cited the cyclical nature of
rental production, especially in Sioux Falls.  As the vacancy rate has risen,
construction activity in subsequent years tends to diminish. As vacancy rates
begin to fall, it has been typical to see an above-average level of construction. 

Although the vacancy rates since 2016 have risen above a desired level, past
history shows that the market has had the ability to “self-correct” rather
quickly, as was evident between 2010 and 2011.  The City of Sioux Falls and
the entire MSA have continued to add households at a very rapid rate, creating
annual demand for rental units. 

While past history would suggest that rental unit construction could slow as
vacancy rates rise, the past few years have witnessed above-average
multifamily construction in the MSA.  The building permit reporting presented
earlier in this section showed that the number of multifamily units permitted in
2016 and 2017 were well above the annual average, and were the highest two
years over the 15-year time period reviewed.  

After reaching a single year peak of nearly 1,600 multifamily units permitted in
2016, this level did drop to fewer than 950 units in 2018.  However, despite
this reduction, the production in 2018 was still well above the 15-year average
of approximately 710 multifamily units per year between 2004 and 2018.

Income-Based Housing Vacancy Rates

The large majority of the units in the Multi-Housing survey are conventional
rentals.  However, in most surveys, 2,000 or more units of income-based
housing are also included.  The income-based units include moderate rent
properties constructed through the tax credit program and federally subsidized
low income housing.

Since the start of 2016, the vacancy rate in moderate rent tax credit housing
has generally been below the conventional rate.  In the January 2019 survey,
tax credit units had a vacancy rate of 8.5%, compared to the conventional
housing vacancy rate of 9.8%.

Federally-subsidized housing, listed in the reports as “HUD units”, have tended
to maintain a low rate of vacancy over time.  In the most recent report, the
vacancy rate for HUD units was 4.6%, the only specific market sector with a
vacancy rate below 5%.   

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 54



Regional Housing Data   �

Vacancy Rates Outside of Sioux Falls

The Multi-Housing Survey does typically collect some rental data from units that
are outside of the City of Sioux Falls, but within a 20-mile radius.  Recent
surveys have provided specific data for the Cities of Brandon and Harrisburg,
and then groups the remaining small communities together.   

Including Brandon, Harrisburg and other outlying areas within a 20-mile radius
of Sioux Falls, the January 2019 survey collected information from 1,054
conventional market rate units, and found a vacancy rate of 11%, higher than
the 9.8% rate for the entire Sioux Falls area. 

There were 473 moderate rent tax credit units surveyed outside of Sioux Falls
and the vacancy rate was 5.5%, lower than the 8.5% rate for the larger area. 
There were only 36 HUD units surveyed outside of Sioux Falls, with a vacancy
rate of 2.8%.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 55



Regional Housing Data   �

Rental Rates    

Information on rental rates is also available from the Multi-Housing
Association’s semiannual survey.  The most recent information was collected in
January 2019. 

The Multi-Housing Association survey provides a current look at rental rates. 
This information is provided for different geographic segments of the Sioux Falls
area.

Table 24 Conventional Housing Average Rental Rates - January 2019 

Unit Type
Conventional Rentals

Outlying Areas Sioux Falls Region

Studio $675 $765

1-Bedroom $726 $866

2-Bedroom $854 $1,063

3-Bedroom $1,042 $1,253

4-Bedroom $1,275 $1,795

Source: SD Multi-Housing Association; Community Partners Research, Inc.

When examining the average rent information for the different communities
outside of Sioux Falls, it is important to note that the number of units surveyed
may be small.  Even for the entire region, the number of studio units and four-
bedroom rentals is limited, and are much less common than one, two, and
three-bedroom rentals.  

In general, the rental rates outside of Sioux Falls are lower than for the entire
region.  For units with one to three bedrooms, the rates for the communities
outside Sioux Falls tend to range from approximately 80% to 85% of the
regionwide rates.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 56



Employment and Local Economic Trends   �

Employment and Local Economic Trends

While many factors influence the need for housing, employment opportunities
represent a predominant demand generator.  Without jobs and corresponding
wages, the means to afford housing is severely limited.  Much of the household
growth that has occurred in the Sioux Falls MSA in the past decade was the
direct result of job opportunities that were available, especially in the City of
Sioux Falls.  The type of employment, wage level, and working conditions will
each influence the kind of housing that is needed and at what level of
affordability.  

Major employers in Sioux Falls with more than 1,000 employees include:

< Sanford Health
< Avera
< John Morrell & Company
< Wells Fargo
< Sioux Falls School District
< Citibank
< Hy-Vee Food Stores
< Sioux Valley Clinic
< Evangelical Lutheran Good Samaritan Society
< Midwest Coast Transport
< WalMart/Sam’s Club
< First PREMIER Bank/PREMIER Finance Bankcard
< City of Sioux Falls 

Source: Governor’s Office of Economic Development

�   Hartford Housing Study Update  - 2019  57



Employment and Local Economic Trends   �

Work Force and Unemployment Rates

Employment information is available for the Sioux Falls MSA.  Information has
been reviewed back to the year 2010.  Data in the tables that follow have been
obtained from the South Dakota Department of Labor.

Table 25 Sioux Falls MSA Annual Labor Statistics: 2010 to 2018

Year
Labor
Force

Employed Unemployed Unemployment
Rate - MSA

Unemployment
Rate - SD

Unemployment
Rate - US

2010 133,585 127,238 6,347 4.8% 5.0% 9.6%

2011 134,281 128,513 5,768 4.3% 4.7% 8.9%

2012 136,615 131,430 5,185 3.8% 4.3% 8.1%

2013 138,817 134,408 4,409 3.2% 3.8% 7.4%

2014 141,705 137,621 4,084 2.9% 3.4% 6.2%

2015 144,405 140,656 3,749 2.6% 3.1% 5.3%

2016 146,944 143,303 3,641 2.5% 3.0% 4.9%

2017 149,980 145,965 4,015 2.7% 3.2% 4.4%

2018 152,130 148,267 3,863 2.5% 3.0% 3.9%

Source: South Dakota Department of Labor

The Sioux Falls MSA continues to be strong for labor force and job growth. 
Over the time period from 2010 through 2018, the size of the resident labor
force increased by more than 18,500 people, or an increase of 13.9%.  The
employed resident work force increased by more than 21,000 people during
this same time, for an increase of 16.5%.  The MSA’s unemployment rate has
generally decreased over this longer time period and by 2018 was at 2.5%.

�   Hartford Housing Study Update  - 2019  58



Employment and Local Economic Trends   �

Employment and Wages by Industry

The following table shows the annual employment and average annual wages in
2018, the last full year of data.  This information is for all of the MSA.

Table 26 MSA Average Annual Wages - 2018

Industry 2018 Employment Average Annual Wage

Total All Industry 153,130 $48,736

Source: South Dakota Department of Labor

The average annual wage for all industry in 2018 was $48,736 for the Sioux
Falls MSA.  

�   Hartford Housing Study Update  - 2019  59



Employment and Local Economic Trends   �

Commuting Patterns of Hartford Residents

Some information is available on area workers that commute for employment. 
The best information is from the American Community Survey, and has been
examined for the City of Hartford.  The first table examines City residents that
traveled to work and excludes people that work at home.

Table 27 Commuting Times for Residents - 2017

Hartford

Travel Time Number Percent

Less than 10 minutes 217 13.9%

10 to 19 minutes 316 20.3%

20 to 34 minutes 895 57.5%

35 minutes + 129 8.3%

Total 1,557 100%

Source: American Community Survey

The large majority of Hartford’s residents were leaving the City for their
primary employment.  Fewer than 14% of residents were traveling less than 10
minutes, the time typically required for a locally-based job.  Nearly 58% were
traveling between 20 and 34 minutes, consistent with employment in Sioux
Falls.  Only 8.3% of City residents were traveling 35 minutes or more.  

The American Community Survey also identifies travel time by location of
employment.  For people that worked in Hartford, the following travel times
were identified.

Table 28 Commuting Times for Hartford Workers - 2017

Hartford

Travel Time Number Percent

Less than 10 minutes 196 30.2%

10 to 19 minutes 251 38.7%

20 to 29 minutes 92 14.2%

30 minutes + 110 16.9%

Total 649 100%

Source: American Community Survey

�   Hartford Housing Study Update  - 2019  60



Employment and Local Economic Trends   �

Most of the people that were employed within the City of Hartford in 2017 lived
either within the community, or within the immediate area.  Overall,
approximately 69% of city-based workers had a travel time of 19 minutes or
less to their primary job.  However, nearly 17% of workers did commute for 30
minutes or more to work in Hartford.
  

�   Hartford Housing Study Update  - 2019  61



Employment and Local Economic Trends   �

Census On the Map

The Census Bureau also produces commuter reports through its Center for
Economic Studies division.  This information is based on reports for the year
2015 and provides a further breakdown of worker movement.

According to the report for Hartford, there were 625 people that were employed
within the City in 2015.  Fewer than 22% of these city-based employees also
lived in Hartford.  The remaining 78% of employees lived outside the City and
commuted in for their job.  The primary jurisdictions supplying workers to
Hartford were Sioux Falls, Wall Lake Township, Hartford Township and
Humboldt.

On the Map can also be used to track worker outflow patterns from the City. 
Overall, there were 1,384 Hartford residents that were employed.  Only 135 of
these City residents worked inside the community, while 1,249 traveled to
other locations.  Fewer than 10% of the City’s employed residents both lived
and worked in Hartford.  The primary identified destination for employment was
Sioux Falls.  Overall, nearly 63% of Hartford’s residents that left the City were
commuting to Sioux Falls.  

�   Hartford Housing Study Update  - 2019  62



Findings and Recommendations   �

Findings on Growth Trends

As part of this Study, Community Partners Research, Inc., has examined
growth  patterns for the City of Hartford, Minnehaha County and the Sioux Falls
MSA over the past few decades.  These historic growth trends have then been
used as a basis for projecting future demographic changes in the area.

Esri estimates that from 2010 to 2019, Hartford gained 934 people, and Applied
Geographic Solutions (AGS) estimates that Hartford gained 772 people.  AGS
estimates that Minnehaha County gained 22,570 people and Esri estimates that
Minnehaha County gained 28,682 people from 2010 to 2019.  This has
continued a long-term pattern of population growth that dates back to at least
1990, the demographic time period reviewed in this Study. 

AGS estimates that from 2010 to 2019, Hartford gained 351 households, and
Esri estimates that the City added 338 households.  AGS estimates that
Minnehaha County gained 13,373 households and Esri shows the County
gaining 11,391 households.  

Findings on Projected Growth

Projections for Hartford and Minnehaha County reflect the patterns of recent
decades.  AGS projects that from 2019 to 2024, Hartford will gain 150 people
and 86 households.  Esri projects that from 2019 to 2024 Hartford will gain 454
people and 164 households. 

AGS is forecasting Minnehaha County will gain 12,692 people and 7,348
households.  Esri projects that Minnehaha County will add 15,948 people and
6,370 households.  

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 63



Findings and Recommendations   �

Strengths for Housing Development

The following strengths for Hartford were identified by reviewing the 2013 and
2016 Comprehensive Housing Studies and through additional statistical data
and local interviews that have been undertaken as part of the 2019 Housing
Study Update.

< Hartford is located near Sioux Falls, which is a regional center for
the area - Hartford is approximately 10 miles from Sioux Falls.  Sioux
Falls provides employment opportunities, retail/service options,
government services, health and professional services, and cultural
amenities to a large surrounding trade area.  Many households prefer to
live near, but not in a regional center.

< Increasingly diverse housing stock - The City has a good mix of
housing options, including rental housing units for lower income,
moderate income and market rate households.  The City also has town
houses, twin homes, and a senior with services facility.

< Median home price - Hartford’s median priced home, based on 2018
sales activity, is approximately $189,900.  This matches well with new
homes, which is an incentive for new home construction.

< Adequate land for development - The City has adequate land available
for residential development.

< Population and household growth for the City - Since 1990, the City
has sustained strong population and household growth and the City is
projected to continue to grow in the future.

< Sioux Falls MSA market - The MSA has had substantial population
growth, household growth and new housing construction for many years.
Hartford continues to capture a portion of this market.

< Active housing developers in the City - Hartford has housing
developers that are willing to invest in housing projects in the
community.  Developers have been active in subdivision development,
rental housing, attached ownership housing and single family
development.

< School system - The City has an excellent public K-12 school system.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 64



Findings and Recommendations   �

< Infrastructure - The City’s public utilities and infrastructure are in good
condition and can facilitate future expansion.

< Park/trail system - The City has developed attractive parks and
recreational opportunities that make the community a desirable place to
live.

< Commercial development - Hartford’s commercial districts are
adequate to meet daily needs and new commercial development is
ongoing.

< Available lots and lot development - The City currently has available
lots for housing of all types.  Also, subdivision and lot development is
ongoing.

< Hartford Area Development Foundation - The Hartford Area
Development Foundation is very active in promoting industrial,
commercial and housing development.

< Hartford Chamber of Commerce - A Chamber of Commerce has been
established in Hartford and began operations in January of 2013. 

< Sioux Falls Growth Pattern - Several large commercial and industrial
projects are in the planning or construction phases in northwest Sioux
Falls.  Growth to the northwest of Sioux Falls benefits residential
development in Hartford.

< Commuters - Approximately 490 people are commuting into Hartford
daily for employment.  These commuters are a potential market for future
housing construction.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 65



Findings and Recommendations   �

Barriers or Limitations to Housing Activities

Our research also identified the following barriers or limitations that hinder or
prevent certain housing activities in the City of Hartford.

< Proximity to Sioux Falls - Although it is a strength to be located in
close proximity to Sioux Falls, it is also a barrier as Hartford must
compete with Sioux Falls, which offers attractive residential opportunities
and other amenities and services.

< Age and condition of the housing stock - While some of the existing
stock is affordable, these units may be in need of improvements to meet
expectations of potential buyers. 

< Staff capacity limitations - Although the City has access to several
housing agencies, it is very difficult to develop and implement housing
initiatives with limited staff resources.

< Limited commercial options - Hartford has commercial and retail
options to meet daily needs, however, it has limited other retail and
commercial opportunities.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 66



Findings and Recommendations   �

Recommendations, Strategies and
Housing Market Opportunities

Based on the research contained in this Study and the housing strengths and
barriers identified above, we believe that the following recommendations are
realistic options for Hartford.  They are based on the following strategies:

< Focus heavily on the preservation, maintenance and improvement
of the housing stock that already exists - While significant housing
construction will occur in coming years, most of the housing opportunities
will continue to be provided by the housing stock that is already on the
ground.  This is especially important for affordable housing opportunities,
as it will almost always be less expensive to offer an affordable unit
through rehabilitation versus new construction.  Units that are lost due to
deterioration and obsolescence cannot be replaced for a similar price. 
Evidence suggests that the majority of the existing stock is generally
being well maintained, however, a significant percentage of housing
needs repair.  Emphasis on continued improvement will be important to
meet future housing needs.

< Develop life cycle housing - It is vital for a self-contained community
to provide housing opportunities for all ages and household types.  These
housing opportunities enable a community to thrive, and allow
households to live in the community throughout their lives.

< Promote new construction - New construction provides housing
opportunities, stimulates the economy and upgrades the community’s
housing stock.  Both new owner-occupied single family homes and rental
units are needed to provide households in Hartford with housing options
and to assure a healthy housing stock into the future.

< Promote home ownership - Home ownership is the preferred option for
most households.  Home ownership assists in creating community
stability and commitment to the community.  There are many younger
families that are renting their housing.  These households may be
interested in home ownership, if an affordable opportunity is available.

< Prioritize community housing goals - Many of the recommendations
in the Study will require staff-intensive efforts.  The City should prioritize
its housing goals and establish a plan to achieve its goals.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 67



Findings and Recommendations   �

It is very difficult to meet all of the objectives as the balance of the objectives
are very sensitive.  An overly aggressive or overly passive approach to any of
the objectives can cause problems in achieving the other objectives.  For
example, overbuilding new rental housing units could lead to vacancy problems
in older, less marketable units in the community, causing these units to
deteriorate in quality.  The recommendations of this section attempt to provide
a balanced approach to addressing the housing needs of Hartford.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 68



Findings and Recommendations   �

Summary of Hartford Growth Projections by Age

The Demographic section of this Study presented Hartford projection
information on anticipated changes by age group from 2019 to 2024.  This
information can be informative in determining new housing that may be needed
due to age patterns of the area population.  The projections were provided by
Esri. 

Growth is projected in all but one age range.  The largest growth to the year
2024 will occur among people in the 25 to 34 age range.  From 2019 to 2024,
Hartford is projected to gain 79 households in the 44 and younger age groups,
and 94 households in the age ranges 55 and older.

The 45 to 54 age range is projected to lose nine households.  This is the only
age range expected to lose households.

While projections can be informative in planning for change, it is important to
note that they may be altered in the future.  To the extent that Hartford can
continue to attract in-migration, the demographic profile of future residents
may not always match historical patterns, and it is possible that more young
adults will move to the area.

    Projected Change in Households
Age Range         2019 to 2024

15 to 24         4   
25 to 34        72
35 to 44         3  
45 to 54           -9  
55 to 64        23   
65 to 74        37   
75 and older        34      
   Total       164

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 69



Findings and Recommendations   �

Findings on Unit Demand by Type of Housing

Based on the household by age projections presented earlier, the changing age
composition of Hartford’s population through the five-year projection period will
have an impact on demand for housing.

Age 24 and Younger - The projections used for this Study expect an increase
of four households in the 15 to 24 age range through the year 2024.  Past
tenure patterns indicate that as many as 77% of these households in Hartford
will rent their housing.  A small gain of households in this age range should
mean that rental demand from younger households will increase slightly during
the projection period. 

25 to 34 Years Old - The projections show a substantial increase in this age
cohort of 72 households by 2024.  Within this age range households often move
from rental to ownership housing.  The ownership rate among these households
in Hartford was approximately 65% in 2017.  An increase in the number of
households within this age range will mean additional demand for both first-
time home buyer and rental opportunities.

35 to 44 Years Old - This 10-year age cohort has a projected gain of three
households between 2019 and 2024 in Hartford.  In the past, this age group
has had a rate of home ownership in Hartford, at approximately 70%. 
Households within this range often represent both first-time buyers and
households looking to trade-up in housing, selling their starter home for a more
expensive house.  

45 to 54 Years Old - This age group represents a much smaller segment of
the population than the baby boom age group.  For Hartford, the projections
show a loss of nine households in this range.  This age group historically has
had a high rate of home ownership, approximately 85% in Hartford in 2017,
and will often look for trade-up housing opportunities.  With marginal household
losses in this age group, the demand for trade-up housing from this age range
will decrease slightly.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 70



Findings and Recommendations   �

55 to 64 Years Old - This age range is part of the baby boom generation. The
projections show an expected increase of 23 additional households in this 10-
year age range by the year 2024.  This age range has traditionally had a rate of
home ownership in Hartford, at approximately 73% in 2024.  Age-appropriate
housing, such as town house or twin home units, is often well suited to the life-
cycle preferences of this age group, as no maintenance/low maintenance
housing has become a popular option for empty-nesters. 

65 to 74 Years Old - Relatively strong household growth is expected in
Hartford within this age range, with the projections showing an increase of 37
households by the year 2024.  While this group will begin moving to life-cycle
housing options as they age, the younger seniors are still predominantly home
owners.  In 2017, approximately 93% of households in this age range owned
their housing in Hartford.  Once again, preferences for age-appropriate units
should increase from household growth within this age cohort.  

75 Years and Older - A gain of 34 households is projected among seniors. 
Historic home ownership rates in this age group vary from 88% for younger
seniors age 75 to 84 to approximately 48% for older seniors over the age of 85. 
Seniors in this age range often seek senior housing with services options.

These demographic trends will be incorporated into the recommendations that
follow later in this section.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 71



Findings and Recommendations   �

Summary of Findings/Recommendations

The findings/recommendations for the City of Hartford have been formulated
through the analysis of the information provided in the previous sections and
review of the 2016 Housing Study.  The 2019 Hartford Housing Study includes
a total of 21 recommendations divided into the following five categories: 

< Rental Housing Development
< Home Ownership
< Single Family New Construction
< Housing Rehabilitation
< Other Housing Initiatives

The findings/recommendations for each category are as follows:

Findings and Recommendations for the City of Hartford

Rental Housing Development

1.  Develop 35 to 45 market rate rental units

2.  Consider the development of 20 to 24 additional tax credit units

3. Develop 12 to 14 additional subsidized rental housing units

4. Monitor the need for additional senior housing with services units

5.      Develop 16 to 19 senior independent/light services market rate units

6. Develop a second mixed-use commercial/housing project

7.      Continue to utilize the Housing Choice Voucher Program

Home Ownership

8. Utilize and promote all programs that assist with home ownership

9. Monitor the need to develop a purchase/rehabilitation program

New Construction

10. Lot availability and development

11.    Promote townhouse and twin home development

12.    Strategies to encourage continued residential lot sales and new home   
         construction in Hartford

13. Coordinate with agencies/nonprofits that develop affordable housing

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 72



Findings and Recommendations   �

Findings and Recommendations for the City of Hartford

Housing Rehabilitation

14. Promote rental housing rehabilitation programs

15. Promote owner-occupied housing rehabilitation programs

Other Housing Initiatives

16. Encourage employer involvement in housing programs

17. Acquire and demolish dilapidated structures

18. Develop mobile home park improvement programs

19. Create a plan and continue coordination among housing agencies

20.    Strategies for Downtown Redevelopment and Commercial Development

21.    Develop home ownership and new construction marketing programs

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 73



Findings and Recommendations   �

Hartford - 
Recommendations

Rental Housing Development

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 74



Findings and Recommendations   �

Rental Housing Development

Overview

The City of Hartford has been successful in attracting new rental housing
construction activity from 2010 to 2019.  Many comparably-sized communities
in South Dakota have had limited rental housing development over the past
decade.

From 2010 to 2019, approximately 169 rental units have been constructed or
are under construction in Hartford.  Of the total 169 rental units constructed
since 2010, 137 units are conventional market rate housing and 32 units are
moderate rent tax credit units.

Hartford’s share of multi-family rental projects with three or more units for the
entire Sioux Falls MSA from 2010 to 2018 is approximately 2.0%. 

With the rental housing construction in Hartford from 2010 to 2019, the City’s
rental tenure rate has been increasing during the current decade, and is higher
than the rate of 22.5% rental at the time of the 2010 Census.  

Demand for new rental housing in Hartford is generated from three factors:
< Growth from new households
< Replacement of lost units
< Pent-up demand from existing households  

Household projections for Hartford expect significant household growth,
although a majority of this growth will result in demand for owner-occupied
housing.  From 2019 to 2024, it is projected that there will be approximately a
164-household gain in Hartford.  Approximately 31% of these households will
be rental households, thus, there will be growth-generated demand for 51
additional rental units over the next five years.

Demand created by replacement of lost units is more difficult to determine, but
the best available evidence suggests that the City will lose only one to two
rental units per year from 2020 to 2025.  As a result, approximately five to 10
additional units will be needed over the next five years to replace lost units.  In
some cases, this unit replacement will be necessary as existing units are
removed from the inventory through demolition or conversion.  However, in
most cases, the unit replacement will be due to single family rental houses
converting to owner-occupancy.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 75



Findings and Recommendations   �

Pent-up demand also exists.  As part of this study, a rental survey was
conducted.  There were 316 rental units that were contacted and surveyed. 
The survey found a 5.7% vacancy rate in general occupancy market rate units,
no vacancies in the moderate rent tax credit units, and no vacancies in the
City’s only subsidized project.  The senior with services project reported four
vacancies in the residential living units.  Based on low rates of vacancy in
certain segments, we identified pent-up demand for market rate units, tax
credit/moderate rent units, subsidized units and senior independent/light
services units in Hartford.

These three demand generators, after factoring current vacancy rates, show a
need for 83 to 102 rental units in Hartford over the next five years.  Based on
the factors stated above, we recommend the development of the following new
rental units from 2020 to 2025. 

< General Occupancy Market Rate   35-45 units
< Tax Credit/Moderate Rent   20-24 units
< Subsidized   12-14 units
< Senior (Independent/Light Services) 16-19 units

Total           83-102 units

The 83 to 102 rental units are projected to be 1.5% to 1.9% of the total rental
units that will potentially be constructed in the Sioux Falls MSA from 2020 to
2025. 

For 83 to 102 additional rental units to be developed over the next five years,
affordable land and infrastructure must be available for multi-family
construction.  Additionally, the City of Hartford must continue to develop
amenities that make Hartford an attractive residential option for households.

1. Develop 35 to 45 general occupancy market rate rental units

Findings:  Approximately 77% of the rental housing in the City of Hartford can
be classified as general occupancy market rate housing.  These units are free of
any specific occupancy restrictions such as financial status, age, or student
enrollment.  Market rate housing does not have any form of rent controls, other
than those imposed by the competitive marketplace.  Compared to other similar
sized cities, Hartford’s percentage of market rate rental housing is relatively
low. 

The entire rental inventory in the City included approximately 386 total units in
2019.  We believe that approximately 281 of these units are best described as
market rate rental housing. 

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 76



Findings and Recommendations   �

Of the 211 market rate rental units we surveyed, we found 12 vacancies for a
vacancy rate of 5.7%, which is slightly above the healthy market range of 3%
to 5%.  The rental property owners and managers generally reported high
occupancy rates and good demand for market rate housing.  At the time of the
2016 Housing Study, the vacancy rate for market rate units was 1.5%.

There is a wide variation in rental rates in the market rate segment in the City
of Hartford.  The prevailing gross rent range is $625 to $1,040 for a one-
bedroom unit, $770 to $1,425 for a two-bedroom unit and $1,300 to $1,450 for
a three-bedroom unit.

From 2016 to the present, 84 market rate rental units have been constructed. 
In 2016, the Hartford Housing Study recommended the construction of 70 to 80
market rate rental units, which included rental units that were under
construction or in the planning phase. 

Recommendation: As stated earlier in this section, rental housing demand is
based on household growth, pent-up demand and replacement of housing units
that have been demolished or converted.  Based on this combination of demand
generators, we believe that it is reasonable to plan for the production of 35 to
45 market rate rental units over the next five years from 2020 to 2025.

Based on our research, there is a need for all sizes of rental units, thus, the
new units constructed over the next five years should be one, two and three-
bedroom units.  A significant number of three-bedroom market rate units have
been constructed since the 2016 Housing Study.

Townhome style units or high quality apartment buildings are both options in
addressing the need for market rate units.  The projects, to be successful,
should have ‘state of the art’ amenities.  It may be advantageous for new units
to be constructed in smaller project phases.  This strategy allows the new units
to be absorbed into the market.  The market rate units constructed since the
2016 Housing Study have been primarily townhome-style and twinhome units
that have been constructed in phases.

There are two market rate rental segments in Hartford.  One segment is
seeking a high quality unit and can afford a higher rent.  The second segment is
seeking work force housing and a more modest rent.  This segment may not
qualify for subsidized or tax credit rental units, but affordability is still an issue.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 77



Findings and Recommendations   �

There is a continued need to construct both types of market rate rental
housing, thus, there is a wide rent range in the following table reflecting the
two segments.  To construct the workforce housing and charge affordable rents,
land donations, financial assistance, tax increment financing, tax abatement
and other resources may be needed. 

There are developers that have constructed or are constructing rental units in
Hartford and may have an interest in continuing to develop rental housing in
Hartford.

We recommend the development of 35 to 45 rental units over the next five
years, with a unit mix and rent levels as follows: 

Recommended unit mix, sizes and rents for the
Hartford Market Rate Housing Units: 

Unit Type No. of Units  Size/Sq. Ft.           Rent      
One Bedroom            6-8                         650 - 800               $800 - $1,050
Two Bedroom     21-27           850 - 1,050           $900 - $1,400
Three Bedroom      8-10        1,100 - 1,250      $1,100 - $1,500

     Total     35-45

Note: The recommended rents are gross rents including all utilities.  The rents are quoted in
2019 dollars. 

If possible, it would be advantageous to keep the rent structure at or below the
rent limits for the Housing Choice Voucher Program.  This would allow renter
households to participate in the Housing Voucher Program and expand the
number of households that could afford the proposed rents.  In 2019, the rent
limits that apply to the Voucher Program are:

< 1 bedroom - $750
< 2 bedroom - $910
< 3 bedroom - $1,263
< 4 bedroom - $1,458

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 78



Findings and Recommendations   �

2. Consider the development of 20 to 24 tax credit/moderate rent
housing units

Findings: Hartford has a 56-unit tax credit project, Deer Hollow and Deer
Hollow II, and a 12-unit moderate rent project funded through HOME funds,
Whispering Pines.  However, we continue to see unmet need for more
affordable/moderate rent units.  Federal low income housing tax credits are the
most available development financing resource that is available for more
affordable rental housing development.  Over the past two decades, a number
of affordable rental projects in the Sioux Falls MSA have utilized tax credits.  No
tax credit projects have been constructed in Hartford since 2011.

Tax credit rental housing cannot serve all renter households.  There are
occupancy restrictions concerning household composition.  There are also
income limits that apply to all tax credit-assisted units.  Households earning
more than 60% of the HUD median income level, as adjusted by family size,
cannot reside in a tax credit unit. 

Since nearly all tax credit units have a more moderate gross rent, there is also
a lower effective income limit, as households below 30% of the HUD median
may not be able to afford the monthly rent.  This lower limit can be eliminated
if the household has a rent assistance Housing Choice Voucher or some form of
project-based rent assistance.  A Housing Choice Voucher enables rental
households to pay 30% to 40% of their income for rent.

Tax credit assistance has been widely used to construct new rental units in the
Sioux Falls MSA.  Tax credit units have also been constructed outside Sioux
Falls, including projects in Hartford, Brandon, Tea, and Harrisburg.

Due in part to the ongoing production of tax credit housing in the Sioux Falls
MSA, there has been some level of unit vacancy.  In the January 2019, survey
completed by the Multi-Housing Association, the vacancy rate in tax credit
housing in the MSA Cities excluding Sioux Falls was at 5.5%, down from 5.69%
in January 2016.  However, our 2019 rental survey found no vacancies in
Hartford’s tax credit projects.

Most of the renter households currently residing in Hartford are in the moderate
to lower income ranges.  Although some of Hartford’s renter households had a
very low income, and could not afford a moderate rent unit without rent
assistance, a significant percentage of all renters have an annual income
between $20,000 and $45,000.  These basic income ranges are typically
targeted by tax credit projects.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 79



Findings and Recommendations   �

The growth projections provided earlier expect the City to add as many as 51
renter households over the next five years.  Over half of these households
would potentially be income-qualified for a tax credit unit.  However, this
growth-generated demand will gradually be added over the five-year period. 
Additional demand would be generated from existing households and from
households in the Sioux Falls MSA that would look to move into a newly
constructed affordable unit and from the pent-up demand that currently exists
for moderate income rental housing in Hartford.

Recommendation: We recommend the development of 20 to 24 tax credit
units in Hartford during the next five years based on the following:

< The 2016 Hartford Housing Study recommended the development of 16
to 20 additional tax credit/moderate rent units in Hartford.  No tax
credit/moderate rent units have been constructed since the 2016 Study.

< The City of Hartford currently has 68 tax credit/moderate rent units. 
There were no vacant units at the time of the survey and the managers
reported that the units are usually fully occupied.  At the time of the 2013
Housing Study survey, there was only one vacant unit.

< Hartford is projected to add approximately 51 new renter households
from 2019 to 2024.  Past history indicates that most of these will be in a
moderate to lower income range.

< The median income for all renter households is approximately $35,000.
Approximately 50% of all renter households are within the income range
from approximately $20,000 to $40,000.  These households will generally
be income-qualified for a moderate rent tax credit unit.  Some of these
moderate income renter households cannot afford a market rate unit, but
also do not qualify to live in a subsidized unit.

< Approximately 35% of the renter households in Hartford are paying more
than 30% of their income for rent.  A majority of these households are
actually paying over 35% of their income for rent.

< Hartford is experiencing industrial and commercial growth and adding
employees.  Some of these employees have moderate incomes and a tax
credit rental project would address their housing needs.

< The north and west Sioux Falls area is experiencing substantial
commercial and industrial growth.  This growth is creating jobs and a
demand for housing.  Hartford is located within commuting distance of
this growth and has the opportunity to address some of the demand for
housing.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 80



Findings and Recommendations   �

The 20 to 24 tax credit/moderate units should be primarily two and three-
bedroom units and serve families.  It should be noted that if a local developer
received financial assistance such as tax increment financing, tax abatement
and /or land at a reduced price, rental units could potentially be developed with
a rent that serves some moderate income households without utilizing tax
credits.

The State of South Dakota awards tax credits based on a point system. 
Therefore, it would be necessary for the City to work with a developer to
successfully develop a competitive tax credit project.

3. Develop 12 to 14 additional subsidized rental housing units

Findings: The term subsidized rental housing, as used in this Study, refers to
rental units that have been constructed to serve low and moderate income
people.  In nearly all cases, subsidized housing has utilized federal resources
that provide a “deep subsidy”, allowing very low income people access to the
housing at an affordable price. 

The research completed for this Study found only one project, Royal
Apartments, that offers subsidized housing with rent based on income.  Royal
Apartments has 16 total units, with two one-bedroom and 14 two-bedroom
apartments.  This project reported full occupancy at the time of the rental 
survey.

There had been another federally subsidized project in Hartford but its subsidy
contract ended.  In 2011 the compliance contract for Hartford Manor expired,
and the 12 units in this project converted to conventional market rate housing. 
Even though this project now provides market rate housing, the rent structure
still remains very low, with one-bedroom rents at $525 per month and two-
bedroom rents at $625, including utilities. 

There are additional “deep subsidy” resources available to Hartford residents
through the tenant-based Housing Choice Voucher Program, however, the
Voucher Program has a long waiting list.  The Vouchers allow tenants to pay
30% to 40% of income for housing in suitable private-market rental units.  The
Voucher Program for the MSA is administered by the Sioux Falls Housing and
Redevelopment Commission.  Several Hartford households were using a
Voucher in 2019.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 81



Findings and Recommendations   �

Approximately 4.1% of the City of Hartford’s rental housing stock is in the
subsidized category.  While the percentage of subsidized housing is very small
in Hartford, the City still does have a large inventory of income-based housing if
the tax credit units and the deep subsidy units are combined.  Overall,
approximately 22% of the City’s total rental stock has some form of income
limits and/or rent restrictions in place in 2019.

Despite the number of income-based rental options that do exist, the 2017
American Community survey estimated that approximately 35% of all renters in
the City were paying 30% or more of their income for rent.  The large majority
of these households were actually paying 35% or more of their income for
housing.   Most of the households with a severe rent burden had low annual
incomes, and would be under the income limits for subsidized housing.  Older
adult households, age 65 and above, accounted for 15% of the households with
a rental cost burden, so working-age households were the group that was
experiencing the greatest housing cost burden.

Recommendation:  Based on the cost burden data contained in the American
Community Survey, we would recommend that the City look to expand the
supply of deep subsidy rental housing for lower income renters.  Over the next
five years, we recommend that the City attempt to construct 12 to 14 units that
achieve a rent level that would be affordable to very low income households
earning less than $25,000 per year.  The 2013 Housing Study recommended
the development of 10 to 15 subsidized rental units and the 2016 Housing
Study recommended the development of 12 to 14 subsidized rental units.  No
subsidized units have been constructed since Royal Apartments, which was
constructed in the mid-1970s.  

This recommendation represents a modest goal, since substantially more low
income households in the City have a cost burden.  However, over the past few
decades, very few federal subsidy sources have been available for the
construction of “deep subsidy” rental housing.  The actual number of units that
can be developed will be dependent upon access to financial resources.

In the opinion of the analysts, the highest priority would be to create general
occupancy units for families and younger households.  The rent burden
statistics cited above show that 85% of the cost burdened households are age
64 and younger.   

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 82



Findings and Recommendations   �

Another important community strategy will be to prevent the future loss of the
only remaining project-based subsidized housing, Royal Apartments.  It may be
appropriate for public or nonprofit housing agencies to become involved in
attempts to preserve subsidized housing resources.  In some cases, private
developers have utilized housing tax credits for preservation and rehabilitation
of older subsidized projects that were at risk of being lost.  

Expanded promotion of Housing Choice Vouchers may also be appropriate. 
Although Vouchers are tenant-based, and may not remain in the City if the
tenant moves, the Voucher can eliminate a severe rent burden by allowing the
household to apply only 30% of income for gross rent.  However, the Voucher
Program has a 2 ½-year waiting list.

4. Monitor the need for additional specialized senior housing with
services units

Findings: Senior housing that also provides some level of services for residents
can exist in a wide range of different options.  Under South Dakota law, the
Department of Health is required to license the more service-intensive forms of
senior housing, including Skilled Nursing Facilities and Assisted Living Centers. 
Lower-service forms of senior housing, referred to as Residential Living Centers
by the State, are required to register with the Department of Health, but are 
not licensed and subject to the more stringent requirements, such as
inspections, that apply to more service-intensive housing.  

Hartford currently has a senior housing complex, Leisure Living II, that is
registered as a Residential Living Center, but also includes 10 beds that are
licensed as an Assisted Living Center.  Therefore, Leisure Living II has 21 total
rooms that can offer both higher-service and lighter-services housing for
seniors. 

Based on past research in other South Dakota communities, a change in
licensing for assisted living beds can be accomplished quickly.  Because a fee is
paid, it is often advantageous for the facility to only license beds as needed. 
Therefore, it is probable that the 10 assisted living beds in Leisure Living II
could be increased if demand were to grow.  Conversely, beds could be 
de-licensed and used for lighter services housing, based on demand.

At the time of the research for this Study, there were four unoccupied rooms in
Hartford.  Staff indicated that they are fully occupied at times.  Projects
catering to older seniors can experience high rates of turnover.  

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 83



Findings and Recommendations   �

In 2019, there are 128 older senior citizens, age 75 and above, that are living
in Hartford.  By the year 2024, the number of Hartford seniors over the age of
75, is projected to increase to 174, an increase of approximately 46 seniors. 
After the year 2024, the number of seniors over the age of 75 in Hartford, will
continue to increase substantially.  

Like other housing options in Hartford, some of the residents in Leisure Living II
have come from outside the City, including some older seniors that had
previously lived in Sioux Falls.  One of the reasons that Sioux Falls residents
may move to Hartford is the acceptance of Medicaid Waivers assistance in up to
five of the 10 assisted living rooms.  Because of a low reimbursement rate,
many assisted living projects are unwilling to accept Medicaid Waivers, or
restrict the number of participating tenants.  This is especially true in larger
communities, such as Sioux Falls, where most assisted living units are available
to private-pay residents.

Recommendation: The City has a relatively large supply of specialized senior
housing, in comparison to the local population of older senior citizens in
Hartford.  Like other forms of housing, Hartford can be impacted by demand
that is created in the large Sioux Falls MSA.  However, in the opinion of the
analysts, attracting older seniors in need of services is less likely than attracting
younger households that are willing to commute.  Older seniors will generally
want to locate closer to services and medical facilities as they age.  For this
reason, we recommend that the need for any further development of assisted
living units with a high level of care be monitored, and that any future
expansions based on evidence of locally generated demand.

A portion of the assisted living residents of Leisure Living II probably came from
Sioux Falls and more distant locations.  In some cases, this may have been for
financial reasons, including the ability to use Medicaid Waivers assistance. 
However, any newly constructed units in Hartford would generally face the
same financial constraints as a new facility in Sioux Falls.  It is therefore
doubtful that any significant competitive advantage in pricing could be achieved
through new construction in Hartford.

It is very possible that a developer may propose additional senior assisted living
or memory care units in Hartford in the future.  It is not the intent of
Community Partners Research, Inc., to discourage future projects. 

In the following recommendation, we do recommend the development of senior
independent/light services units in Hartford.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 84



Findings and Recommendations   �

5. Develop 16 to 19 senior independent/light services market rate
units

Findings: There is a limited supply of senior independent/light services market
rate rental units in Hartford.  Leisure II has 11 rooms for residential living,
which provide basic services.

In 2019, there are approximately 260 households age 65 or older in Hartford. 
It is projected that there will be an additional 74 households age 65 and older
in Hartford by the year 2024.

We are estimating that 5% to 6% of senior households age 65 and older in
Hartford would move into a senior independent/light services rental project. 
Also, the project will attract tenants from the area surrounding Hartford and
other Sioux Falls MSA jurisdictions.

Recommendation: We are recommending a 16 to 19-unit independent/light
services senior project in Hartford.  The project should be designed to allow
seniors to live in a unit independently.  The senior project could be a one-level
apartment building or town home-style units.

The project’s amenities and features should include:

< A small community room
< 24-hour call system
< A limited access security system
< Smoke alarms
< Enclosed parking
< Spacious corridor with a theme such as a street scape design 

Unit features should include:

< 16 to 19 units
< 2 to 3 one-bedroom
< 12 to 13 two-bedroom
< 2 to 3 three-bedroom

< Floor plans that promote accessibility
< Fully equipped kitchen
< Large storage area
< Ample closet space
< Laundry hookups
< Open floor plan
< Private patio

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 85



Findings and Recommendations   �

< Individually controlled heat and AC
< Raised outlets, lever door handles, lowered kitchen cabinets
< Expansive windows

Optional services that could be provided by community organizations or
agencies could include:

< Noon meal
< Weekly housekeeping
< Home healthcare
< Social activities

Tax increment financing, tax abatement, land donations, low interest loans
and/or other subsidies and incentives could be utilized to make the project
financially feasible. 

It is estimated that 50% of the units will be occupied when the project opens
and one to two additional units will be rented each following month for an
absorption period of four to five months.

The location of the project should be close to services as the project will be
occupied by seniors.  A high amenity location would be ideal for a senior
project.  If possible, the project should have land available for future project
phases.

6. Develop a Second Mixed-Use Commercial/Housing Project

Findings:  New mixed-use projects have been developed in several cities
comparable to the size of Hartford.  Some of these projects were developed
because of market demand while others were developed to enhance the
commercial district, to introduce a new product to the market or to serve as a
catalyst for downtown redevelopment.

The 2013 Housing Study recommended a mixed-use project.  In 2015, a
mixed-use project, Vista Crossing, was developed in Hartford.  The project has
commercial spaces on the first floor and 20 rental units on the upper floors. 
The project has been successful and is an asset to the community.

The City of Hartford has three active commercial areas.  A mixed-use rental
housing/commercial project could complement the City’s ongoing efforts to
maintain vibrant commercial areas. 

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 86



Findings and Recommendations   �

Recommendation:  We recommend the development of a second mixed-use
building in one of Hartford’s commercial areas.  There are several potential sites
in each area for a mixed-use project.

Prior to construction, a portion of the commercial space should be leased to an
anchor tenant who would complement existing businesses and attract people to
the commercial area.  Also, there should be sensitivity to the timing of the
project and type of commercial tenants the project will have, to assure the
project is an asset to the commercial areas.

The rental units should be primarily market rate units, but could be mixed
income with some moderate income units.  The units should be primarily two-
bedroom units.  Please note that these units are not in addition to the units
recommended in the first three recommendations of this section.  If a mixed
use building or buildings were constructed, the number of units recommended
previously should be reduced. 

Ideally, a private developer would construct and own the building.  The City
may have a role in the project by providing TIF or other local funds and land at
a reduced price.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 87



Findings and Recommendations   �

7. Continue to Utilize the Housing Choice Voucher Program

Findings:  The Housing Choice Voucher Program provides portable, tenant-
based rent assistance to lower income renter households.  The program
requires participating households to contribute from 30% to 40% of their
adjusted income for rent, with the rent subsidy payment making up the
difference.  Tenants may lease any suitable rental unit in the community,
provided that it passes a Housing Quality Standards inspection, and has a
reasonable gross rent when compared to prevailing rents in the community.

Although the federal government provides almost no funding for subsidized
housing construction, it has provided new Housing Choice Voucher allocations
over the last two decades.

Because of the flexibility offered through the program, eligible households often
prefer the portable rent assistance to other forms of subsidized housing that are
project-based, and can only be accessed by living in a specific rental
development. 

Currently, approximately 35% of Hartford households are paying more than
30% of their income for rent.

The Housing Choice Voucher Program is administered in Hartford by the Sioux
Falls Housing and Redevelopment Commission.  In October 2019, there were
several renter households receiving voucher assistance in Hartford.  The waiting
list for the Voucher Program is approximately 2 ½ years.

Recommendation: From a practical standpoint, the Housing Choice Voucher
Program is the single best way that Hartford can provide affordable housing for
low income households.  Although current funding is very limited, we
recommend that low/moderate income renter households that are paying more
than 30% of their income for rent, apply for a Housing Choice Voucher.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 88



Findings and Recommendations   �

Hartford - 
Home Ownership

Recommendations

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 89



Findings and Recommendations   �

Home Ownership Recommendations

Findings:  Expanding home ownership opportunities is one of the primary
goals for most cities.  High rates of home ownership promote stable
communities and strengthen the local tax base.  

The median owner-occupied home value of existing homes in Hartford based on
2018 sales is estimated to be $189,900.  With approximately 50% of the homes
in Hartford valued less than $189,900, Hartford has a limited market for first-
time home buyers and households seeking moderately priced homes. 

Our analysis of Hartford demographic trends shows projected strong population
growth from 2019 to 2024 in the 55 and older age ranges with a gain of
approximately 94 households.  While most households in these age ranges
already own their housing, this group represents a strong potential market for
‘trade-up’ housing.  Increasingly, the older age ranges within this group look for
lower maintenance housing options, such as twin homes or town house
developments. 

The number of Hartford households in the 25 to 44 age ranges is expected to
increase by 75 households from 2019 to 2024.  While some of these households
already own their housing, those households that have not been able to achieve
the goal of home ownership, may need the assistance of special programs to
help them purchase their first home and will be seeking affordable homes. 

To assist in promoting the goal of home ownership, the following activities are
recommended.

8. Utilize and promote all programs that assist with home ownership

Findings:  We believe that affordable home ownership is one of the issues
facing Hartford in the future.  Home ownership is generally the preferred
housing option for most households and most communities.  There are a
number of strategies and programs that can be used to promote home
ownership programs, and can assist with this effort.

First-time home buyer assistance, down payment assistance, low interest loans
and home ownership counseling and training programs can help to address
affordable housing issues.  Hartford has a supply of houses that are price-
eligible for these assistance programs.  The home value estimates used in this
study indicate that some of the existing stock currently is valued under the
purchase price limits for the first-time home buyer assistance programs. 

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 90



Findings and Recommendations   �

While these individual home ownership assistance programs may not generate
a large volume of new ownership activity, the combination of low mortgage
rates, home ownership training, credit counseling, and down payment
assistance may be the mix of incentives that moves a potential home buyer into
home ownership.

Recommendation: The City of Hartford and local financial institutions should
continue to work with regional housing agencies and the South Dakota Housing
Development Authority to utilize all available home ownership assistance
programs.  Private and nonprofit agencies should also be encouraged to provide
home ownership opportunities.

Funding sources for home ownership programs may include USDA Rural
Development, the South Dakota Housing Development Authority, and the
Federal Home Loan Bank.  Also, the South Eastern Development Foundation
and Grow South Dakota utilize several funding sources to provide home
ownership programs.

9. Monitor the need to develop a Purchase/Rehabilitation Program

Findings: Hartford has a limited stock of older, lower valued homes, many of
which need repairs.  Our analysis of recent sales activity indicates that a limited
number of the homes in Hartford are valued less than $100,000.  As some
lower valued homes come up for sale, they may not be attractive options for
potential home buyers because of the amount of repair work that is required.

Some communities with a stock of older homes that need rehabilitation have
developed a purchase/rehabilitation program.  Under a purchase/rehabilitation
program, the City or a housing agency purchases an existing home that needs
rehabilitation, rehabilitates the home, sells the home to a low/moderate income
family and provides a mortgage with no down payment, no interest and a
monthly payment that is affordable for the family. 

In some cases, the cost of acquisition and rehab will exceed the house’s after-
rehab value, thus, a subsidy is needed.  Although a public subsidy may be
involved, the cost to rehab and sell an existing housing unit is generally lower
than the subsidy required to provide an equally affordable unit through new
construction.

In the 2016 Hartford Housing Study, we recommended the development and
implementation of a purchase/rehabilitation program.  Since the 2016 Study, it
appears that the private sector has been able to purchase, rehab and sell
homes without public sector assistance.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 91



Findings and Recommendations   �

Recommendation: We recommend that Hartford monitor the need to develop
and implement a purchase/rehab program in the future, as the private sector is
currently addressing this housing need.  Attitudinal surveys that we have
conducted in other cities have found that purchase/rehabilitation programs are
appealing to people who are currently renting their housing.  In some similar
sized communities, a large majority of survey respondents who were renters
indicated an interest in buying a home in need of repair if rehabilitation
assistance was available.

Although we are not recommending the development and implementation of a
purchase/rehabilitation program, we encourage households to work with area
housing agencies and financial institutions to obtain rehabilitation assistance in
conjunction with first-time home buyer programs.  Also, USDA Rural
Development provides purchase/rehabilitation loans to low and moderate
income buyers.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 92



Findings and Recommendations   �

 

Hartford - 
New Housing Construction

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 93



Findings and Recommendations   �

New Housing Construction

Findings: The City of Hartford has experienced significant single family owner-
occupied housing construction.  Based on city records, from 2010 to July 2019,
169 units in single family structures and twin homes have been constructed in
the City of Hartford, which is an average of approximately 19 housing units per
year.  Since the 2016 Housing Study, from 2016 to 2018, an average of 21
single family owner-occupancy units has been constructed annually.  In 2019,
through September, 14 owner-occupied single family units have been
constructed.  Please note that some of the twin homes constructed since 2010
are renter occupied.  We have estimated the number of twin homes that are
owner occupied. 

The attractiveness of the area, the City’s amenities, its job creation, and its
proximity to Sioux Falls should result in the continued construction of new
homes annually.  However, there must continue to be attractive residential lot
options available for new home construction.

Overall household projections for Hartford indicate good demand for owner-
occupied housing construction.  Hartford is projected to gain 94 households in
the 55 and older age ranges from 2019 to 2024.  Households in these age
ranges tend to be predominantly home owners, and form a market for higher
priced, trade-up housing and low maintenance housing such as town homes
and twin homes.  The 25 to 44 year old ranges are expected to gain 75
households through 2024.  Many of the households in these age ranges are first
time home buyers, trade-up buyers or new home builders. 

It is our opinion that if the City, local housing agencies and developers are
proactive, 30 to 36 owner-occupied housing units should be constructed in
Hartford annually over the next five years from 2020 to 2025 to address
demand.  Our projection for single family housing starts includes homes built in
new subdivisions and on infill lots, and includes single family attached housing
units, such as twin homes and town houses.

The breakdown of our projection of 30 to 36 new owner-occupied housing units
annually over the next five years is as follows:

< Higher & medium price homes  14-16 homes
< Affordable homes    7-8 homes
< Homes on infill lots    1-2 homes
< Twin homes/town homes   8-10 units 

Total           30-36 homes/units

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 94



Findings and Recommendations   �

In the past few years, Hartford’s market share of the new single family
construction in the Sioux Falls MSA has been approximately 1.6%.  To achieve
the recommendation above, the City would need to capture between 2.2% and
2.6% of all projected single family housing construction in the Sioux Falls MSA.

10. Lot availability and development

Findings: As part of this Study, we attempted to identify the inventory of
available residential lots for single family housing construction in the City of
Hartford.  Currently, there are six active residential subdivisions in Hartford.

There are six residential subdivisions that currently have buildable lots for sale
or who are developing residential lots that will be available prior to the next
construction season.

The six subdivisions include:
< Western Meadows Addition 
< Kelly Point Second Addition
< Cresswood Estates
< South Main Addition
< Knapps Landing Addition
< Turtle Creek Highlands Addition

The six subdivisions have approximately 145 residential lots for sale that are
immediately available or will be available by the next construction season for
new housing development.  The subdivisions include lots for single family
housing and twin home development.  The subdivisions also have approved
preliminary plans for the future development of approximately 450 additional
residential lots.

There are also several miscellaneous infill lots scattered around the city that we
did not attempt to count.  We also do not know the availability of some of these
infill lots.  Also, we are promoting the acquisition and demolition of dilapidated
houses.  Some of the cleared lots may be sites for new housing construction.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 95



Findings and Recommendations   �

Recommendation: We use a standard that a 2 ½ year supply of lots should be
available in the marketplace based on annual lot usage.  With projections that
30 to 36 new owner-occupied housing units will be constructed per year, the
City should have approximately 75 to 90 residential lots available to meet the
expected demand.  Part of this demand would be for attached unit construction. 

The City currently has an adequate number of lots to meet near-term
construction demand.  There are approximately 145 lots that are available or in
the development pipeline.  There are also an additional 450 lots that have
preliminary approval for development.  Developers have shown the ability to
create lots in a timely manner as dictated by demand.  There are also infill lots
available in the community.

It is our opinion that the existing subdivisions can accommodate the homes
that will be constructed in Hartford over the next several years.  However, our
opinion is based on the assumption that the available lots are quality lots that
are competitively-priced.  Additionally, the new lots in the planning phases will
provide new lot options for buyers.  

We would recommend that the City and developers continue to monitor the
number of lots that are available to assure there is an adequate number on an
ongoing basis and that lots are available for homes in a variety of price ranges. 

It appears that there could potentially be a future shortage of lots for lower
priced housing options such as modular homes and governor’s homes.  The City
and developers should assure that lots continue to be available for these
housing options.

11. Promote townhouse and twin home development

Findings:  Hartford has experienced limited owner-occupied attached housing
development from 2010 to 2019.  Many communities over the past decade
have seen attached housing take an increasingly large share of new
construction.  In cities the size of Hartford, 20% to 25% of the housing starts
are typically twin homes/townhomes.  Over the past 10 years, approximately
14% of the owner-occupied housing units constructed in Hartford have been
twin homes/town homes.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 96



Findings and Recommendations   �

Attached housing provides desirable alternatives for empty nesters and seniors
to move out of their single family homes, thus, making traditional single family
homes available for families.  It is estimated that in the 55 and older age
ranges there were 473 households in Hartford in 2019.  These age ranges are
projected to increase by 94 households from 2019 to 2024.  The Sioux Falls
MSA is also projected to have large increases in these age ranges.  It is
important for the City to offer a range of life-cycle housing options as  many of
these households will be seeking to downsize into low maintenance housing
options.  There are also young families seeking affordable twin homes/town
homes.

Recommendation:  It is our projection that approximately eight to ten of
Hartford’s new owner single family units per year should be twin homes or town
houses over the next five years, which is a total of 40 to 50 units during the
five-year period.  This is approximately 27% of the total projected single family
owner occupied housing construction in Hartford over the next five years. 

Several Hartford subdivisions have existing lots or lots in the planning phase for
twin home/town home development.

For a twin home/town home development to be successful, the following should
be considered:

< Senior friendly home designs
< Maintenance, lawn care, snow removal, etc. all covered by an

Association
< Cluster development of a significant number of homes which provides

security
< Homes at a price that is acceptable to the market

The public sector’s role in any owner-occupancy attached housing development
may be limited, as the private sector can often meet this housing need if a
demand exists. The City’s role should include assuring that adequate land is
available for development and that zoning allows for attached housing
development.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 97



Findings and Recommendations   �

12. Strategies to encourage continued residential lot sales and new
home construction in Hartford

  
Findings: Over the past 10 years, Hartford has averaged 19 new single family
housing units annually.  To continue new single family housing construction at
its current rate and to potentially increase new construction, we continue to
recommend several strategies.  Many of these strategies were included in the
2016 Hartford Housing Study.

Recommendation: We recommend that the City of Hartford, the Hartford Area
Development Foundation, developers, builders, realtors and other housing
stakeholders continue to coordinate efforts to promote lot development, lot
sales and housing development.

Our recommendations to continue to promote lots sales and housing
development include:

< Continue the momentum -  There are a substantial number of housing
units constructed annually in the City.  There are currently an adequate
number of developers, builders, buyers and buildable lots in the City.  The
City has a working formula for new home construction and the City should
maintain its momentum.

< Continue competitive pricing - There are lots available in communities
throughout the region.  To continue to attract new home construction in
Hartford, lots should remain competitively priced in comparison to other
options in the area.

< User-Friendly -  The lot purchase and home building process must be
‘user friendly.’  This includes the construction of spec homes, builders
that are readily available to build custom homes and city regulations that
are fair and reasonable.  The entire process must be as ‘user friendly’ as
possible to encourage home construction.

< Long-term planning - The City of Hartford and Hartford developers
should continue long-term development planning to assure lots are
available to meet demand for all types and pricing of new housing.

< Continue to promote spec home construction - Spec houses attract a
buyer that is not interested in going through the home building process,
but instead wants a turnkey unit.  A spec home can also serve as a
model, allowing potential home buyers to examine specific floor plans and
features in the home before committing to buy. 

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 98



Findings and Recommendations   �

< Lot availability for twin home/town home development - It is our
opinion that there will be a demand for twin homes/town homes over the
next five years.  Lots should continue to be available for a twin
home/town home development.

< Range of house prices - Lots should be available to as wide a range of
home sizes and prices as possible, without compromising the
subdivisions.  This broadens the lot buyer market.  Also, smaller infill lots
with fewer amenities could be marketed for affordable homes.

< Marketing - The City of Hartford, the Hartford Area Development
Foundation and the Hartford Chamber of Commerce will need to continue
a comprehensive marketing strategy to sell available lots.  All
stakeholders including developers, realtors, financial institutions, builders,
employers, etc. should to be included in marketing strategies.  In addition
to marketing the lots, the City of Hartford and its amenities should be
marketed.

< Consider developing an exclusive builder(s) relationship - Several
lots could be sold to a builder or builders.  Momentum can be created
when a builder has access to several lots.  This allows for marketing
opportunities and efficiencies in the home building process.  The
subdivision owners, however, should assure that the builder is obligated
to construct a minimum number of homes within a defined time period. 
Builders are more willing to enter a market when the lots are attractive
and very affordable.  Several lots available to an exclusive builder or
developer should be explored, even if price concessions are required.  

< Covenants - Some of the subdivisions in Hartford have covenants that
assure quality development.  The covenants should be reviewed to assure
that they protect the integrity of the subdivision, but are not a barrier to
new construction.

< Lot Availability for affordable homes - Lots should be available for
affordable homes including modular homes and governor’s homes.

< Incentives - Many cities throughout South Dakota are offering incentives
to construct new homes, including reduced lot prices, reduced water and
sewer hookup fees, tax abatements, cash incentives, etc.  It does not
appear that incentives are needed in Hartford to promote new
construction at this time.  However, incentives may be needed if new
construction slows in the future.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 99



Findings and Recommendations   �

< Infill lot Home Development - Infill lots in existing neighborhoods are
often affordable and have existing City services. 

< Housing Programs - The South Dakota Housing Development Authority,
USDA Rural Development and other housing agencies may have housing
programs available to assist developers, builders and home buyers. 

< Manufactured, Modular Homes and Governors Homes -
Manufactured, modular and governor’s homes can provide affordable
opportunities for moderate income households.

13. Coordinate with agencies/nonprofits that develop affordable
housing

Findings: With the difficulty of producing new housing units that are affordable
to lower income people, it is important to take advantage of opportunities
presented by housing agencies, nonprofit groups and organizations.  Inter-
Lakes Community Action Partnership has a Mutual Self Help Program. 
Households that participate in this program assist each other with constructing
affordable new homes.  

Also, Sioux Falls Habitat for Humanity will work with a Hartford group to
construct homes in Hartford.  Other local and regional housing agencies and
nonprofits may also have the capacity to construct affordable housing in
Hartford.  These sources can help generate new homes for moderate income
families in Hartford.

Recommendation: We recommend that the City coordinate with housing
agencies and nonprofit organizations that help to produce housing units for
moderate income ownership.  The City may be able to contribute to the project
through land donations, tax increment financing, grant writing, or project
coordination activities. 

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 100



Findings and Recommendations   �

Hartford - 
Housing Rehabilitation

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 101



Findings and Recommendations   �

Housing Rehabilitation

Findings: Hartford has an asset in its existing housing stock.  Existing units,
both now and into the future, will represent the majority of the affordable
housing opportunities.  Existing units generally sell at a discount to their
replacement value.  Units that are not maintained and improved may slip into
disrepair and be lost from the housing stock.  Efforts and investment in housing
rehabilitation activities will be critical to offering affordable housing
opportunities and in preventing the deterioration of existing neighborhoods.

Housing options for households will largely be met by the existing, more
affordable housing stock.  As this existing stock ages, more maintenance and
repair are required.  Without rehabilitation assistance, the affordable stock will
shrink, creating an even more difficult affordability situation.  

The following specific recommendations are made to address the housing
rehabilitation needs.

14. Promote rental housing rehabilitation programs

Findings: Based on the U.S. Census data, the City of Hartford has
approximately 386 rental units in 2019.  These rental units are in multi-family
projects, small rental buildings, duplexes, single family homes and mobile
homes.  Some of these rental structures are more than 30 years old and need
improvements. 

The rehabilitation of older rental units can be one of the most effective ways to
produce decent, safe and sanitary affordable housing.  However, it is often
difficult for rental property owners to rehabilitate and maintain their rental
properties while keeping the rents affordable for the tenants. 

Recommendation:  Hartford and local housing agencies should seek funds
that can be dedicated to the rehabilitation of rental units.  For a rental
rehabilitation program to be workable and successful, the funds should to the
extent possible, allow for program design flexibility.

Potential funding sources include USDA Rural Development, the Federal Home
Loan Bank, the South Dakota Housing Development Authority, and local funds.

This recommendation was included in the 2013 and 2016 Comprehensive
Housing Studies and Community Partners Research, Inc., continues to
recommend rental housing rehabilitation in Hartford, as this is an ongoing
need.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 102



Findings and Recommendations   �

15. Promote owner-occupied housing rehabilitation programs

Findings: The affordability of the existing housing stock in Hartford will
continue to be the major attraction for families that are seeking housing in the
area.  Investment in owner-occupied housing rehabilitation activities will be
critical to offering affordable housing opportunities.

In 2019, Community Partners Research, Inc., conducted a housing condition
survey and rated 219 single family homes in two of the City’s oldest
neighborhoods.  The survey found that 103 homes needed minor repairs and 36
homes needed major repairs.  Without rehabilitation assistance, there is the
potential that the affordable housing stock will shrink in Hartford. 

Inter-Lakes Community Action Partnership currently has several housing
programs to assist area households with the rehabilitation of their homes,
including the Weatherization Program, the Self Help Rehabilitation Program and
programs utilizing HOME and other funds.

Recommendation:  We continue to recommend that Hartford and area
housing agencies continue to seek local, state and federal funds to assist in
financing housing rehabilitation.  USDA Rural Development, the South Dakota
Housing Development Authority and the Federal Home Loan Bank are potential
funding sources.  Hartford should continue to coordinate with the Inter-Lake’s
Community Action Partnership to assure Hartford households have access to
housing rehabilitation funds. 

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 103



Findings and Recommendations   �

Hartford - 
Other Housing Initiatives

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 104



Findings and Recommendations   �

16. Encourage employer involvement in housing

Findings: The City of Hartford has several employers.  The connection between
economic development and housing availability has become an increasingly
important issue as low area unemployment rates dictate the need to attract
new workers into the community.

Although the jobs being created may have good wages for the area, many jobs
do not pay wages sufficient for workers to buy or improve their housing. 
Housing for new employees is a concern for employers.  It may be
advantageous for employers to become involved in housing.

Recommendation: We continue to recommend an ongoing effort to involve
employers as partners in addressing Hartford’s housing needs.  Several funding
sources have finance programs that include employers.  Additionally, the
funding agencies often view funding applications favorably that include
employers in the problem solving process.

Employer involvement can include direct assistance to their employees such as
a grant, loan, forgivable loan, deferred loan, down payment assistance, loan
guarantee, etc.  In many cases, employers do not wish to provide assistance to
specific employees, but are willing to contribute to an overall city project such
as an affordable residential subdivision or a moderate rent housing project.

17. Acquire and demolish dilapidated structures

Findings: The 2019 housing condition survey of two of the City’s oldest
neighborhoods identified five homes that are dilapidated and too deteriorated to
rehabilitate.  The survey also identified 36 homes as needing major repair. 
Several of these homes may be too dilapidated to rehabilitate upon a more
detailed inspection.  There are also homes in other Hartford neighborhoods that
may be dilapidated and beyond repair.  Dilapidated houses have been 
demolished and spec homes have been constructed on the cleared sites.

Recommendation: We recommend that Hartford continue to demolish
severely dilapidated structures. The City is enhanced when blighted and
dilapidated structures are removed.  Also, some of the cleared lots can possibly
be utilized for the construction of new affordable housing units. 

We also recommend that the City of Hartford maintain an inventory of
structures that may be candidates for future acquisition.  An inventory of in-fill
lots for future development should also be maintained.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 105



Findings and Recommendations   �

18. Develop mobile home park improvement programs

Findings: The mobile home park in the City of Hartford has approximately 34
mobile homes.  In September 2019, Community Partners Research, Inc.,
conducted a condition survey of the mobile homes in the park.  The mobile
homes were also surveyed in 2016.  

The 2019 condition survey identified 14 mobile homes that need minor repair,
eight mobile homes that need major repair and six mobile homes that are
dilapidated and beyond repair.  Six mobile homes are sound and require no
repairs.  The 2016 mobile home survey had similar results.

Recommendation: Addressing the issues created by substandard mobile
homes is not easily solved.  Some communities have rehabilitated older units,
but this is difficult to accomplish because of the type of construction of mobile
homes, and it is rarely cost effective.  

Some communities have established programs that provide for the purchase
and removal of substandard mobile home units, provided a newer unit is
purchased to replace the acquired dwelling.  While this approach can work well
in upgrading the stock, it can be expensive, especially if there are a large
number of homes in poor condition.  

It may be appropriate for the City to initiate programs to improve the quality of
mobile homes, even if these programs can only address a few units per year.  
Some of the innovative programs that have been used in other communities to
address mobile home conditions and mobile home park issues include:

< Operation Safe Mobile Home Park - Owners of substandard mobile
homes are given the option of voluntarily selling their substandard mobile
home to the City or a local housing agency for a fixed minimum price. 
The mobile homes are then removed from the park and
demolished/salvaged.  The owner can then use the funds from the sale to
help purchase a new home.  Mobile home dealerships have sometimes
participated by buying the salvaged homes.

< Time of Sale Inspection Program - This inspection program is
designed to provide safe living conditions through the identification and
elimination of basic life/safety hazards in older mobile homes.  Mobile
homes are subject to inspection prior to their sale.  All identified safety
hazards must be corrected before the unit is sold and/or occupied.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 106



Findings and Recommendations   �

< Cooperative/Land Trust - Some mobile home parks have created a
cooperative or a land trust which enables the home owners to own the
mobile home park land and facilities.  This ownership often creates pride
which results in a clean, safe park atmosphere.

< Age of mobile/manufactured homes - Some cities have adopted
regulations that mobile/manufactured homes older than a designated age
cannot be moved into the City and mobile/manufactured homes that are
not new must be inspected prior to being moved into the City.

19. Create a plan and continue coordination among housing agencies

Findings: Hartford needs staff resources to plan and implement many of the
housing recommendations advanced in this Study.  Hartford has access to
Inter-Lakes Community Action Partnership, the South Eastern Council of
Governments, Sioux Falls Habitat for Humanity, the South Eastern
Development Foundation, the Sioux Falls Housing and Redevelopment
Commission, USDA Rural Development, the South Dakota Housing
Development Authority and Dakota Resources.  These agencies all have
experience with housing and community development programs.

Recommendation: Hartford is fortunate to have access to several agencies
that can address housing needs.  It is our recommendation that the City
continue to work with the housing agencies to prioritize the recommendations
of this Study and to develop a plan to comprehensively address the City’s
housing needs.  The plan should include strategies, time lines and the
responsibilities of each agency.  While there has traditionally been a degree of
staff interaction between these agencies, it will be important that a coordinated
approach be used to prioritize and assign responsibility for housing programs. 
This approach will reduce duplication, provide coordination and cooperation
among agencies and will effectively utilize scare resources.

It will also be important for the City to look for opportunities to work
cooperatively with other area cities to address housing issues.  With limited
staff capacity, cooperative efforts may be the only way to accomplish certain
projects.  Cooperative efforts will not only make housing projects more
practical, but they will often be more cost-effective and competitive.

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 107



Findings and Recommendations   �

20. Strategies for downtown redevelopment and commercial
development

Findings: The City of Hartford’s downtown has buildings that have been
renovated and have high quality commercial space.  There are also buildings
that have not been maintained and are substandard.  This recommendation
provides an outline of actions that could be taken to continue to redevelop the
downtown, to maximize the usage of downtown buildings and to promote new
downtown businesses.

When households are selecting a city to purchase a home in, they often
determine if the city’s commercial sector is sufficient to serve their daily needs. 
A viable downtown commercial district is an important factor in their decision
making process.  

In addition to the City’s downtown, Hartford has two other commercial areas. 
The buildings and businesses in these commercial areas are relatively new
compared to the Downtown Commercial District.

Recommendation: We are recommending the initiation or continuation of the
following actions for downtown Hartford:

< Interview downtown property owners to develop a database and to
determine their future plans (expanding, selling, renovations, etc.)

< Develop an overall plan for the downtown (potential new businesses,
address parking needs, develop an overall theme, art and cultural
opportunities, etc.)

< Develop a mini-plan for each downtown property and each downtown
block.  This may include:
< Commercial building rehab and renovations
< Facade work
< Building demolition
< New construction
< Recruiting new businesses

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 108



Findings and Recommendations   �

< Identify funding sources
< Property owner funds
< City of Hartford
< Federal Home Loan Bank
< Special tax districts
< Tax increment financing
< Tax abatement
< Funds from South Dakota State Agencies
< Hartford Area Development Foundation

< Work with stakeholders to identify roles, secure funding, develop and
implement programs and projects
< Property owners
< City of Hartford
< Hartford Area Development Foundation 
< South Eastern Council of Governments

The City of Hartford and the Hartford Development Foundation should also
continue to work with the building owners, businesses and land owners to
construct new commercial buildings and to encourage new businesses to locate
in the City’s two newer commercial areas.

21. Develop home ownership and new construction marketing
programs

Findings: Cities that invest in marketing have an advantage.  Opportunities to
buy or construct a home are sometimes limited because of the lack of
information and awareness of financing and incentive programs, homes and lots
on the market, local builders, etc.  This is especially evident for new households
moving into the area.  The home buying/home building process can be very
intimidating for first-time buyers and builders.  It is important for the home
buying or home building process to be user-friendly.

Recommendation: The City of Hartford, the Hartford Area Development
Foundation and the Hartford Chamber of Commerce have all been active in
promoting and marketing housing and we recommend the continuation of the
following:

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 109



Findings and Recommendations   �

< Determine the City’s strengths and competitive advantages and heavily
promote them

< Continue to create marketing materials that can be distributed regionally
(including internet, TV, radio, etc.)

< Work closely with employers (Hartford and the Sioux Falls MSA) to
provide employees (especially new employees) with housing opportunities
in Hartford

< Work with housing agencies to provide down payment assistance, low
interest loans, home owner education and home owner counseling
programs

< Consider an annual Housing Fair that provides information on lots,
builders, finance programs, etc. Developers, builders, lenders, realtors,
public agencies and local businesses could participate

< Work with developers and builders to make lot development and the
construction of new homes as user-friendly as possible

< Continue to work on the creation of jobs and the development of retail,
service and recreational opportunities that make the City a “full service”
community

< Continue to provide attractive lots at an affordable price for a variety of
home sizes, styles and price ranges

< Preserve the quality of existing neighborhoods through the rehabilitation
of substandard housing and the demolition of dilapidated structures that
are beyond repair

< Continue to develop new housing choices that serve life-cycle housing
needs, such as new rental housing, twin homes, senior with services
housing, etc.

< Review the City’s policies and fees to assure that they are user-friendly,
fair and receptive for developers, builders and households

< Develop a coordinated housing plan with the private sector and area
housing agencies

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 110



Agencies and Resources   �

Housing Agencies and Resources

The following local and state agencies administer programs or provide funds for
housing programs and projects:

Hartford Area Development Foundation
125 North Main
P.O. Box 102
Hartford, SD 57033
(605) 528-3338
Contact: Jesse Fonkert
jesse.fonkert@hartfordsd.us

InterLakes Community Action Partnership
505 North Western Avenue
Sioux Falls, SD 57104
(605) 334-2808
Contact: Dana Whitehouse

South Eastern Development Foundation
500 North Western Avenue, Suite 100
Sioux Falls, SD 57104
(605) 367-5390
Contact: Lynne Keller Forbes, Executive Director

South Eastern Council of Governments
500 North Western Avenue, Suite 100
Sioux Falls, SD 57104
(605) 367-5390
Contact: Lynne Keller Forbes, Executive Director

Habitat for Humanity Greater Sioux Falls
721 East Amidon Street
Sioux Falls, SD 57117
(605) 274-6280
Contact: Rocky Welker, Director

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 111



Agencies and Resources   �

Sioux Falls Housing and Redevelopment Commission 
630 South Minnesota Avenue
Sioux Falls, SD 57117
(605) 332-0704
Contact: Karl Fulmer, Executive Director

South Dakota Housing Development Authority
221 South Central Avenue
Pierre, SD 57501
(605) 773-3181
Contact: Mark Lauseng, Executive Director

� Hartford Housing Study Update - 2019 112



 

  1 | Page 

Engineer’s Report 
November 19, 2019 

Vandemark Roadway 
Improvements 
The Vandemark Avenue Roadway 
Improvements project includes 
reconstructing the roadway, making water 
main improvements, and installing storm 
sewer from Highway 38 to the northern city 
limits. The project will also include extension 
of storm sewer in 9th Street to the east of 
Vandemark. Soukup Construction is the 
contractor performing the work. 

Update | The project is substantially 
complete. A list of remaining or corrective 
work was sent to the Contractor in a punch 
list (see linked correspondence). The 
contractor will complete the work over the 
next several weeks as the weather allows 
and prior to final payment. 

 
Correspondence | Punch List of remaining work items 

Mickelson Road 
Improvements 
The Mickelson Road project 
includes reconstructing the 
roadway and utilities from Patrick 
Avenue to Hwy 38.  The project 
also includes roughly 440-ft of 
improvements along 464th Ave.  
Construction of the project is 
planned as a single phase to be 
constructed in 2018 that includes 
sanitary sewer, water main, storm 
sewer, grading, box culverts and 
roadway surfacing.  
 

Update | The project is substantially complete. A list of punch list items was presented to the 
Contractor to complete (see linked), prior to final payment. Stockwell staff will be working on record 
drawings for the project and conducting a LOMR to finalize elevations with FEMA. 
 
Correspondence | Warranty Punch List & Substantial Completion Punch List 

 

https://www.stockwellengineers.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/11/2019_11_12-16046-Updated-Punch-List.pdf
https://www.stockwellengineers.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/11/2019_11_12-Updated-Punch-List.pdf


 

  2 | Page 

Engineer’s Report 
November 19, 2019 

9th Street Improvements 
The City approved a resolution of 
necessity to construct 
improvements along 9th Street 
from Mundt ave to Vandemark 
Ave. Improvements include new 
water mains, sanitary sewer 
extension and roadway 
improvements. The roadway will 
be constructed with curb and 
gutter and asphalt pavement. The 
project is scheduled to be 
constructed during the 2020 
construction season. 

Update | The Council approved to 
move forward with advertising the 
project. Construction documents 
are being prepared for 
contractors to bid in January. 

Industrial Park 
Sanitary Sewer 
Extension  
The scope of this project 
is to construct and 
extend sanitary sewer 
facilities to the City’s 
industrial park located at 
the intersection of 
Western Avenue & 258th 
Street. The extension is 
approximately 1.3 miles in 
length.  

Update | Easements were presented to landowners along the project. Once executed, design work 
will resume. 

CIP Updates and Rate Study 
The scope of this project is to update the city’s CIP and conduct a rate study analysis on the water 
and sewer fund. Stockwell staff will assist with cost estimates and project planning in an effort to 
evaluate and budget for future projects. 

Update | Stockwell staff is developing a draft of the CIP for City staff to review. The draft will be 
presented toward the end of the month. 



 

  3 | Page 

Engineer’s Report 
November 19, 2019 

Swenson Park Sports 
Complex Grading – Phase 2 
The Swenson Park Sports Complex 
Grading - Phase 2 project generally 
consists of grading approximately 33 
acres of the Swenson Park Sports 
Complex site that was not previously 
graded. Improvements will include 
grading, storm sewer installation, erosion 
control and seeding. RMS Excavating is 
the contractor.   
 

Update | The Contractor reseeded the 
site on August 13. The seed has 
germinated and is beginning to fill in. The 
project is ready for final payment. A final 
pay application will be presented at the 
first meeting in December. 

Waste Water Treatment Facility  
The 2017 Master Plan for Wastewater Collection & Treatment recommended planning for a new 
treatment facility. The recommended location for the treatment facility is downstream of the existing 
facility and southeast of the City. This project includes investigation of potential treatment facility site 
locations and negotiations with property owners for the purchase of land.  

Update | Stockwell and City staff are meeting to discuss alternate routes and potential sites for a 
treatment facility. 

Force Account 
Stockwell provides services to city staff as needed under a force account agreement.  Services 
typically include plan reviews, costs estimates or other routine services as requested.   Plan reviews 
typically include preliminary plans, conditional use requests, site plans, engineering documents and 
plats. 

Update |   Recent force account work includes the following:  CIP Updates  ▪  Kelly Point 
Reimbursement Request  ▪  C&C Ventures Add Plan Review ▪ Knapp’s Landing Inspections ▪ Haines 
Add, Lot 1 Plat Review ▪ Brower Add, Blk 2, Lots 4A & 4B Plat Review 

Action | Kelly Point Developers presented a request for oversizing reimbursement for a water main 
that was constructed along Mickelson Road during Phase 3 of their project. Our office has reviewed 
the request and recommends payment to the developer. 

https://www.stockwellengineers.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/11/2019_11_08-Reimbursement-Request-for-Review.pdf


















                                                              Maintenance Report – 11/19/2019 

 

November 14, 2019 

 

Streets 

    Slurry seal – I will be working on next years slurry seal project in the next few weeks. Nick 

Traupel with Sioux Falls wants the information by December 20th.   

    Equipment- All of the equipment is running well at this time. We had to replace the heater 

core in the 95-ford dump truck. The snow equipment is ready. We will be putting the wing on 

the maintainer in the next few days.  

     I-90 – No updates at this time 

     Replacement truck- Neil is working on the finishing touches on the new service truck, it 

should be ready next week.  After this truck is finished, we will work on replacing the service 

box on the dodge as they have some extra time.    

      Dump truck – I am going to start looking at a dump truck in the near future. I would like to 

find something and put specs together so we will be ready to bid one in January.  

     Gravel roads – We are still working on the gravel roads as needed. I will blade 9th St. as soon 

as Soukup if finished up.  

      Sweeping – Jesse has been out sweeping, trying to pick up the leaves in the gutters. Terry 

has been out with the skid steer cleaning the heavy leaves out of the gutters.      

      Hwy 38 – I sent an e-mail out to Travis Dressen with Dot regarding some concerns with the 

speed and turning lanes on HWY 38. I have no updates at this time.    

       Signage – The guys have installed a few signs last week and we will be working on more 

next week.       

        Traffic counter – I have the speed trailer out on S Main. I hope to have some traffic 

information for the meeting. I plan on leaving it on Main for another week and then move it to 

Vandemark.   

        Drainage areas – I am meeting a contractor on Monday to go over what we need to do to 

clean out a few drainage areas. We only received one quote so far. If this is the only one by 

Monday, I will go ahead and give Chad the go ahead to get them cleaned out. We are not able 

to reach these areas with our equipment. One area is the box culverts on Feyder Ave. and the 

other is the north side of the culvert on Opal Lane. 



          Downtown lights – We have 3 lights left to put up, we will put two of them up next week. 

The last light is on back order and we are not sure when it will be shipped. It is sitting on a ship 

outside of California.  

          Sidewalks – We have a few spots around the park to replace yet, this we are planning to 

do ourselves.   

          Hometown Christmas – The next few weeks we will be getting ready for Hometown 

Christmas. Terry has the Christmas light ready to put up. We will have to put them up early this 

year since the first Sunday is right after Thanksgiving.  

 

Water 

        Meters – We will start installing the rest of the new readers in November. We will know by 

then how many new installations we will have.  

        Reports – No reports are due until January.  

          Mains – The guys removed the abandon hydrant and valve by the old tower today.      

Sewer 

         Main list station – Everything is running well at this time. Neil and Jesse rebuilt the lift 

station pump last week.   

         Reports – No reports due until January.   

         Lagoons – We taking a sample in tomorrow on pond #3. We are hoping to discharge one 

more time this fall.        

         Sagehorn lift station – All is good at this time.        

         Sump pumps – We are working on sump pump permits. We are close to 50 so far this 

year.  

 

Park 

       Parks – Everything is winterized and put away for the season. We are ordering some 

stainless-steel counter tops yet this fall and if the weather holds, we will install them yet this 

fall.   

       Turtle Creek – The SDBGN had a conference meeting the other day. They decided to hold 

off sending the request to the National Board and go before legislation to try and change the 



law on the State Board being able to make the decision.  So, we won’t have an answer until 

next year. The Board sounded pretty positive about it.   

          Century Square – I’m working on getting a tree to replace the one we removed. I am 

meeting a tree mover on Monday or Tuesday to look at trees and get it planted.     

 

Bike Trail – Nothing new at this time.       

  

 

Sports complex – Next week we are going to start hauling some more fill dirt and attempt to 

level it.   

   

 

       

 

 



FINANCE OFFICER REPORT 

November 19, 2019 
 

Cash Report and Sales Tax Revenue:    Following is a comparison of the 2018 and 2019 Cash Reports 

as well as the year to date Sales Tax Revenue as of October 31st.  

 

                                                October 31, 2018          October 31, 2019                 Difference 

 Total Cash  $4,516,472.60  $3,871,124.35                - $645,348.25  

  General Fund  $1,878,906.77  $1,788,231.86              - $  90,674.91 

   1st Penny  $   357,503.04                $   388,403.28                  $  30,900.24 

 2nd Penny  $   357,503.03  $   388,403.28                  $  30,900.25 

 3rd Penny  $     54,253.31   $     57,847.62                  $    3,594.31 

 

Committee Funds:   Attached are the committee reports as of October 31, 2019. 

        

Bike/Rec Trail Committee               $5,060.79 

Sports Complex Committee           $126,747.94 

Downtown Committee                             $10,583.42 

  

Bill Report:    Please review the bill report that is included in your packet.  If you have questions, please 

feel free to contact me or stop in and look at the invoices.  Following are highlights: 

 

Auto Glass Express, LLC                 500.00 Door Repair at Sewer Plant 

Beaverbuilt, Inc.                                       3,340.00 Plates & Skids for Street Equipment 

Beaverbuilt, Inc.       325.00 Fabricate/Install Bumper for ’14 Ford Pickup 

Billion     1,086.12 Airbag Repairs on Malibu 

Custom Truck Equipment, Inc.              3,000.00 Service Box for ’14 Ford Pickup 

Eastgate Towing & Storage  1,615.00 Early Code Violation 

Eastgate Towing & Storage                 807.50 Matthies Code Violation 

Hartford’s Best Paint & Body  1,012.30 Seal/Paint Service Box for ’14 Ford Pickup 

Meierhenry Sargent, LLP  5,025.00 Bond Counsel Fee – Vandemark Ave Project 

RBS Sanitation, Inc.   2,786.00 Dumpsters for Yard Waste Site 

SDML Workers’ Compensation Fund    11,112.00 2020 W/C Renewal Premium 

Shamrock Property Management, Inc.       470.00 Aerate Ball Fields 

Signature Streetscapes                           5,050.00 10 Downtown Light Poles & Bases 

Steri-Clean                5,116.67 Final Payment on Matthies Code Violation 

 

Pre-paid Bills: 

Soukup Construction, Inc.            25,983.07 Pay 14 Mickelson Rd Project – per CC 10/15/19 

Soukup Construction, Inc.            69,415.73 Pay 15 Mickelson Rd Project – per CC 11/5/19 

Soukup Construction, Inc.          179,923.35 Pay 6 Vandemark Ave Project – per CC 11/5/19 

Soukup Construction, Inc.            62,567.93 Pay 7 Vandemark Ave Project – per CC 11/5/19 

120 Main Events, LLC      200.00 Hall Rental for Joint Jurisdiction Public Input Mtg 

 

Calendar of Events:  

 Nov 2019: 

 Monday, 18th   Jamboree Meeting @ Deer Hollow Apts Community Room, 6pm 

Tuesday, 19th   Council Meeting @ City Hall, 7pm 

 Wednesday, 20th  Bike/Rec Meeting @ The Goat, 7:30pm 

 Thursday, 21st   Coffee with the Cops @ Stomping Grounds, 7am 

 Friday, 22nd   HADF Meeting @ Stomping Grounds, 7:30am 

 Tuesday, 26th   Planning & Zoning Meeting @ City Hall, 7pm 

 Thursday, 28th   Thanksgiving Holiday – City Hall Closed 

 Friday, 29th   Thanksgiving Holiday – City Hall Closed 



 Dec 2019: 

 Tuesday, 3rd   Council Meeting @ City Hall, 7pm 

 Friday, 6th   HADF Meeting @ Reliabank, 7:30am 

 Sunday, 8th   HASR Meeting @ Blue42, 7pm 

 Monday, 9th   Chamber Meeting @ Fire Station, 6:30pm 

 Tuesday, 10th   Planning & Zoning Meeting @ City Hall, 7pm 

 Friday, 13th   HADF Meeting @ Stomping Grounds, 7:30am 

 Monday, 16th   Jamboree Meeting @ Deer Hollow Apts Community Room, 6pm 

 Tuesday, 17th   Council Meeting @ City Hall, 7pm 

 Thursday, 19th   Coffee with the Cops @ Stomping Grounds, 7am 

 Friday, 20th   HADF Meeting @ Stomping Grounds, 7:30am 

 Tuesday, 24th   Christmas Holiday – City Hall Closed 

 Wednesday, 25th  Christmas Holiday – City Hall Closed 

 Friday, 27th   HADF Meeting @ Stomping Grounds, 7:30am 

 Tuesday, 31st   Planning & Zoning Meeting @ City Hall, 7pm 

  

 

Prepared by Karen Wilber 



BIKE/REC TRAIL COMMITTEE FUNDS
(as of October 31, 2019)

Activity Date Revenue Expenses Balance

End of Year 2010 - Balance 12/31/2010 $25,038.24 $438.90 $24,599.34

End of Year 2011 - Balance 12/31/2011 $144,373.60 $147,224.03 $21,748.91

End of Year 2012 - Balance 12/31/2012 $115,057.43 $81,227.85 $55,578.49

End of Year 2013 - Balance 12/31/2013 $11,506.78 $10,206.58 $56,878.69

End of Year 2014 - Balance 12/31/2014 $56.78 $2,345.73 $54,589.74

End of Year 2015 - Balance 12/31/2015 $52.25 $10,039.46 $44,602.53

End of Year 2016 - Balance 12/31/2016 $174.69 $762.70 $44,014.52

End of Year 2017 - Balance 12/31/2017 $59.04 $25,854.37 $18,219.19

End of Year 2018 - Balance 12/31/2018 $30,584.26 $48,803.45 $0.00

Year 2019

Deposit (2019 Budget) 1/1/2019 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

Deposit (interest) 2/28/2019 $1.33 $10,001.33

Deposit (interest) 3/31/2019 $1.41 $10,002.74

Deposit (interest) 4/30/2019 $1.40 $10,004.14

Deposit (interest) 5/31/2019 $1.46 $10,005.60

Deposit (interest) 6/30/2019 $1.35 $10,006.95

SD Dept of Transportation (Mike Franken Trail) 7/16/2019 $4,949.97 $5,056.98

Deposit (interest) 7/31/2019 $1.42 $5,058.40

Deposit (interest) 8/31/2019 $0.72 $5,059.12

Deposit (interest) 9/30/2019 $0.93 $5,060.05

Deposit (interest) 10/31/2019 $0.74 $5,060.79

TOTALS TO DATE for 2019 $10,010.76 $4,949.97 $5,060.79

To date, the balance of Bike/Rec Trail fund is $5,060.79

Summary of Expenses:

Advertising                     $78.05

501c3                             $407.00

Filing Fees-Land              $22.00

Filing Fees $98.00

Attorney's/Accountant's Fees                $1,273.92

Supplies-Phase 1              $93.43

Contractor-Phase 1  $118,535.29

Engineer-Phase 1     $23,023.44

Engineer-Hwy 38     $45,777.95

Engineer-Phase 3/4 $5,880.28

Engineer-Wetlands Phase 3/4 $3,711.60

SD Dot - Hwy 38 $1,801.98

Wetlands Bank-Hwy 38     $41,000.00

Bricks $423.40

Building Supplies - Turtle Creek Shelter $1,022.15

SD Dot - Mike Franken $64,084.55

Tetonka $24,620.00



Sports Complex Committee Funds
(as of October 31, 2019)

Activity Date Revenue Expenses Balance

End of Year 2010 - Balance 12/31/2010 $100,153.94 $1,284.28 $98,869.66

End of Year 2011 - Balance 12/31/2011 $100,287.58 $192,255.17 $6,902.07

End of Year 2012 - Balance 12/31/2012 $47,754.85 $346,215.92 ($291,559.00)

End of Year 2013 - Balancce 12/31/2013 $409,797.66 $85,298.19 $3,294,047.00

End of Year 2014 - Balance 12/31/2014 $45,423.32 $76,328.01 $2,035.78

End of Year 2015 - Balance 12/31/2015 $50,015.74 $45,940.22 $6,111.83

End of Year 2016 - Balance 12/31/2016 $14,032.17 $0.00 $20,144.00

End of Year 2017 - Balance 12/31/2017 $100,180.67 $0.00 $120,324.67

End of Year 2018 - Balance 12/31/2018 $186.43 $22,283.15 $98,227.95

Year 2019

Deposit (2019 Budget) 1/1/2019 $50,000.00 $148,227.95

Interest Deposit 1/31/2019 $13.65 $148,241.60

Deposit (Hartford Area Softball - scoreboard donation) 2/11/2019 $800.00 $149,041.60

Interest Deposit 2/28/2019 $19.74 $149,061.34

Interest Deposit 3/31/2019 $21.02 $149,082.36

Interest Deposit 4/30/2019 $20.88 $149,103.24

Daktronics, Inc.  (2 scoreboards) 5/21/2019 $11,367.52 $137,735.72

Stockwell Engineers, Inc.  (cost estimates) 5/21/2019 $305.40 $137,430.32

Interest Deposit 5/31/2019 $21.79 $137,452.11

Hartford Area Softball Assoc (field rent) 6/14/2019 $320.00 $137,772.11

Beaverbuilt, Inc.  (scoreboard frames) 6/18/2019 $3,126.00 $134,646.11

Beaverbuilt, Inc.  (telehandler rental for scoreboard install) 6/18/2019 $75.00 $134,571.11

Interest Deposit 6/30/2019 $18.53 $134,589.64

Beaverbuilt, Inc.  (telehandler rental for scoreboard install) 7/16/2019 $200.00 $134,389.64

Colton Redi-Mix, Inc. (concrete for scoreboard install) 7/16/2019 $432.00 $133,957.64

Stockwell Engineers, Inc.  (master plan/cost estimates) 7/16/2019 $2,028.60 $131,929.04

Travis Electric, Inc. (electrial for scoreboard install) 7/16/2019 $5,260.00 $126,669.04

Interest Deposit 7/31/2019 $19.09 $126,688.13

Interest Deposit 8/31/2019 $18.04 $126,706.17

Interest Deposit 9/30/2019 $23.22 $126,729.39

Interest Deposit 10/31/2019 $18.55 $126,747.94

TOTALS $51,314.51 $22,794.52 $126,747.94

To date, the balance of Sports Complex funds is $126,747.94

Summary of Expenses:

501c3 Filing Fees $750.00

Attorney's/Accountant's Fees $608.42

Earnest Money         $500.00

Land Purchase $150,000.00

Land Purchase-Closing Costs $444.00

Engineer-Wetlands    $2,980.80

Loan Expenses      $15,712.03

Advertising Fees $40.52

Engineer Fees         $94,424.55

Construction Fees - Sitework $355,467.20

Soukup Construction - Overseeding $4,011.66

Supplies $907.33

D. Hauptman Co. - Soccer Goals $3,510.00

American Fence Company (fence 2 softball fields) $72,330.46

Water Line Expense $465.31

Ag-Lime $45,940.22

Electrical $8,248.80

Water Service Line $13,569.04

Daktronics, Inc  (2 scoreboards) $11,367.52

Beaverbuilt, Inc  (scoreboard frames) $3,126.00

Beaverbuilt, Inc  (telehandler rental for scoreboard install) $275.00

Colton Redi-Mix, Inc  (concrete for scoreboard install) $432.00

Travis Electric, Inc  (electrical for scoreboard install) $5,260.00

Stockwell Engineers  (master plan/cost estimates) $2,028.60



DOWNTOWN COMMITTEE FUNDS
(as of October 31, 2019)

Activity Date Revenue Expenses Balance

End of Year 2011 - Balance 12/31/2011 $5,000.06 $4,910.63 $89.43

End of Year 2012 - Balance 12/31/2012 $10,009.86 $0.00 $10,099.29

End of Year 2013 - Balancce 12/31/2013 $10.35 $474.57 $9,635.07

End of Year 2014 - Balance 12/31/2014 $6.78 $9,000.00 $641.85

End of Year 2015 - Balance 12/31/2015 $1.71 $496.91 $146.65

End of Year 2016 - Balance 12/31/2016 $3.70 $0.00 $150.35

End of Year 2017 - Balance 12/31/2017 $3.53 $0.00 $153.88

End of Year 2017 - Transfer Committee Acct Balance 12/31/2017 $2,044.14 $0.00 $2,198.02

End of Year 2018 - Balance 12/31/2018 $3.72 $0.00 $2,201.74

Year 2019

Interest Deposit 1/31/2019 $0.31 $2,202.05

Interest Deposit 2/28/2019 $0.29 $2,202.34

Interest Deposit 3/31/2019 $0.31 $2,202.65

Interest Deposit 4/30/2019 $0.31 $2,202.96

Deposit (SF Area Community Foundation - mural donation) 5/15/2019 $1,500.00 $3,702.96

Interest Deposit 5/31/2019 $0.32 $3,703.28

Hartford Area Optimist Club (mural project) 6/18/2019 $3,500.00 $203.28

Interest Deposit 6/30/2019 $0.50 $203.78

Interest Deposit 7/31/2019 $0.03 $203.81

Interest Deposit 8/31/2019 $0.03 $203.84

Interest Deposit 9/30/2019 $0.04 $203.88

Leo Scherer Donation (per City Council 10/15/19) 10/15/2019 $10,379.51 $10,583.39

Deposit (interest) 10/31/2019 $0.03 $10,583.42

TOTALS $11,881.68 $3,500.00 $10,583.42

To date, the balance of Downtown fund is $10,583.42

Summary of Expenses:

Attorney's/Accountant's Fees                $1,105.34

Remaining Appropriation (benches, trash cans) $4,302.20

Postage for Survey Mailing $474.57

Hartford Area Optimist Club (mural) $3,500.00

Transfer to General Fund $9,000.00



   

11/19/2019                               City Administrator Report 

 

 

Explanation of Agenda Items 

 

 

Applications, Hearings, Resolutions & Ordinances: 

 

• 7:05 Hearing for Liquor License Renewals:  Please find enclosed a list of liquor licenses that are up for 

renewal by the city.   All have submitted the required paperwork and fees to our office.  Once approved by 

the council, Karen will forward the applications to Pierre and new licenses for 2020 will be distributed. The 

Minnehaha County Sheriff office just conducted a liquor compliance check this last week and 5 businesses 

in Hartford were checked – only one failed, which was The Goat Bar and Grill.  This is the only failed 

compliance check this year that I am aware of in Hartford.  All liquor license violations are handled 

through the state. 

 

• 7:10 Hearing on Annexation Petition from the Hartford Township: 

o Review & Approve Agreement with Hartford Township:  Before the city moves forward with 

approval of the annexation petition, I would like the council to review the enclosed agreement 

between the City of Hartford and the Hartford Township.  This agreement was drafted by Larry 

and basically lays out what the City and Township obligations are.  Basically, the City agrees to 

install a sewer service line to the Township Property and allow them to hook on to this line with 

no initial hookup fee.  In return, the Township agrees to annex into the city and sign the easements 

needed for the sewer project along Western Avenue.  This agreement gives assurances to both 

parties.  If approved by the city council, we can move forward with approval of the annexation 

petition. 

o Review and Approve Annexation Resolution 2019-17:  Resolution 2019-17 states that the city 

approves the Township request to annex into the city.  The annexation petition was reviewed by 

and approved by the P&Z Board last week and they are recommending approval to the city 

council.  

  

• Review and Approve Resolution 2019-15 – General Assessment Policy:  We reviewed a draft of this 

proposed resolution at our last meeting.  I received no input or comments, so no changes were made to the 

draft that was presented at our November 5th meeting.  My hope with revising this policy will help clarify 

what dollar amounts should be assessed for various projects and incorporates a longer timeframe for 

payment to the city.     

 

Notes from our last meeting…. 

At our last meeting, the council directed me to draft a city policy which would give a longer timeframe for 

assessment payments to the city on street and utility projects.  I thought the easiest way to make this change 

would be to add this to our current assessment policy.  After reviewing our current assessment policy, it 

seemed to me that it was not worded the best and some things were unclear.  I sent this to Mitch for his 

review and he agreed.  We sat down and discussed our current policy and decided to make some changes 

to incorporate this new assessment payment date and to clarify some of the language.  A copy of the 

proposed changes (shown in red) are in your packet for your review.  Basically, when Mitch and I 

discussed the $100.00 assessment, we noted that this assessment rate should be for streets and sidewalks 

together.  Mitch pulled out an old exhibit for when this was last updated by the council and the $100 cost 

figure came from their estimate for one side of a typical street and sidewalk cost estimate.  Their estimate 

(in 2017) was slightly higher than $100, so we adopted the maximum assessment amount for streets as 

$100.00 per lineal foot, with the city paying any cost above $100 per foot – which is what is in effect today.  

Wording in our current assessment policy just says we can assess for $100 per foot for any assessment 

project (doesn’t specify just streets and sidewalks) and then it says we can assess for streets, sidewalks, 

water, sewer and lights.  After looking at the exhibits from 2017, Mitch and I have concluded that the $100 

maximum assessment rate is for only streets and sidewalks together and that water and sewer should be 

assessed at the actual cost.  I think these changes incorporate the new assessment payoff date, plus helps to 

clarify the assessment rates for different assessment projects. So, I have changed the following language in 

our assessment policy to clarify: 

1. Section A – paragraph one:  This paragraph has been changed to clarify that sidewalks are part 

of street improvements and that the actual cost of the street and sidewalk improvements will be 

assessed up to the maximum assessment rate of $100 per lineal foot. 



2. Section A – paragraph two:  This paragraph was added that notes all water and sewer 

improvements will be assessed at their actual cost – either by lineal foot or by acres if we 

determine a sewer district.   

3. Section B:  This was added to set the assessment due date for a project as we discussed at our last 

meeting.  It basically states that once a project is done, they property owner will have until 

October 1st of the following year to make payment direct to the city before an assessment role 

would be sent to the county. (I originally had September 1st in here to give the city a couple of 

months to complete this process before sending to the county by November 1st but I then changed 

it to October 1st so we stay consistent with what was granted for the sidewalk assessments along 

Mickelson Road) 

4. The remainder of the document stays the same and just basically shows how the city calculated 

lineal footage on various sized lots.   

 

Our last two projects have stayed consistent with this assessment policy.  

  

Mickelson Road going from Patrick to the west: $49.50 per foot for the street plus $11.00 per foot for the sidewalk 

= $60.50 total assessment for streets and sidewalk.   

 

Mickelson Road going from Patrick to the east:  $49.50 per foot for the street plus $22.75 per foot for the sidewalk= 

$72.25 total assessment for streets and sidewalk. 

 

Vandemark Ave will probably hit the $100 maximum since Mitch is figuring the actual street cost about $80+ per 

foot and the sidewalk quote price was higher than the $22.75.  So, the property owners along Vandemark should be 

assessed the $100 maximum per foot for street and sidewalk. 

 

• Review and Approve Resolution 2019-16 – Transfer of Contingency Funds:  This resolution would 

transfer funds from the city’s contingency account in our general fund to various other accounts in the 

general fund to cover any shortfalls in our general fund budget.  See enclosed Explanation in your packet. 

 

• 1st Reading of Ordinance #680 – Amendment to Zoning Regulations to allow Artisan Distillery in 

Central Business and Community Commercial Zones:  Economic Development Director Jesse Fonkert, 

approached the council with a request to utilize the city owned lot on the NW corner of Menth Street and 

Main Avenue for a possible artisan distillery, since this is a niche that is currently not within the Sioux 

Falls area.  If an artisan distillery cannot be placed, the city ultimately wants another business to utilize this 

lot in order to general sales tax revenue.  As you know, the city is transferring this lot to the Hartford Area 

Economic Development Foundation to market.  If they are successful in securing an artisan distillery, the 

city will need to amend our regulations for Central Business to allow an artisan distillery as a conditional 

use.  After discussion by the Planning and Zoning Board, it was decided to add this as a conditional use not 

only under central business district but also under community commercial district.  Ordinance #680 reflects 

this amendment.   

 

• 1st Reading of Ordinance #681 – 2019 Supplemental Appropriation:  This ordinance would supplement 

the city’s 2019 budget.  This would cover any unanticipated expenses, expenses added by the council 

throughout the year, or expenses that were unknown when the 2019 budget was adopted.  It covers 

expenses in our budget for large general funds expenses and those expenses from other funds.  See 

enclosed Explanation in your packet.  

 

• 1st Reading of Ordinance #682 – Amend Ordinance 430 Sidewalks:  As you know, the city council 

adopted new technical design standards last fall.  These design standards were drafted by our engineers, 

discussed by the P&Z and City Council and ultimately adopted.  The new standards require a 5 foot wide 

sidewalk in residential zones, which is a change from 4 feet.  It has come to the city’s attention that 

although our design standards state 5 feet wide, our municipal ordinance still references the 4 feet – so we 

have a conflict in ordinances.  We need to update our municipal ordinance #430 to reference this change – 

Ordinance #682 will make this change.  The only language changed is in the 3rd sentence that states “and 

not less than five (5) feet wide in residential areas”.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Reports (Action Items):   

• Chamber & Economic Development Director Report – Jesse Fonkert:   

o 2019 Housing Study Update:  With funding from SECOG and the SD Housing Development 

Authority, Community Partners Research has completed an update to the city’s housing study.  

The full report in in the packet for your review but a representative will be present to review and 

discuss it with the council. 

  

• City Engineer Report: 

o Kelly Point Water Main Reimbursement Request:  Kelly Point Developers presented a request 

for oversizing reimbursement for a water main that was constructed along Mickelson Road during 

Phase 3 of their project.  This request has been reviewed by our engineers and they recommend 

payment.  The amount requested is $7,921.99. 

 

Old Business: 

• Approve Warranty Deed for Lot 6 of Railway Addition:  The city council has approved the transfer of 

Lot 6 of Railway Addition to the HADF for marketing (Lot south of South Bar).  A phase 1 environmental 

was conducted with no significant finds and the title insurance has been received and review by the city 

attorney.  All is in order to transfer the lot.  Enclosed is a copy of the Warranty Deed for the council to 

review and approve so Mayor Menning can sign. 

• Discuss Park Recreation Board:  At our last meeting we discussed the possibility of setting up a “Parks 

Board” that would work in an advisory capacity to the council on the care and management of the city’s 

parks and our recreation system.  There are 2 ways to set up such a Board – 1) By Ordinance, which is 

allowed by SDCL but does not allow the city to pay the members or 2) By setting up a committee of the 

city.  I have drafted sample documents for both a Board by Ordinance or a Committee for council review.  

Basically, they both incorporate the following with the only real difference is payment of the members: 

o 7 member Board – 5 voting members from the public, 1 non-voting member from the council and 

1 non-voting member from city staff 

o 3 year terms for voting members, which are appointed by the Mayor with council approval 

o Officers would be Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson and Secretary 

o The council member will advise and consult with the entire city council  

o Meetings will be held once a month 

o A quorum is 3 voting members 

o Vacancies will be filled by appointment 

 

I left the duties broad in both documents so they can be amended at the pleasure of the sitting council. 

 

New Business: 

• Feedback on Joint Jurisdiction Meeting:  I would like the Board to weigh in on any feedback or 

questions you received on the joint jurisdiction public meeting that was held on October 29th.  I received 

input from the P&Z board last week and we thought a letter to property owners within this area, that 

addresses common questions and concerns would be a good idea – along with placing them on the city’s 

website.  The Board did have concerns with the general feel from the public as well as the county board so 

I would like to discuss our next steps in this process.   

 

******************************************************************************************** 

 

 

Non-Agenda Updates 

 

Projects: 

• Vandemark Road:  I plan to send out letters next week to the property owners along Vandemark Avenue 

giving them notice for the public hearing on their assessment roll. December 17th should be the assessment 

hearing for this project.  I will have a copy of the assessment roll that is being sent out at our meeting for 

the council to reference.   

 

Code Violations:   We have received all invoices on our two code violation cases.  A final account was sent to our 

attorney on the property along Mundt Avenue and I will be sending a final account to our attorney on the property 

along Western Avenue so they can be leveled against their property.   

 



Capital Improvement Plan (CIP):  City staff met earlier this month with Mitch to review the CIP that was in your 

budget packet.  We have reviewed and discussed each project and only a couple of changed were made.  Mitch will 

update this, and we hope to bring it to the council for review within this next month.   

 

Long-Range Transportation Plan (LRTP):  We held our 1st LRTP meeting on November 7th.  Every 5 years the 

Sioux Fall Metropolitan Organization (MPO) is required to review and update their long-range transportation plan.  

The city of Hartford is included in this planning process since we are part of the MPO.  I have been asked to be on 

the advisory committee for this plan so I can represent the City of Hartford and will be attending a few periodic 

meetings.   

 

Snow Removal Help:  We have hired Norman Jans as part-time snow removal help at a pay rate of $16.00 per hour.  

Norm worked for the city this past summer with mowing in the parks and we can use him to help with clearing snow 

off the sidewalks and trails.  We are still taking applications and would like to find someone with a CDL that can run 

larger equipment.   

 

Recreation Director Info:  Once again – no activity on Nates phone or email but I will continue to check it daily.  

All is going well so far with his duties.  

 

Christmas Party:  We have scheduled the City Christmas Party for Friday, January 3rd at the Hartford Steak Co. – 

Please mark your calendars.  

 

 

 

 

 

Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns.  605-261-3995 

Teresa 



 

 

 
Prepared By: 

Frieberg, Nelson & Ask, LLP 

206 E. 5th St., PO Box 38 

Canton, SD  57013-0038 

605-987-2686 

 

 

 

 

WARRANTY DEED 

 

 The CITY OF HARTFORD, South Dakota, a Municipal 

Corporation of Minnehaha County, South Dakota, Grantor, for and 

in consideration of One Dollar and other good and valuable 

consideration, grants, conveys and warrants to the HARTFORD 

AREA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, a Non-Profit Local Industrial 

Development Corporation, Grantee, of 125 N. Main Ave., 

Hartford, SD, 57033, the following described real estate: 

  

Lot 6 of Railway Addition to the City of Hartford, 

Minnehaha County, South Dakota, according to the recorded 

plat thereof, 

 

subject to easements and restrictions of record, if any. 

 

EXEMPT FROM TRANSFER FEE:  SDCL 43-4-22(2) 

 

 Dated this ______ day of November, 2019. 

 

      CITY OF HARTFORD 

 

  

 By________________________________ 

        Its Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

Finance Officer 

 

  

 

 

 

 



 

 

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA ) 

      :§ 

COUNTY OF MINNEHAHA   ) 

 

 On this the ______ day of October, 2019, before me, the 

undersigned officer, personally appeared Jeremy Menning and 

Karen Wilber, Mayor and Finance Officer of the City of 

Hartford, known to me or satisfactorily proven to be the 

persons described in the foregoing instrument and acknowledged 

that they executed the same in the capacity therein stated and 

for the purposes therein contained. 

 

 In witness whereof I hereunto set my hand and official 

seal. 

 

      _________________________________ 

      Notary Public, South Dakota 

      My commission expires:___________ 



Park Boards/Committee Comparisons 

City How 
Organized 

# of 
Members 

How Seats Filled Length 
of Term 

Pay/Wage How Often are 
Meetings 

Officers Budget 

Harrisburg Set up by 
Ordinance 

5-9 members 
– none can 
hold an 
elective office 

Appointed in May 
by Mayor with city 
council approval 

3 years  Not Paid Once per quarter 
– Can hold special 
meetings if 
needed  

Chair 
Vice-Chair 
Secretary 
(Takes 
minutes)  

Budget 
request are 
to be 
submitted to 
City before 
7/1 

Tea Set up by 
Ordinance 

Max of 9 
members 
allowed 

Recommendations 
by Park Board w/ 
approval of city 
council 

2 years Not Paid Once per month Chair 
Vice-Chair 
(City Park 
& Rec 
Director 
acts as 
Secretary) 

All expenses 
must be 
approved by 
City Council 

Brandon Set up as 
Committee 
by City  
(not by 
Ordinance) 

5 voting 
members – 
plus 1 council 
rep and 1-2 
city staff 
Reps, all non-
voting 

Appointed by 
Mayor with 
approval of city 
council 

4 years 
(council 
members 
are 
annually) 

$40 per 
meeting 

Once per month Chair 
Vice-Chair 
(Chair will 
appoint 
Secretary 
for agenda, 
notices & 
minutes) 
 

Budget 
requests or 
expenditures 
must be 
approved by 
city council 

Mobridge Set up by 
Ordinance 

7 members – 
with one 
member 
being from 
the City 
Council 

Appointed by 
Mayor with 
approval of city 
council 

3 years Not Paid Once per month Chair 
Vice-Chair 
Secretary 

Board shall 
submit a 
budget 
Request to 
the city by 
8/15 

 

Harrisburg – Board shall act in an advisory role to the City Council on matters related to the establishment, improvement, care 

for, regulation and management of a system of public parks and parkways in and for the City.  They shall provide a proposed 

budget to the city each year, shall provide an annual assessment of the public parks and parkways in and for the city.  May be 

requested to assist the City with identifying design and funding improvements, fundraising and any other matters related to 

maintaining and improving the park system.  They cannot expense funds or incur expenses unless approved by City Council. 

Tea – The Board decides typically season dates, game times, registration cost, uniforms and any other business pertaining to city 

sponsored activities or programs.  Any major needs such as more park space, field rental for programs or major upgrades to 

current facilities are decisions that are vetted through the Board by must be approved by city council.  Tea has a Park & Recreation 

Director that is a city employee and this person prepares the agendas, informational packets, and takes the minutes for the Park 

Board meetings.   

Brandon – The Park Advisory Committee is established for the purpose of investigation and providing recommendations to the 

Brandon City Council as to matters pertaining to the care, regulation, and management of the City’s public parks and operating a 

system of public recreation.  The council representative will serve as the advisor to the city council. 

Mobridge – The Board’s duties consists of overseeing and making recommendations to the city council regarding the public parks, 

pools and other facilities (including cemetery).  Devise a comprehensive plan for the parks and recreation system that addresses 

the current and future needs of parks and facilities.  To review and make recommendations to the city council affecting the 

establishment, improvement, maintenance and regulation of the parks – they regulate all tree planting and trimming in the park & 

boulevards.  They employ a Recreation Director that directs all work in the operation and maintenance of the public parks and 

recreation programs.  The director will oversee any employees of the parks.   



 

 

City of Hartford 

Parks Advisory Committee 

By-Laws 

Section 1:  Park Advisory Committee 

There is hereby created and established a committee to be entitled and designated as the Hartford Park Advisory Committee. 

 

Section 2:  Funding 

Funding, if deemed necessary, for the committee shall be budgeted by the City Council. 

 

Section 3:  Duties, Responsibilities and Authority of the Committee 

The committee shall be specifically responsible but not limited to the following:  The Park Advisory Committee is established for the 

purpose of investigation and providing recommendation to the Hartford City Council as to matters pertaining to the care, regulation 

and management of the City’s public parks and the operation of the public recreation system. 

 

Section 4:  Compensation of Members 

All members of the Park Advisory Committee shall be paid $______ per meeting attendance.  This amount can be amended by council 

resolution. 

 

Section 5:  Organization of the Committee 

A.  Membership:  The committee shall consist of seven (7) members – one (1) non-voting member shall be a city council 

representative, appointed by the Mayor with approval of the city council; one (1) non-voting member shall be a city staff 

representative ,appointed by the Mayor with approval of the city council; and there shall be five (5) voting members from the 

public at large.  The members shall be appointed by the Mayor with the approval of the City Council. 

B. Terms:  Terms of the Public members shall be as follows:  The first year committee will determine one, two and three year 

terms. During the first year, one committee member from the public will have a one year term, two committee members from 

the public will have a two year terms and two committee members from the public will have a three year term.  Successive 

terms shall be for a period of three (3) years.  The Mayor, with approval of the City Council will appoint a council member 

and staff member on an annual basis. 

C. Elected Officers:  The Park Advisory Committee shall elect a chairperson and vice-chairperson for a one year term at the first 

meeting of the Committee each calendar year.  The chairperson shall call the meetings of the Committee; preside at the 

meetings; act as spokesperson for the Committee; and perform all duties approved by the City council.  The vice-chairperson 

shall exercise the duties of the chairperson in the absence, disability or disqualification of the chairperson.  In the absence of 

the chairperson and vice-chairperson, an acting chairperson shall be elected by the members present.   

D. Secretary:  The chairperson of the committee shall appoint the secretary of said committee.  It shall be the duty of the 

secretary to send all notices for the meetings of said committee; compose the agenda for each meeting; keep and preserve the 

minutes; have custody and keep all documents and papers filed with the said committee; and perform such other duties as 

may be prescribed by said committee, with the approval of the City Council.  This person may be either a voting or non-

voting committee member.   

E. Reporting to the City Council:  The Council member serving on the Committee will advise and consult with the City Council 

and city officials as to the work and recommendation of said committee. 

F. Meetings:  The committee shall meet once a month if there is business to conduct and may also meet on the call of the 

chairperson or Mayor.  Notice of all meetings shall be placed on the city’s website at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.  

Meeting date and time will be determined by the Committee. 

G. Quorum:  Three (3) voting members will constitute a quorum. 

H. Absences, Removals, Resignations and Vacancies:   

To be excused, members of the Committee shall notify the chairman or secretary when they intend to be absent from a 

meeting.  Failure to make this notification prior to the meeting shall result in an unexcused absence.   

Member of the committee may be removed by the Mayor, with the approval of the City Council.   

A member may resign from the committee by sending a letter of resignation to the Mayor or Chairman of the committee.  

Vacancies shall be filled by the Mayor, with the approval of the City Council.  Successors shall serve out the unexpired term 

of the member being replaced.   

 
Section 6:  Adoption and Amendment 



 

 

These rules were adopted by vote of the Hartford City Council on ____________________________. 

 



 

 

ORDINANCE #______ 

CITY OF HARTFORD 

 

 

AN ORDINANVE ESTABLISHING A PARK AND RECREATION BOARD, WITHIN 

THE CITY OF HARTFORD, MINNEHAHA COUNTY, SOUTH DAKOTA, 

PURSUANT TO SDCL, CHAPTER 9-38. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF HARTFORD, MINNEHAHA COUNTY, 

SOUTH DAKOTA THAT ORDINANCE 430 SHALL BE AMENDED WITH THE 

ADDITION OF CHAPTER 1.06 – PARK AND RECREATION BOARD AND SHALL 

READ AS FOLLOWS:  

 

Section 1.0601: PURPOSE.  The purpose of this Ordinance is to establish a Park and 

Recreation Board pursuant to and as authorized by SDCL Chapter 9-38 of the South 

Dakota Codified Laws within the City of Hartford, South Dakota, for purpose of 

investigation and providing recommendation to the Hartford City Council as to matters 

pertaining to the care, regulation and management of the City’s public parks and the 

operation of the public recreation system.   

 

Section 1.0602: MEMBERSHIP.  The Park and Recreation Board shall consist of seven 

(7) members – one (1) non-voting member shall be a city council representative, 

appointed by the Mayor with approval of the city council; one (1) non-voting member 

shall be a city staff representative ,appointed by the Mayor with approval of the city 

council; and there shall be five (5) voting members from the public at large.  The 

members shall be appointed by the Mayor with the approval of the City Council. 

 

Section 1.0603:  TERMS.  Terms of the Public members shall be as follows:  The first 

year committee will determine one, two and three year terms. During the first year, one 

committee member from the public will have a one year term, two committee members 

from the public will have a two year terms and two committee members from the public 

will have a three year term.  Successive terms shall be for a period of three (3) years.  The 

Mayor, with approval of the City Council will appoint a council member and staff 

member on an annual basis. The members shall serve on the Park and Recreation Board 

without pay and at the pleasure of the City Council.   

 

Section 1.0604:  ELECTED OFFICERS.  The Park and Recreation Board shall elect a 

chairperson and vice-chairperson for a one year term at the first meeting of the 

Committee each calendar year.  The chairperson shall call the meetings of the 

Committee; preside at the meetings; act as spokesperson for the Committee; and perform 

all duties approved by the City council.  The vice-chairperson shall exercise the duties of 

the chairperson in the absence, disability or disqualification of the chairperson.  In the 

absence of the chairperson and vice-chairperson, an acting chairperson shall be elected by 

the members present.   

 



 

 

Section 1.0605:  SECRETARY.  The chairperson of the committee shall appoint the 

secretary of said committee.  It shall be the duty of the secretary to send all notices for the 

meetings of said committee; compose the agenda for each meeting; keep and preserve the 

minutes; have custody and keep all documents and papers filed with the said committee; 

and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by said committee, with the approval 

of the City Council.  This person may be either a voting or non-voting committee 

member.   

 

Section 1.0606:  REPORTING TO THE CITY COUNCIL.  The Council member serving 

on the Committee will advise and consult with the City Council and city officials as to 

the work and recommendation of said committee. 

 

Section 1.0607:  MEETINGS.  The committee shall meet once a month if there is 

business to conduct and may also meet on the call of the chairperson or Mayor.  Notice of 

all meetings shall be placed on the city’s website at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.  

Meeting date and time will be determined by the Committee. 

 

Section 1.0608:  QUORUM.  Three (3) voting members will constitute a quorum. 

 

Section 1.0609:  ABSENCES, REMOVALS, RESIGNATIONS AND VACANCIES.   

To be excused, members of the Committee shall notify the chairman or secretary when 

they intend to be absent from a meeting.  Failure to make this notification prior to the 

meeting shall result in an unexcused absence.   

 

Member of the committee may be removed by the Mayor, with the approval of the City 

Council.   

 

A member may resign from the committee by sending a letter of resignation to the Mayor 

or Chairman of the committee.   

 

Vacancies shall be filled by the Mayor, with the approval of the City Council.  

Successors shall serve out the unexpired term of the member being replaced.   

 

Section 1.0610:  EFFECTIVE DATE AND ENACTMENT.  This Ordinance shall 

become effective twenty (20) days after the last date of publication of said Ordinance. 

 

 

 

             

       Jeremy Menning, Mayor 

         

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Karen Wilber, Finance Officer 


	111919 1.pdf
	1 - 11192019 cc agenda.pdf
	2 - 11-5-19 Minutes.pdf
	3a - Council Bill Report.pdf�
	1
	101
	A&B BUSINESS, INC.ABBUSINESS
	IN670327

	A-1 PORTABLE TOILETSA1
	48486
	48853

	ANDERSON PUBLICATIONS, INC.ANDERSONP
	86816

	ARGUS LEADERARGUSLEAD
	2906792

	AVENET, LLCAVENET
	INV9103

	BEAVERBUILT, INC.BEAVER
	5314
	5332

	BILLION MOTORS, INC.BILLION
	344617

	CITY OF HARTFORDCTYHART
	10282019 STMT

	CLARKE, PAUL CLARPAUL
	OCTOBER 2019

	COFFEE CUP FUEL STOPS - AUTO PMTSCOFFEECUP
	110119 STMT

	COLTON REDI-MIX, INC.COLTONREDI
	33196

	CONCRETE MATERIALSCONCRE
	99164

	CUSTOM TRUCK EQUIPMENT, INC.CUSTTRUC
	EP7210

	EASTGATE TOWING & STORAGEEASTGA
	145270
	145271

	FARMERS & MERCHANTS CO-OP OIL CO.FARMMERC
	18964

	FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHAFIRSBANK
	102819 STATE
	102819 STMT

	FONKERT, JESSE FONKJES
	REIMB TRAVEL

	FRIEBERG, NELSON & ASK, LLPFRIEBE
	64714
	64944

	GOLDEN WEST TELECOMMUNICATIONS COOPERATIVE, INC.GOLDENWEST
	11012019 STATE

	GREAT BEAR SAND AND GRAVEL, LLCGREABEAR
	13763

	GROCOTT INK & THREADGROCINK
	11268

	HARTFORD BUILDING CENTER, INC.HARTF9
	10312019 STMT

	HARTFORD'S BEST PAINT AND BODYHARTF1
	7812

	LYLE SIGNS, INC.LYLESI
	1467460

	MATHESON TRI-GAS INCMATHLINW
	51535102

	MC&R POOLS, INC.MCRPOO
	1192540-IN

	MENARDS - SIOUX FALLS WESTMENARDW
	17481

	MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANYMIDAME
	10242019 STATE

	MINNEHAHA COUNTY SHERIFFMINNE4
	101819 STMT

	NAPA AUTO PARTS OF HARTFORDNAPA
	125416
	125447
	125619
	125791
	125821
	125832
	125897
	126210
	126267
	126311
	126403
	126620
	126629
	126772

	NORTHERN TRUCK EQUIPMENT CORPORATIONNORTH2
	INV031488

	PETTY CASHPETTY
	11142019 VOUCHER

	POWERPLANPOWERPLAN
	P15606

	QUILL CORPORATIONQUILL
	2134185
	2152839
	2152840

	RAMKOTA HOTELRAMKABER
	264735
	264736

	RBS SANITATION, INC.RBS
	101019 STMT
	102519 STMT
	103119 STMT
	110519 STMT

	SANFORD HEALTH OCCUPATIONAL MEDICINE CLINICSANFORD
	509434

	SD DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE - AUTO PMTSSDDEP2
	10/2019 SALES

	SDML WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUNDSDMLWORK
	18264

	SF AREA HUMANE SOCIETYSFHUMA
	4022
	4046

	SHAMROCK PROPERTY MANAGEMENT, LLCSHAMPROP
	1467

	SIDEL, TERESA SIDETERE
	10312019 VOUCHER

	SIGNATURE STREETSCAPESSIGNSTREET
	11987

	SIOUX FALLS NETWORKSSFNETWORKS
	10458

	SIOUX VALLEY ENERGYSIOUXV
	10292019 STATE

	STAN HOUSTON EQUIPMENT COMPANY, INC.STANHO
	01 825340

	STERI-CLEANSTERCLEA
	9845

	STOCKWELL ENGINEERSSTOCKW
	10083
	9980

	SUNSHINE FOODSSUNSHINE
	110119 STMT

	TAMMEN AUTO & TIRE, INC.TAMMENAUTO
	159808

	VERIZON WIRELESSVERIZO
	9840654780

	VOTH, BRYAN VOTHBRYA
	10312019 VOUCHER


	505
	MINNEHAHA COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDSMINNDEEDS
	11012019 STMT

	STOCKWELL ENGINEERSSTOCKW
	10025
	9908


	506
	MEIERHENRY SARGENT LLPMEIERH
	41606

	MINNEHAHA COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDSMINNDEEDS
	11012019 STMT

	STOCKWELL ENGINEERSSTOCKW
	10031
	9911


	602
	BADGER METERBADMET
	80039553

	BEAVERBUILT, INC.BEAVER
	5332

	CITY OF SIOUX FALLSCTYSOOFALL
	16213

	CUSTOM TRUCK EQUIPMENT, INC.CUSTTRUC
	EP7210

	DAKOTA SUPPLY GROUP, INC.DAKOTA
	F103945
	F104022

	FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHAFIRSBANK
	102819 STMT

	HARTFORD'S BEST PAINT AND BODYHARTF1
	7812

	MINNEHAHA COMMUNITY WATER CORPORATIONMINNEH
	11012019 STATE

	PETTY CASHPETTY
	11142019 VOUCHER

	SD PUBLIC HEALTH LABORATORYSDPUBHEA
	10590404

	SDML WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUNDSDMLWORK
	18264

	SIOUX VALLEY ENERGYSIOUXV
	10292019 STATE

	SOUTH DAKOTA ONE CALL SDONECALL
	SD19-2589


	604
	AMERICAN ENGINEERING TESTING, INC.AMERENGI
	401696

	AUTO GLASS EXPRESS, LLCAUTOGLAS
	M025635

	BADGER METERBADMET
	80039553

	CITY OF HARTFORDCTYHART
	10282019 STMT

	HARTFORD BUILDING CENTER, INC.HARTF9
	10312019 STMT

	MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANYMIDAME
	10242019 STATE

	PETTY CASHPETTY
	11142019 VOUCHER

	SDML WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUNDSDMLWORK
	18264

	SIOUX VALLEY ENERGYSIOUXV
	10292019 STATE

	SOUTH DAKOTA ONE CALL SDONECALL
	SD19-2589




	3b - Prepaid Checks.pdf�
	Vendor
	Check
	1



	4-12th street discussion.pdf
	5 - Notice of PH - Renewal Liquor Publish.pdf
	6a - Township Agreement.pdf
	6b - 2019-17 ANNEXATION.Hartford Township.pdf
	7 - 2019-15 Updated Assessment Policy.pdf
	8a - 2019-16 Trans Contingency.pdf
	8b - 2019 Contingency Transfer.pdf
	9 - 680 -artisan distillery.pdf

	111919 2b.pdf�
	10a - 681 - 2019 supp appropriation.pdf
	10b - 2019 Supp Approp.pdf
	11 - 682-sidewalk.widths.pdf
	12a - Director's Report 11.15.19.pdf

	12b - Hartford 2019 Housing Study FINAL.pdf
	111919 3b.pdf�
	13a - 2019_11_19 - Engineer's Report.pdf
	13b - Kelly Point reimb..pdf
	14 - November 19 2019 Maint report.pdf
	15 - Finance Officer Report.11-19-19.pdf
	15a - BRT Funds Summary.pdf
	15b - Sports Funds Summary.pdf
	15c - DT Funds Summary.pdf
	16 - City.Adm.11192019.pdf
	17 - Deed - Lot 6.Hartford City to Hartford Area Development Corp.pdf
	18 - Park Board Info Nov 2019.pdf
	18a - Park advisory comm draft.pdf
	18b - Park & Rec Board Ordinance draft .pdf


